
Online Board Packet 

 
 

Board of Trustees 
 

Regular Board Meeting 
 
 

Tuesday, January 26, 2016 
5:30 p.m. 

 

Pecan Campus 
Ann Richards Administration Building 

Board Room 
McAllen, Texas

 



SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING 

Tuesday, January 26, 2016 @ 5:30 p.m. 
Ann Richards Administration Building Board Room 

Pecan Campus, McAllen, Texas 78501 
 

AGENDA 
 
“At anytime during the course of this meeting, the Board of Trustees may retire to Executive Session under Texas Government Code 
551.071(2) to confer with its legal counsel on any subject matter on this agenda in which the duty of the attorney to the Board of 
Trustees under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with Chapter 551 of 
the Texas Government Code.  Further, at anytime during the course of this meeting, the Board of Trustees may retire to Executive 
Session to deliberate on any subject slated for discussion at this meeting, as may be permitted under one or more of the exceptions 
to the Open Meetings Act set forth in Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter D of the Texas Government Code.  At this meeting, 
the Board of Trustees may deliberate on and take any action deemed appropriate by the Board of Trustees on the following subjects:” 

 

I. Call Meeting to Order 

II. Determination of Quorum 

III. Invocation 

IV. Public Comments 

V. Presentation ................................................................................................. 1 - 12 
 
A. Recognition of Trustees for Their Service and Contributions to South Texas 

College 

B. Presentation on the South Texas College December 2015 Commencement 
Ceremonies 

 
VI. Consideration and Action on Consent Agenda 

A. Approval of Board Meeting Minutes ...................................................... 13 - 40 

1. December 15, 2015 Regular Board Meeting 

 

B. Approval and Authorization to Accept Grant Award(s) .......................... 41 - 42 

1. Additional Funds (Reallocation) for the “Carl Perkins Basic Grant” from 
the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board 

2. The “WIA Statewide Funding for Industry – Recognized Skills 
Certification Initiative” Grant from the Lower Rio Grande Valley 
Workforce Development Board, Inc., DBA Workforce Solutions 

3. Additional Grant(s) Received/Pending Official Award 
 

VII. Consideration and Action on Agenda Items 

A. Advisement from Hidalgo County Judge Ramon Garcia Regarding County 
Intent to Enter Tax Abatement Agreement ............................................ 43 - 44 



VIII. Consideration and Action on Committee Items 

A. Education and Workforce Development Committee 

1. Review and Action as Necessary on Proposed New Policy #3301: Definition 
of Semester Credit Hours ................................................................. 45 - 46 

2. Review of Presentation to the Education and Workforce Development 
Committee: .............................................................................................. 47 

a. Presentation of South Texas College Workforce Training Opportunities 
for Industry Partners in Reynosa 

 

B. Finance and Human Resources Committee 

1. Review and Action as Necessary on Award of Proposals, Rejection of 
Proposal, Purchases, and Renewals ................................................ 48 - 57 
A. Awards 

1) Firefighter Equipment (Award) 
2) Purchase and Installation of Digital Readout Units (Award) 
3) Signs, Banners, and Related Products (Award) 
4) Higher Education Strategic Market Assessment (Reject) 

B. Non – Instructional Items 
5) Furniture (Purchase) 
6) Institutional Membership (Renewal) 

C. Technology 
7) Computers, Laptop, Tablets, and Printers (Purchase) 
8) Network Equipment and Phones (Purchase) 
9) Network Switches and Connectors  (Purchase) 
10) Servers, Installation, and Configuration (Purchase) 
11) Timekeeping System (Purchase) 
12) Virtual Desktop Licenses Phase I (Purchase) 

2. Review and Action as Necessary on Revision of Adjunct & Overload Pay 
Rate Scale and Elimination of Summer Faculty Pay Rate Scale ...... 58 - 63 

3. Review and Action as Necessary on Revised Policies ..................... 64 - 67 

a. Revise Policy #3803: Conditions of Employment of Full-Time Faculty 
Teaching during Summer Terms 

b. Revise Policy #6322: Smoke/Tobacco/E-Cigarette Free Environment 

 

C. Facilities Committee 

1. Update on Status of 2013 Bond Construction Program .................... 68 - 73 

2. Review and Action as Necessary on Approval of Interlocal and Lease 
Agreements with the City of Pharr and Pharr San Juan Alamo ISD ............  
. ...................................................................................................... 74 – 129 



3. Review and Action as Necessary on Contracting Architectural Design 
Services for the 2013 Bond Construction Regional Center for Public Safety 
Excellence .................................................................................... 130 - 137 

4. Review and Action as Necessary on Contracting Civil Engineering Services 
for the 2013 Bond Construction Regional Center for Public Safety 
Excellence Parking and Site Improvements .................................. 138 - 143 

5. Review and Action as Necessary on Amendment to the Agreement with 
EGV Architects to Increase Design Services to Include the Re-Design of 
Existing Buildings for the 2013 Bond Construction Workforce Expansion 
Projects at the Starr County and Mid Valley Campuses ............... 144 - 148 

6. Review and Action as Necessary on an Amendment to the Agreements for 
Additional Services with Civil Engineering Firms for Landscape and 
Irrigation Design Consultants for the 2013 Bond Construction Mid Valley, 
Technology, and Nursing and Allied Health Campuses Parking and Site 
Improvements ............................................................................... 149 - 160 

7. Review and Action as Necessary to Award Proposal for Owner 
Procurement of Thermal Energy Plant Chillers for the 2013 Bond 
Construction Program ................................................................... 161 - 164 

8. Review and Action as Necessary on Contracting Insurance Agent Services 
to establish an Owner-Controlled Insurance Program for the 2013 Bond 
Construction Program ................................................................... 165 - 168 

9. Review and Action as Necessary on Substantial or Final Completion for the 
Following Non-Bond Construction Projects ................................... 169 - 178 
1) Technology Campus West Academic Building Re-Roofing 
2) Pecan Campus Relocation of Electrical Power Lines 
3) Pecan Campus Sports Field Lighting 
4) Pecan Plaza Asphalt Resurfacing along Alley Side of Building B 

10. Update on Status of Non-Bond Program Construction Projects ... 179 - 184 

IX. Consideration and Approval of Checks and Financial Reports ... 185 - 187 

The Checks and the Financial Reports presented for approval are included in 
the Board Packet under SEPARATE COVER 

X. Informational Items 

 President’s Report  ....................................................................... 188 - 193 

 Board Committee Meeting Minutes from January 12, 2016: 

o Education and Workforce Development .................................. 194 - 197 

o Facilities .................................................................................. 198 - 217 

o Finance and Human Resources .............................................. 218 - 228 

 

 



 

 

XI. Announcements ........................................................................................ 229 

A. Next Meetings: 

 Tuesday, February 9, 2016 

 4:30 p.m. – Facilities Committee 

 5:30 p.m. – Finance & HR Committee meeting 

 

 Thursday, February 18, 2016 

 4:00 p.m. – Education and Workforce Development Committee 

 

 Tuesday, February 23, 2016 

 5:30 p.m. – Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees 

 

B. Other Announcements: 

 The Launch of the Texas Regional STEM Degree Accelerator Initiative will 
be held Wednesday, February 10, 2016 at the South Texas College Cooper 
Center. 

 The College will be closed for regular business to hold its College-Wide 
Professional and Organizational Development Day on Friday, February 12, 
2016. 



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 1 

Presentation 
 
A. Recognition of Trustees for Their Service and Contributions to South Texas College 

 
Dr. Reed will present an expression of appreciation to the Board of Trustees on the 
behalf of faculty, staff, students, and constituents for their continued contributions to 
making South Texas College a premier community college.     
 

B. Presentation on the South Texas College December 2015 Commencement 
Ceremonies 

 
Mr. Matthew Hebbard, Dean of Enrollment Services and Registrar, will present on the 
December 2015 Commencement Ceremonies held on Saturday, December 12, 2015. 
 
This was the second year that South Texas College has held December 
Commencement Ceremonies due to the increasing number of South Texas College 
graduates each year.  This December Commencement allows the College to 
recognize students who complete their programs in a fall semester and provides their 
families an opportunity to celebrate their successes without waiting for the Spring 
ceremony. 
 
Mr. Hebbard will provide a post-ceremony review of the number of participating 
graduates, and the planning and activities that went into this excellent new tradition 
for South Texas College’s students “in the making!” 
 
The packet includes a roster of the staff committee that planned and implemented the 
commencement ceremonies.  The packet also includes a copy of the South Texas 
College Fall 2015 Graduation Report, produced by Marching Order, which provides 
statistics on those graduates who attended the ceremony. 

 
 

  

1



December Eligible Graduates

Certificate 539

Associate 1,184

Baccalaureate    108

2



December Eligible Graduates by
Academic Division

Liberal Arts 261
Social Sciences  466
Nursing and Allied Health 339
Business and Technology 562
Math and Science 95
Baccalaureate 108

Total 1,831

December Ceremony Highlights

• 808 Total Participants

10am – 457

2pm – 808

• RSVP System

• Guest Tickets

• HD Screens

• State Farm Arena

3



December Commencement Planning 

Planning  
Begins in 

Spring 2015

Planning Process

4



Ceremony Processional

Commencement Ceremony Production Team
120 Staff & Administrators

5



December Ceremony Video

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=T7iYLc54w8o

6



       Ceremony Committee Members List 

  
       
 

 

Chair:  Matthew Hebbard, Dean of Enrollment Services 

 

 

 

   

• Rebecca Cavazos, Director of Purchasing 

• Mike Carranza, Associate Dean of Student 

Financial Services, Testing and Veterans Affairs 

• Cynthia Blanco, Director of Certificate and Degree 

Completion 

• Larry Barroso, Director of College Connections 

and Admissions 

• Yvette Elizondo, Administrative Assistant for 

Interim VP of SAEM 

• Joel Flores, IT Assistant II, Instructional 

Technologies 

• Lucio Gonzalez, Assistant CIO for Infrastructure 

• Sara Gomez, Graduation and Transcript Analyst 

• Cody Gregg, Director of Instructional Technologies  

• Michelle Limon, Coordinator of  Admissions and Records 

• Otoniel Matamoros, Director of College Connections and 

Admissions for Dual Enrollment 

• Ray Pedraza, Assistant Director, Public Relations and 

Marketing  

• Daniel Ramirez, Director of Public Relations and 

Marketing 

• Lt. Ruben Suarez, South Texas College Police Department 

• Jennifer Solis, Coordinator of Publications 

• Eddie Torres,  IT Assistant I, Instructional Technologies 

• Becky Urbina, Senior Administrative Assistant, Office of 

the Dean for Enrollment Services 

• Paul Varville, Chief of Police and Director of Safety and 

Security 

• Maria L. Evans, Director of Instructional Technologies 

7



So
ut

h 
Te

xa
s C

ol
le

ge
Fa

ll 
20

15
 G

ra
du

at
io

n 
Re

po
rt

Pr
ep

ar
ed

 b
y:

Re
be

cc
a 

Al
pt

ek
in

Vi
ce

 P
re

sid
en

t o
f C

lie
nt

 R
el

at
io

ns
Re

be
cc

a@
m

ar
ch

in
go

rd
er

.c
om

91
6-

75
7-

31
42



At
te

nd
an

ce
 R

at
e 

Fo
r A

ll 
Gr

ad
ua

te
s

Th
e 

gr
ap

h 
be

lo
w

 sh
ow

s t
he

 a
tte

nd
an

ce
 ra

te
 fo

r a
ll 

gr
ad

ua
te

s.

*B
la

nk
 c

ar
ds

 is
su

ed
 a

re
 n

ot
 c

ou
nt

ed
 in

 W
al

ke
d 

to
ta

l



At
te

nd
an

ce
 R

at
e 

by
 D

iv
isi

on
Th

e 
gr

ap
h 

be
lo

w
 g

iv
es

 th
e 

at
te

nd
an

ce
 ra

te
 b

y 
Co

lle
ge

.  
Th

is 
is 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

to
ta

l n
um

be
r 

of
 st

ud
en

ts
 th

at
 a

pp
lie

d 
to

 g
ra

du
at

e 
(n

ot
ed

 a
bo

ve
 e

ac
h 

co
lu

m
n)

. 
*B

la
nk

 C
ar

ds
 n

ot
 in

clu
de

d 
in

 to
ta

ls.



At
te

nd
an

ce
 R

at
e 

by
 D

eg
re

e
Th

e 
gr

ap
h 

be
lo

w
 g

iv
es

 th
e 

at
te

nd
an

ce
 ra

te
 b

y 
Co

lle
ge

.  
Th

is 
is 

ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

to
ta

l n
um

be
r 

of
 st

ud
en

ts
 th

at
 a

pp
lie

d 
to

 g
ra

du
at

e 
(n

ot
ed

 a
bo

ve
 e

ac
h 

co
lu

m
n)

. 
*B

la
nk

 C
ar

ds
 n

ot
 in

clu
de

d 
in

 to
ta

ls.



Nu
m

be
r o

f W
al

k-
Up

s P
er

 C
er

em
on

y
Th

e 
gr

ap
h 

be
lo

w
 g

iv
es

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f s
tu

de
nt

s 
w

ho
 w

er
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 fi

ll 
ou

t a
 b

la
nk

 c
ar

d 
up

on
 a

rr
iv

in
g 

at
 h

is/
he

r c
er

em
on

y.



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 2 

Approval of Minutes  
 
The following Board Meeting Minutes are submitted for approval: 
 

1. December 15, 2015 Regular Board Meeting 
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and adopt 
the Board Meeting Minutes as presented. 
 
The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees:  
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and adopts the Board Meeting 
Minutes as presented. 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
 
Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D. 
President 
  

13



Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
December 15, 2015 @ 5:30 p.m. 
Page 1, Revised 01/21/2016 @ 2:51 PM 

12‐15‐2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING 

Tuesday, December 15, 2015 @ 5:30 p.m. 
Ann Richards Administration Building Board Room 

Pecan Campus, McAllen, Texas 78501 
 

Minutes 
 

Call Meeting to Order: 
The Regular Board Meeting of the South Texas College Board of Trustees was held on 
Tuesday, December 15, 2015 in the Ann Richards Administration Building Board Room 
at the Pecan Campus in McAllen, Texas.  The meeting commenced at 5:37 p.m. with Mr. 
Paul R. Rodriguez, Secretary, presiding at the opening of the meeting, and Dr. Alejo 
Salinas, Jr., Vice Chair, presiding upon his arrival. 
  
Members present: Mr. Roy de León, Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez, Ms. 
Rose Benavidez, Mrs. Graciela Farias, Mr. Gary Gurwitz, and Mr. Jesse Villarreal. 
  
Members absent: None 
 
Also present: Dr. Shirley A. Reed, Mr. Chuy Ramirez, Mrs. Mary Elizondo, Dr. David 
Plummer, Mrs. Wanda Garza, Dr. Anahid Petrosian, Mrs. Becky Cavazos, Ms. Myriam 
Lopez, Mr. Bill Buhidar, Mr. Paul Varville, Mr. Ricardo De La Garza, Mr. Ali Kolahdouz, 
Mr. Isaac Garza, Mr. Gilbert Gallegos, Mr. Rolando Garcia, Ms. Diana Bravos Gonzalez, 
Mr. Ramiro Gutierrez, Mr. Hernan Lugo, Mr. David Segovia, Mr. Aaron Rios, Mr. Raul 
Cabaza, Mr. Michael Cano, and Andrew Fish. 
 
Determination of a Quorum 

A quorum was present and a notice of the meeting was posted. 
 
Invocation: 

Mrs. Becky Cavazos, Director of Purchasing, said the invocation. 
 

Public Comments: 

No public comments were given and a notice of the meeting was posted. 
 

Approval of Minutes  
 
The following Board Meeting Minutes were submitted for approval: 
 

1. November 24, 2015 Regular Board Meeting 
 
Upon a motion by Ms. Rose Benavidez and a second by Mrs. Graciela Farias, the Board 
of Trustees of South Texas College approved and adopted the Board Meeting Minutes 
as written.  The motion carried. 
  

14



Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
December 15, 2015 @ 5:30 p.m. 
Page 2, Revised 01/21/2016 @ 2:51 PM 

12‐15‐2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Review of Presentations to the Education and Workforce 
Development Committee: 

 
Mrs. Graciela Farias provided a review of the following presentations which were 
delivered to the Education and Workforce Development Committee on Tuesday, 
December 8, 2015: 
 

1. Presentation on Academic Classification at South Texas College 
Dr. Christopher Nelson, Assistant Dean for Humanities, reviewed the classifications and 
provide background on the purpose and effect of classifications at academic institutions.  
Classifications were granted for prestige of the recipient and institution, and no salary or 
other compensation was tied to classification. 
 
South Texas College maintained four classifications for full-time faculty members: 

1. Instructor (commonly “Lecturer” at other institutions) 
2. Assistant Professor 
3. Associate Professor 
4. (Full) Professor 

 
As South Texas College transitioned into a Level II, Bachelor Degree granting institution, 
several changes were proposed.  Among these changes were title changes for 
administrative staff overseeing academic divisions, from Division Director to Dean, and 
the implementation of academic classifications for faculty.  The Board first approved the 
implementation of these classifications in November 2005. 
 
Faculty were required hold appropriate academic credentials and have obtained years of 
service as faculty to be considered for academic classification.  They must also be 
evaluated on at least three of the following criteria, in addition to academic achievement 
and years of service: 

 Teaching Effectiveness 
 Service to College 
 Service to Community 

 Professional Activities 
 Scholarly Pursuit 

 
Application for Academic Classification Process 

1. A faculty member who meets the requirements is able to submit their application 
for the desired classification. 

2. The application portfolio is reviewed at the departmental level by peer instructors, 
who vote anonymously on its recommendation. 

3. If the applicant’s colleagues recommend approval, this recommendation is 
reviewed by the College-Wide Academic Classification Committee. 

4. The recommendation of the Committee is submitted to the Vice President for 
Academic Affairs. 

 
At the time of the presentation, South Texas College had 52 Assistant Professors, 32 
Associate Professors, and 13 (Full) Professors serving its students.   
 
Dr. Nelson also proposed the creation of an Emeritus Professor rank, which could be 
granted to certain, qualified retiring faculty in honor of their careers and service at South 

15



December 15. 2015 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/21/2016 2:51:56 PM 
Page 3 

12‐15‐2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Texas College.  The proposal would require a revision to Policy #3813: Academic 
Classifications for Faculty, which would be provided for the Committee’s review and 
recommendation for Board action at an appropriate later date. 

 
2. Presentation of South Texas College Drama Department’s Spring 2016 

Season 
 

Mr. Joel Jason Rodriguez, Drama Department Chair, presented the South Texas College 
Drama Department’s Spring 2016 season production schedule. 
 
The department was preparing for its next show, which would be a performance of William 
Shakespeare’s Romeo and Juliet February 25 – 28, 2016 at the Cooper Center Main 
Stage.  Mr. Rodriguez described this as a “film noir” version, using costumes and set 
pieces developed in-house to put a twist on the classic play. 
 
South Texas College would also host the Communication Arts Festival March 28 – April 
2, 2016, which would be part of a national collaboration with a  focus on exploring telling 
the stories of living on the border, giving local artists insights and the voice in sharing their 
authentic experiences. 
 
The Drama department would also present Between You, Me, and the Lampshade from 
April 28 – May 1, 2016 in the Cooper Center Black Box Studio.  This play was written by 
a McAllen native, and is a showcase of local talent. 

 
These presentations were for the Board’s information and feedback to staff, and no action was 
requested. 
 
 

Review and Action as Necessary Regarding the Fiscal Year 2015 
Financial Audit 

 
Acceptance of the Fiscal Year 2015 Financial Audit was requested. 
 
Mr. David Segovia, Partner with Long Chilton, LLP, reviewed the audit with the Board and 
responded to questions regarding the audit. 
 
A copy of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report was included separately for the 
Board’s information and review.   
 
The Finance and Human Resources Committee meeting reviewed this audit on Tuesday, 
December 8, 2015 with Mr. Randy Sweeten, Engagement Partner and his associates.  At 
that time, Mr. Sweeten reported an unqualified opinion of the College’s financial 
statements. 
 

16



December 15. 2015 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/21/2016 2:51:56 PM 
Page 4 

12‐15‐2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

No action was taken at the Committee meeting. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez and a second by Ms. Rose Benavidez, the Board 
of Trustees of South Texas College accepted the Fiscal Year 2015 Financial Audit as 
presented.  The motion carried. 
 
 

Review and Action as Necessary on Hidalgo County Tax Resale 
Properties and Resolution Authorizing Tax Resale 

 
Approval of the Hidalgo County Tax Resale Properties and the Resolution Authorizing the 
Tax Resale was requested. 
 
Purpose – The law offices of Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP requested 
consideration and approval of the tax resale of seventy (70) properties and rejection of 
private bids received on nine (9) struck offproperties. 
 
Justification – The Texas Property Tax Code requires approval from all taxing entities for 
the resale of a property for an amount that is less than the appraised value on a resale 
auction.   
 
Background – On June 2, 2015, Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP held a Tax 
Resale Auction for previously struck off properties located within Hidalgo County.  No bids 
were received at time of auction on any of these properties; however on June 22, 2015 
private written bids were received for nine (9) previously struck off properties.   
 
On November 3, 2015, Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP held a Tax Resale 
Auction for seventy (70) previously struck off properties located within Hidalgo County.   
 
The Tax Resale Auctions were held at the Hidalgo County Clerk Records Management 
Facility and were published in The Monitor and several other newspapers throughout 
Hidalgo County. 
 
The nine (9) struck off properties were previously presented at the October 7, 2015 
Finance Committee Meeting for approval, but the College was notified immediately prior 
to that committee meeting that another taxing entity had concerns about the proposed tax 
resale, so no action was taken by the Committee and the properties were not presented 
for Board action at that time.  In an effort to close out these bids, the properties were 
resubmitted to the Finance and Human Resources Committee on December 8th, 
2015.  At the Finance and Human Resources Committee, Mrs. Kelly Salazar advised that 
since these were private bids, it was best if these properties be put up for public 
auction.  Upon Mrs. Salazar’s counsel, the Committee recommended Board rejection of 
these nine bids. 

17



December 15. 2015 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/21/2016 2:51:56 PM 
Page 5 

12‐15‐2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP submitted the analysis of the bids received for 
the Board of Trustees’ consideration.  The total amount the College would receive upon 
acceptance of the seventy (70) recommended bids was $31,484.37. 
 
Enclosed Documents - The Resolution Authorizing the Tax Resale were provided in the 
packet for the Board’s review.  A listing of the bids, the legal description for each property, 
as well as the amount of the bid, the South Texas College amount, and the Analysis of 
Bids Received were included under separate cover for information and review. 
 
Mr. Michael Cano from Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP attended the meeting 
to address any questions by the Board. 
 
The Finance and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of the 
Hidalgo County Tax Resale Bids of the seventy properties as identified, rejection of the 
nine private bids, and the Resolution Authorizing the Tax Resale to Linebarger Goggan 
Blair & Sampson, LLP as presented. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez and a second by Mr. Roy de León, the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized the Hidalgo County Tax Resale 
Bids of the seventy properties as identified, rejection of the nine private bids, and the 
Resolution Authorizing the Tax Resale to Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP as 
presented.  The motion carried. 
 
 

Review and Action as Necessary on Award of Proposals, Rejection of 
Proposal, Rescindment of Award, Purchases, and Renewals 

 
The Finance and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of the 
following proposal awards, rejection of a proposal, rescindment of an award, purchases, 
and renewals as listed below: 

A. Awards 
B. Instructional Items 

 C. Non-Instructional Items 
D. Technology Items 

 
A. Awards 
1) Rental of Firefighter Protective Clothing (Award):  award the proposal for the 

rental of firefighter protective clothing to LION TotalCare, Inc. (Dayton, OH), for 
the period beginning December 16, 2015 through December 15, 2016 with two one-
year options to renew, at an estimated cost of $9,286.20 per semester with an 
annual cost of $18,572.40; 

2) Training Services (Award):  award the proposal for training services to Global 
Knowledge Training, LLC. (Cary, NC), for the period beginning January 1, 2016 
through December 31, 2016 with two one-year options to renew, at an estimated 
cost of $134,000.00; 

18



December 15. 2015 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/21/2016 2:51:56 PM 
Page 6 

12‐15‐2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

3) Signs, Flags, and Banners (Reject):  reject the proposals for the signs, flags, and 
banners to include additional products and signage.  In the re-bid, specifications 
will also be revised as needed to eliminate a wide disparity in the vendor’s price 
proposal; 

4) Records Management Services (Rescind):  rescind the award for records 
management services to CTC Distributing, Ltd. (Edinburg, TX), for the period 
beginning September 1, 2015 through August 31, 2016, at an estimated amount of 
$15,000.00; 

 
B. Instructional Items 
5) Musical Instruments (Purchase):  purchase musical instruments from 

Woodwind and Brasswind (South Bend, IN) (New), a Texas Association of 
School Boards – Buyboard approved vendor, at a total amount of $18,694.00; 

 
C. Non – Instructional Items 
6) Advertising Agreement (Purchase):  purchase an advertising agreement with 

Rio Grande City Consolidated Independent School District (Rio Grande City, 
TX), an interlocal agreement, for the period beginning September 1, 2015 through 
August 31, 2016, at a total cost of $10,439.00; 

7) Furniture (Purchase):  purchase furniture from the State of Texas Multiple Award 
Schedule (TXMAS) approved vendors, at a total amount of $82,953.74 

# Vendor Amount 

A Exemplis Corporation/ 
Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX) 

$9,645.48

B The Hon Company/ 
Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX) 

$7,492.54

C Krueger International, Inc./ 
Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX) 

$65,815.72

 Total  $82,953.74

8) Third Party Administrator for 403(b) Plan (Renewal):  renew the contract for the 
third party administrator for 403(b) plan with TSA Consulting Group, Inc. (Ft. 
Walton Beach, FL), for the period beginning March 1, 2016 through February 28, 
2017, at a total cost of $6,000.00; 

9) Vehicle Fuel Program (Renewal):  renew the State Fleet Card Program for vehicle 
fuel with U. S. Bank Market Fleet Voyager (Kansas City, MO), a State of Texas 
Procurement and Support Services (TPASS) approved vendor, acting by and 
through the State of Texas Council of Competitive Government (CCG), for the 
period beginning January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016, at an estimated 
cost of $60,000.00 based on prior year history; 

 
D. Technology 
10) Computers, Laptop, and Tablets (Purchase):  purchase of computers, laptop, 

and tablets from the State of Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR) 
approved vendor Dell Marketing, LP. (Dallas, TX) and from the National Joint 
Powers Alliance approved vendor CDW Government (Vernon Hills, IL), in the total 
amount of $51,061.49; 

19



December 15. 2015 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/21/2016 2:51:56 PM 
Page 7 

12‐15‐2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

11) Uninterruptible Power Supply (UPS) (Purchase):  purchase an uninterruptible 
power supply (UPS) from Dell Marketing, LP. (Dallas, TX), a Department of 
Information Resources (DIR) approved vendor, at a cost of $43,345.27; 

12) Web Portal Software Upgrade and Support (Purchase):  purchase the web 
portal software upgrade and support from the Texas A&M University – Corpus 
Christi (Corpus Christi, TX), on behalf of the Texas Connection Consortium (TCC) 
and Ellucian Company, LP., through the Texas Department of Information 
Resources (DIR), at a total cost of $106,930.00; 

13) Inventory Scheduling and Tracking Software License Agreement (Renewal):  
renew the inventory scheduling and tracking software license agreement with 
onShore Development, Inc. (Chicago, IL), a sole source vendor, for the period 
beginning December 18, 2015 through December 17, 2016, at a total amount of 
$10,697.00. 

 
SUMMARY TOTAL: 
The total for the proposal awards, rejection of a proposal, rescindment of an award, 
purchases, and renewals was $542,692.90 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez and a second by Mr. Roy de León, the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized the proposal awards, rejection 
of a proposal, rescindment of an award, purchases, and renewals as presented.  The 
motion carried. 
 
 

Review and Action as Necessary on New and Revised Policies 
 

Approval of new and revised policies was requested. 
 
A. New  

 
a. Proposed New Policy #4112: Self-Reporting of Criminal Conduct 

The new policy was necessary for the following reasons: 
 

 The new policy required employees to self-report criminal conduct to support 
the Code of Professional Ethics requirement that the administration, faculty, and 
staff shall support the goals and ideals of the institution and shall act in public 
and private affairs in such a manner as to bring credit to the institution. 
 

 The new policy was necessary to strengthen efforts to maintain a healthy and 
safe environment and protect the College’s financial and physical assets. 

 
B. Revised 

 
a. Revise Policy #3235: Tuition/Fee Waiver for Dual Enrollment Students 

Sponsored by Cooperating School Districts  
Request for the revision to the policy was necessary for the following reason: 

 

20



December 15. 2015 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/21/2016 2:51:56 PM 
Page 8 

12‐15‐2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

 To revise the policy by removing the specific fee levied for late enrollment of 
students. 
 

 The Policy would instead refer to the Board-approved Student Tuition and Fee 
Schedule, which is revised annually and includes this fee.  This revision would 
allow Board approved changes to the Student Tuition and Fee Schedule to be 
consistent with Board approved policy. 

 
 To further clarify that the fee was charged for enrollment of a student after the 

census date, rather than for student admission after the census date. 
 

b. Revise Policy #3620: College Sanctioned Travel for Students  
Request for the revisions to the policy was necessary for the following reason: 

 
 To more fully clarify and detail the process and requirements for College 

Sanctioned Travel by South Texas College Students 
 

c. Revise Policy #4216:  Discrimination, Harassment, Retaliation, and Sexual 
Misconduct 
Request for the revisions to the policy was necessary for the following reason: 

 

 To incorporate clarification of prohibited discrimination on the basis of 
pregnancy and to comply with federal regulations under Title IX. 

 
The new and revised policies were included in the packet for the Board’s information and 
review.  The additions to the policy were highlighted in yellow and the deletions were 
designated with a red strikeout.   
 
The new and revised policies have been reviewed by staff, the President’s Cabinet, 
President’s Administrative Staff, Planning and Development Council (PDC) staff, and by 
South Texas College’s Legal Counsel.   
 
The Finance and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of the new 
and revised policies as presented and which supersedes any previously adopted Board 
policy. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez and a second by Mr. Roy de León, the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized the adoption of new Policy 
#4112: Self-Reporting of Criminal Conduct as presented and which supersedes any 
previously adopted Board policy.  The motion carried. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez and a second by Mr. Roy de León, the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized the adoption of the proposed 
revisions to Policy #3235: Tuition/Fee Waiver for Dual Enrollment Students Sponsored by 
Cooperating School Districts as presented and which supersedes any previously adopted 
Board policy.  The motion carried. 
 

21



December 15. 2015 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/21/2016 2:51:56 PM 
Page 9 

12‐15‐2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Upon a motion by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez and a second by Mr. Roy de León, the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized the adoption of the proposed 
revisions to Policy #3620: College Sanctioned Travel for Students as presented and which 
supersedes any previously adopted Board policy.  The motion carried. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez and a second by Mr. Roy de León, the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized the adoption of the proposed 
revisions to Policy #4216: Discrimination, Harassment, Retaliation, and Sexual 
Misconduct as presented and which supersedes any previously adopted Board policy.  
The motion carried. 
 
 

Review and Action as Necessary on 2015 Tax Roll/Tax Levy for 
Hidalgo and Starr Counties 

 
Approval of the 2015 Tax Roll/Tax Levy for Hidalgo and Starr Counties was requested. 
 
Purpose – The Hidalgo County Tax Assessor-Collector and the Starr County Tax 
Assessor-Collector provided the 2015 Tax Roll Totals for approval by the College’s 
governing body.   
 
Justification - The 2015 Tax Roll/Tax Levy for Hidalgo and Starr Counties required 
approval from the governing body in order to be in compliance with Section 26.09 Item (e) 
of the Property Tax Code, which reads: 
 

“The assessor shall enter the amount of tax determined as provided by this section 
in the appraisal roll and submit it to the governing body of the unit for approval.  The 
appraisal roll with amounts of tax entered as approved by the governing body 
constitutes the unit’s tax roll.” 

 
Background - Mr. Pablo “Paul” Villarreal, Jr., RTA, Assessor-Collector of Hidalgo County 
and Mrs. Carmen A. Peña, RTA, Assessor-Collector of Starr County entered the amount 
of tax determined as provided by Section 26.09 Item (e) of the Property Tax Code and 
submitted the tax roll/tax levy totaling $60,279,269.23 to South Texas College.   
 
The comparison from the 2014 to 2015 tax roll by county is as follows: 
  

 
Enclosed Documents - The 2015 Tax Roll Totals documents from each county were 

 2014  2015  Increase 

Hidalgo County $  52,781,657.49  $  56,408,070.41  $  3,626,412.92 

Starr County       3,352,380.96        3,871,198.83        518,817.87 

Total $  56,134,038.45  $  60,279,269.24  $  4,145,230.79 

22



December 15. 2015 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/21/2016 2:51:56 PM 
Page 10 

12‐15‐2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

provided in the packet for the Board’s information and review.   
 
The Finance and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of the 
2015 Tax Roll/Tax Levy for Hidalgo and Starr Counties as presented. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez and a second by Mr. Roy de León, the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized the 2015 Tax Roll/Tax Levy for 
Hidalgo and Starr Counties as presented.  The motion carried. 
 
 

Review and Action as Necessary on Appraisal District Allocated Cost 
Payments for Hidalgo County and Starr County 

 
Approval to process payments to the Hidalgo County Appraisal District and Starr County 
Appraisal District for allocated cost, as described below, was requested. 
 
Purpose – The Hidalgo County Appraisal District and the Starr County Appraisal District 
perform property valuation assessments for taxes imposed during the tax year.  The 
College’s allocated cost for property valuation services is provided annually.   
 
Justification - The Hidalgo County Appraisal District and Starr County Appraisal District 
were considered a sole source and the College and other taxing entities were required to 
use their services to determine the assessed valuation of properties. 
 
Background - Each year the chief appraiser prepares a proposed budget for the 
operations of the appraisal district for the following tax year.  The County’s Appraiser 
submits copies of the budget to each taxing unit participating in the district and an 
estimate of the amount of the budget that will be allocated to each taxing unit. 
 
Texas Property Tax Code Chapter 6 Section 6.06 (d) Appraisal District Budget and 
Financing indicates that the cost is allocated as follows:  “Each taxing unit participating in 
the district is allocated a portion of the amount of the budget equal to the proportion that 
the total dollar amount of property taxes imposed in the district by the unit for the tax year 
in which the budget proposal is prepared bears to the sum of the total dollar amount of 
property taxes imposed in the district by each participating unit for that year”. 
 
Each taxing unit pays its allocation in four equal payments. 
 
The tax year 2015 projected allocations, per the District’s budgets, were $599,139.00 for 
Hidalgo County Appraisal District and $101,082.80 for Starr County Appraisal District, for 
a total of $700,221.80.  The first quarterly invoice was due by December 31, 2015 for 
Starr County and by February 4, 2016 for Hidalgo County. 
 

23



December 15. 2015 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/21/2016 2:51:56 PM 
Page 11 

12‐15‐2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

The Tax Year 2015 allocations changed from the Tax Year 2014 allocations as follows: 
 

 
 

The changes were based on the new year budgets of each Appraisal District.   
 
Funding Source – Funds for these expenditures were budgeted in the Hidalgo 
Appraisal/Collection Fee budget and the Starr Appraisal/Collection Fee budget for           
FY 2015-2016.   
 
Enclosed Documents – The FY 2016 (Tax Year 2015) allocation payments for Hidalgo 
and Starr County Appraisal Districts were provided in the packet for the Board’s 
information and review.    
 
The Finance and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of the 
payments to the Hidalgo County Appraisal District and the Starr County Appraisal District 
for the allocated cost as stated in the Texas Property Tax Code, Chapter 6, Section 6.06 
(e) and as presented as presented. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez and a second by Mr. Roy de León, the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized the payments to the Hidalgo 
County Appraisal District and the Starr County Appraisal District for the allocated cost as 
stated in the Texas Property Tax Code, Chapter 6, Section 6.06 (e) and as presented.  
The motion carried. 
 
 

Review and Action as Necessary on Disposal/Recycle of Technology 
and Electronic Items with an Original Value of $1,000 and Over 

 
Approval was requested for the disposal/recycle of technology and electronic items with 
an original value of $1,000 and over through the Texas Department of Criminal Justice 
(TDCJ), a state of Texas agency approved to properly recycle technology and electronic 
items. 
 
Purpose – The Fixed Asset/Inventory Department requested the disposal/recycle of 
technology and electronic items to be in compliance with the Environmental Protection 
Agency (EPA) regulations.  TDCJ provided an environmentally sound way to dispose of 
surplus technology equipment. 

 2014  2015  Difference 

Hidalgo County $  572,136.00  $  599,139.00  $  27,003.00 

Starr County       99,314.00        101,082.80        1,768.80 

Total $  671,450.00  $  700,221.80  $  28,771.80 

24



December 15. 2015 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/21/2016 2:51:56 PM 
Page 12 

12‐15‐2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Justification – As technology and electronic items become obsolete, out of warranty or 
not functioning, it was disposed of according to South Texas Board Policy #5135 Disposal 
of Surplus Property.  TDCJ was the method of disposal to comply with all EPA regulations.  
They would clean data from all systems, recycle systems that can be repaired for inmate 
training or donation to schools and damaged systems were properly disposed of.   
 
The technology and electronic items were located at the South Texas College, Receiving 
Department, 3700 West Military Hwy Building D., McAllen, Texas. 
 
Reviewers – These items were inspected by the Technology Resources (TR), 
Instructional Technologies, and approved by the Interim Vice President for Information 
Services, Planning & Strategic Initiatives to be disposed after Board approval. 
 
Enclosed Documents – A listing of the technology and electronic items to be 
disposed/recycled was provided in the packet for the Board’s information and review.    
 
Mary Elizondo, Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services, and Becky 
Cavazos, Director of Purchasing, attended the December 8, 2015 Finance and Human 
Resources Committee meeting to address any questions by the committee. 
 
The Finance and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval to 
dispose of/recycle technology and electronic items with an original value of $1,000 and 
over through the Texas Department of Criminal Justice (TDCJ), a State of Texas agency 
approved to properly recycle technology and electronic items as presented. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez and a second by Mr. Roy de León, the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized the disposal/recycling of 
technology and electronic items with an original value of $1,000 and over through the 
Texas Department of Criminal Justice (TDCJ), a State of Texas agency approved to 
properly recycle technology and electronic items as presented.  The motion carried. 
 
 

Update on Status of 2013 Bond Construction Program 
 
The packet included a copy of the presentation prepared by Broaddus and Associates as 
an update on the status of the 2013 Bond Construction Program.  Mr. Gilbert Gallegos 
from Broaddus and Associates presented the update.  No action was taken. 
  

25



December 15. 2015 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/21/2016 2:51:56 PM 
Page 13 

12‐15‐2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Review and Action as Necessary on Additional Services with 
Broaddus and Associates for Structured Cabling (IT) Duct Bank 

Modifications for the 2013 Bond Construction Program 
 
Approval of additional services with Broaddus and Associates for a Structured Cabling 
(IT) Duct Bank Modifications for the 2013 Bond Construction Program was requested. 
 
Purpose 
The existing structured cabling (IT) duct banks required modifications at each of the 
campuses in order to provide data service to the proposed bond program facilities. The 
IT (information technology) duct banks were a series of underground conduits that carry 
the fiber optic data cabling between the buildings. 

Justification 
The design of exterior underground structured cabling (IT) duct banks was not included 
in any current architectural or engineering consultant agreement(s). The existing 
structured cabling (IT) duct banks were located between the buildings and provide the 
required data connectivity for the buildings. 

Background 
Broaddus and Associates met with college staff and WJHW (AV/IT consultant) on October 
26, 2015 to discuss existing duct bank locations at each of the college campuses and 
their relative relationships to proposed Bond Program facilities. Routing options were 
identified and recorded. Broaddus and Associates submitted a proposal in the amount of 
$30,150 which included reimbursable expenses, for additional services to design 
modifications to the exterior underground structured cabling (IT) duct banks. 

Broaddus and Associates would contract with and coordinate these additional services 
with WJHW, and would not charge any additional coordination or management fee to the 
College. 

Funding Source 
Funds were available in the FY 2015-2016 Bond Construction Program Management 
fund. 
 
Enclosed Documents 
A proposal dated November 9, 2015 from Broaddus and Associates was enclosed. 
 
Presenters 
Representatives from Broaddus and Associates attended the Board Meeting to address 
any questions related to this item. 
 
Facilities Committee Discussion 
At the Facilities Committee, Broaddus and Associates was asked why no competitive 
procurement procedures were followed for this project.  Mr. Gilbert Gallegos responded 
that the nature of work was such that it was beneficial to the College to include it as an 
additional service to the current contract with WJHW. 

26



December 15. 2015 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/21/2016 2:51:56 PM 
Page 14 

12‐15‐2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Mr. Gary Gurwitz asked Mr. Gallegos whether the project would be carried out in such a 
way to accommodate future expansion, including routing that would not interfere with 
anticipated construction under the current master plan.  Mr. Gallegos confirmed that the 
ducting would be sufficient for future expansion, and routed to avoid any foreseeable 
conflict under the current master plan. 
 
Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez asked whether the pricing offered for this work by WJHW was 
reasonable, and whether the College had any way to evaluate the proposal without 
competing bids.  Mr. Gallegos asserts that he felt the pricing was reasonable, but agreed 
that no competitive bidding had been followed. 
 
Administration stated that they were quite satisfied with the services provided by WJHW 
and concurred with the recommendation by Broaddus and Associates. 
 
The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval of the additional services with 
Broaddus and Associates in the amount of $30,150, which included reimbursable 
expenses, for Structured Cabling (IT) Duct Bank Modifications for the 2013 Bond 
Construction Program as presented. 
 
At the Board meeting, Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez asked Broaddus & Associates about the 
elimination of reimbursable expenses by working with the vendor to complete the 
additional services in conjunction with previously-approved work.  Mr. Gallegos 
responded that Broaddus & Associates would monitor the vendor’s work and claims. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Mrs. Graciela Farias, the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized the additional services with 
Broaddus and Associates in the amount of $30,150, which included reimbursable 
expenses, for Structured Cabling (IT) Duct Bank Modifications for the 2013 Bond 
Construction Program as presented.  The motion carried. 

 
 

Review and Action as Necessary on Schematic Design of the 2013 
Bond Construction Starr County Campus Library 

 
Approval of schematic design by Mata Garcia Architects for the 2013 Bond Construction 
Starr County Campus Library was requested. 
  
Purpose 
Schematic design is the first phase of basic design services provided by the project design 
team. In this phase, the design team prepares schematic drawings based on the Owner’s 
project program and design meetings with staff. The approval of this phase is necessary 
to establish the basis on which the project design team is given authorization to proceed 
with design development and construction document phases. 
 
Justification 
Once schematic design was approved, Mata Garcia Architects would proceed to prepare 
all necessary design development drawings and specifications in preparation for the 
construction documents phase using college design standards as well as all applicable 
codes and ordinances. The phases of a construction project are as follows: 1.) Schematic 

27



December 15. 2015 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/21/2016 2:51:56 PM 
Page 15 

12‐15‐2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Design, 2.) Design Development, 3.) Construction Documents, 4.) Guaranteed Maximum 
Price, 5.) Construction, and 6.) Closeout 
 
The Construction Manager-at-Risk provides preconstruction services during the design 
processes leading to the construction phase. A Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) would 
then be developed and will be presented to the Facilities Committee for review at a future 
date. 
 
Background 
As previously authorized by the Board of Trustees, Mata Garcia Architects began working 
with Broaddus and Associates, Facilities Planning and Construction, and college staff to 
develop plans and elevations. The proposed Starr County Campus Library project was 
part of the 2013 Bond Construction Program and included the following scope: 
 

 Architect 
 Mata Garcia Architects 

 
 Construction Manager-at-Risk 

 D. Wilson Construction 
 

 Construction Cost Limitation (CCL) 
 $2,800,000 

 
 Program Scope   

 SQ FT – 18,516 
o Original Program SF 16,516 

 1 Floor 
 Student Entrances and Lobby 
 Learning Commons 
 Multi-Purpose and Group Study 
 Circulation 
 Collection 
 Administrative Work / Support 
 

Funding Source 
The current Construction Cost Limitation (CCL) was $2,800,000 and would be adjusted 
once the Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) proposals were submitted by the 
Construction Manager-at-Risk to be presented to the Board for approval. Bond funds 
were budgeted in the Bond Construction budget for fiscal year 2015-2016. 
 
Reviewers 
The proposed schematic design was reviewed by Broaddus and Associates and staff 
from Facilities Planning and Construction, Operations and Maintenance, Administration, 
Library, Instructional Technologies, and Technology Resources departments. 
 
 
 
 

28



December 15. 2015 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/21/2016 2:51:56 PM 
Page 16 

12‐15‐2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Enclosed Documents 
Mata Garcia Architects developed a schematic presentation describing the proposed 
design. Drawings of the site plan, floor plans, and exterior views were provided in the 
packet. 
 
Presenters 
Representatives from Broaddus and Associates and Mata Garcia Architects attended the 
Regular Board Meeting to present the schematic design of the proposed expansion 
project. 
 
The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval of the proposed schematic design 
of the 2013 Bond Construction Starr County Campus Library as presented. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Ms. Rose Benavidez, the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized the proposed schematic design 
of the 2013 Bond Construction Starr County Campus Library as presented.  The motion 
carried. 
 
 

Review and Action as Necessary on Solicitation of Request for 
Proposals (RFP) for Insurance Agent Services to establish an Owner-

Controlled Insurance Program for the 2013 Bond Construction 
Program 

 
Approval to solicit for insurance agent services to establish an owner-controlled insurance 
program for the 2013 Bond Construction program was requested. 

 
Background 
An Owner-Controlled Insurance Program (OCIP) is a program of insurance policies held 
by a property owner during the construction or renovation of a property, which is typically 
designed to cover virtually all liability and loss arising from the construction project.  The 
policies solicited may include the following OCIP Insurance coverages: 
 

a. Worker’s Compensation, including Employer’s Liability 
b. Commercial General Liability 
c. Umbrella and/or Excess Liability 
d. Builder’s Risk 
e. Environmental 
f. Other necessary or appropriate coverage 

 
The OCIP would be designed to protect the District, its agents, contractors, and 
subcontractors of every tier from loss resulting from construction related activities. 
Coverage will not be extended to materials, dealers, delivery persons, and other who do 
not have employees working on the construction site. 
 

29



December 15. 2015 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/21/2016 2:51:56 PM 
Page 17 

12‐15‐2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

The traditional method for insuring construction consists of each general contractor and 
sub-contractor obtaining their own insurance policies from any provider of their choosing. 
In turn, they build their policy premiums into their cost structure, which in turn becomes 
part of their bids. This means that by accepting a general contractor's successful bid, the 
property owner is indirectly paying for administrative overhead at dozens of separate 
insurance brokers and insurance companies. 
 
Description / Details 
Under an Owner-Controller Insurance Program (OCIP), a policy would be purchased by 
the College as part of a single policy from one or more insurers. South Texas College 
would purchase coverage exclusively for the entire bond project.  
 

The selected agent would obtain and analyze market quotations and provide 
recommendations to South Texas College for the different types of insurances. 
 
Benefits of using an OCIP 

1. The Policy would be purchased at one (1) policy premium versus several 
spread   among contractors and subcontractors. 

2. The College gains direct control over premiums and coverage terms by working 
directly with an intergovernmental risk pool or an insurance agent. 

3. The College chooses its insurance limits and policy terms and conditions. 
4. The completed operations portion follows the state statute of repose. Assuming 

the course of the construction is three (3) years, the policy period and the extended 
completed operations period would be thirteen (13) years (3+10=13). 

5. Litigation – the College would deal with one set of policies as opposed to the 
contractor and sub-contractor carriers. 

6. Allows for maximizing local participation by including subcontractors which might 
not otherwise have access to meeting insurance requirements 

7. Savings will be realized implementing this program 
 
The proposed timeline was as follows: 
 

# Process Date 

1 Request for Proposals (RFP) Advertised December 21, 2015
December 28, 2015

2 RFP Issued to Prospective Bidders December 21, 2015

3 Proposals Due January 5, 2016

4 Evaluation of Proposals January 7, 2016

5 Facilities Committee Review January 12, 2016

6  Board Approval to Award Contract January 26, 2016

7 Negotiate the Contract with the Awarded Agent January 27-29, 2016

8 Agent would Solicit Insurance Coverage Proposals February 1-19, 2016

9 Agent would Evaluate Insurance Proposals February 22-25, 2016

30



December 15. 2015 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/21/2016 2:51:56 PM 
Page 18 

12‐15‐2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

10 Agent would provide Insurance Information with 
recommendations to South Texas College 

February 26, 2016

11 Insurance Proposals Summary would be on March 
Facilities Committee agenda for consideration 

March 8, 2016

12 Facilities Committee would provide a 
recommendation at the March Board Meeting for 
the purchase of insurance coverage 

March 29, 2016

 
Presentation at the Facilities Committee 
Raul Cabaza, the college’s risk management consultant, reviewed the Owner-Controlled 
Insurance Program with the Committee and responded to their questions.  It was his 
independent recommendation that the College consider an OCIP program based not only 
on the possible cost savings, but also the benefit of having fewer total policies in the event 
of insured losses. 
 
The Committee asked how the Board would assess whether the College realized true 
savings from the implementation of an OCIP structure.  Mr. Gilbert Gallegos responded 
that the contractors would be expected to include insurance within their initial proposals, 
and then Broaddus and Associates would then work with them to remove any costs for 
insurance policies that would be duplicative with policies carried by the College under its 
OCIP. 
 
Legal Counsel asked which services would be included in an OCIP as established under 
this RFP.  Mr. Cabaza clarified that the RFP was to solicit the agent, who would then be 
responsible to find adequate insurance products for the Board’s review.  Mr. Cabaza 
agreed that any agent responding to the RFP would be required to be able to obtain 
policies for each of the proposed types of coverage, for review and approval at the Board’s 
discretion.  
 
The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval to solicit for insurance agent 
services to establish an owner-controlled insurance program for the 2013 Bond 
Construction program as presented. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez, the Board 
of Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized the solicitation of insurance 
agent services to establish an owner-controlled insurance program for the 2013 Bond 
Construction program as presented.  The motion carried. 
 
 
Review and Action as Necessary on Contracting Consultant Services 

for Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment (FF&E) for the 2103 Bond 
Construction Program 

 
Approval of contracting consultant services for Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment (FF&E) 
for the 2013 Bond Construction program was requested. 
 
 

31



December 15. 2015 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/21/2016 2:51:56 PM 
Page 19 

12‐15‐2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Purpose 
Authorization was requested to approve a consultant to assist the college in the 
development of FF&E standards, acquisition of FF&E property, and the selection, 
coordination, and placement of FF&E in the 2013 Bond Construction program buildings. 
 
Justification 
Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment consultant services were necessary to assist in the 
acquisition of FF&E property for the bond construction buildings.  
 
Staff recommended that a consultant be secured to properly manage the large volume of 
FF&E to be acquired and installed within a short time frame for all of the 2013 Bond 
Construction program buildings.  
 
A list of services that would be provided was as follows: 

 Identify existing FF&E property to be incorporated into new and renovated 
buildings 

 Create and update FF&E standards 
 Review and alter all floor plan layouts provided by design teams 
 Produce bid documents for procurement 
 Update cost estimates 
 Develop strategies to maximize value and cost savings through volume 

purchasing 
 Coordinate and provide oversight during ordering, fabrication, delivery, and 

installation  
 Confirm deliveries, proper installation, and prepare punch list  
 Receive and review Operations and Maintenance Manuals submitted by 

vendors 
 Follow up on  repair and replacement of punch list items or undelivered product 

 

Background 
Solicitation for Request for Proposals for these services began on November 9, 2015. A 
total of four (4) proposals were received on November 24, 2015. 
 

Timeline for Solicitation for Request for Proposals 

November 9, 2015 Solicitation for Request for Proposals began. 

November 24, 2015 Four (4) proposals were received. 

 
Based on the evaluations, the highest ranked firm was HPG Design Group, LLC in the 
amount of $237,090. 
 
Facilities Committee Presentation 
At the December 8, 2015 Facilities Committee it was noted that there were two instances 
in which the first- and second-ranked respondents’ bids were exactly the same, for the 
Pecan Campus and for the Mid Valley Campus.  Two other responses from the same firms, 
for the Nursing & Allied Health Campus and the Starr County Campus, were significantly 
different. 
 

32



December 15. 2015 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/21/2016 2:51:56 PM 
Page 20 

12‐15‐2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

The Committee asked staff to verify that the numbers were reported correctly, and staff 
verified that the numbers provided in the Committee packet were accurate and matched 
the proposals submitted by the firms.   
 
Funding Source 
Funds for these expenditures were budgeted in the bond construction budget for FY 2015-
2016. 
 
Reviewers 
The proposals were reviewed by Broaddus and Associates and staff from the Facilities 
Planning and Construction, Library, and Purchasing departments. 
 

Enclosed Documents 
The evaluation team including college staff and Broaddus and Associates prepared the 
summary of scoring and ranking for review by the Facilities Committee. 
 
The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval of the consultant services for 
Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment (FF&E) for the 2013 Bond Construction program with 
HPG Design Group, LLC in the amount of $237,090 as presented. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Mr. Jesse Villarreal, the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized the consultant services for 
Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment (FF&E) for the 2013 Bond Construction program with 
HPG Design Group, LLC in the amount of $237,090 as presented.  The motion carried. 
 
 

Review and Action as Necessary on Contracting Civil Engineering 
Services for the Asphalt Resurfacing of the Pecan Campus East Loop 

Road (Non-Bond) 
 
Approval to contract civil engineering design services for the Asphalt Resurfacing of the 
Pecan Campus East Loop Road (Non-Bond) was requested. 
 
Purpose 
The procurement of a civil engineer would provide for design services necessary for the 
Asphalt Resurfacing of the Pecan Campus East Loop Road (Non-Bond) project.   
 
Justification 
The procurement of a civil engineer would allow for the engineer to work with staff to 
prepare all necessary design development drawings and specifications in preparation for 
the construction documents phase using college design standards as well as all 
applicable codes and ordinances. Construction documents would then be issued for 
solicitation of construction proposals. Once received, construction proposals would be 
evaluated and submitted to the Board of Trustees with a recommendation to award a 
construction contract. 
 
Background 
The existing loop road east of Building F was over fifteen years old and in need of asphalt 
resurfacing. As part of the deferred maintenance plan, the Facilities Planning and 

33



December 15. 2015 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/21/2016 2:51:56 PM 
Page 21 

12‐15‐2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Construction and Facilities Operations and Maintenance departments scheduled the 
replacement of the asphalt resurfacing.  
 
In order to proceed with the design of the resurfacing, staff recommended contracting civil 
engineering services for preparation of plans and specifications.  This was scheduled to 
be constructed during the summer of 2016 while there is less vehicular traffic.  
 
Four civil engineering firms listed below were previously approved by the Board at the 
March 31, 2015 Board meeting for one year to provide professional services as needed 
for projects under $500,000. 
 

1. Halff Associates, Inc. 
2. Melden and Hunt 
3. Perez Consulting Engineering 
4. R. Gutierrez Engineering 

 
Based on the following criteria, Melden and Hunt was recommended to provide civil 
engineering services for this project. 
 

 Previous experience with resurfacing of asphalt projects 
 Experience with similar projects  
 Familiarity with the College’s standards 

 
Funding Source 
Funds were available in the FY 2015 – 2016 renewals and renewals budget for design 
and construction of these improvements, with the final engineering fees to be negotiated. 
 

Project Budget 
Budget 

Components 
Amount 

Budgeted 
Actual Cost 

Design $8,000 
Actual design fees are estimated and will be 
finalized during contract negotiations. 

Construction $75,000 
Actual cost will be determined after the solicitation 
of construction proposals. 

 
Enclosed Documents 
The packet included a site plan indicating the proposed resurfacing location. 
 
The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval to contract civil engineering 
services with Melden and Hunt for the Asphalt Resurfacing of the Pecan Campus East 
Loop Road (Non-Bond) project as presented. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Mr. Roy de León, the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized contracting civil engineering 
services with Melden and Hunt for the Asphalt Resurfacing of the Pecan Campus East 
Loop Road (Non-Bond) project as presented.  The motion carried. 
 
  

34



December 15. 2015 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/21/2016 2:51:56 PM 
Page 22 

12‐15‐2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Review and Action as Necessary on Contracting Civil Engineering 
Services for the Asphalt Resurfacing of the Nursing & Allied Health 

Campus Parking Lot 2 (Non-Bond) 
 

Approval to contract civil engineering design services for the Asphalt Resurfacing of the 
Nursing and Allied Health Campus Parking Lot 2 (Non-Bond) was requested. 
 
Purpose 
The procurement of a civil engineer would provide for design services necessary for the 
Asphalt Resurfacing of the Nursing and Allied Health Campus Parking Lot 2 (Non-Bond) 
project. 
 
Justification 
The procurement of a civil engineer would allow for the engineer to work with staff to 
prepare all necessary design development drawings and specifications in preparation for 
the construction documents phase using college design standards as well as all 
applicable codes and ordinances. Construction documents would then be issued for 
solicitation of construction proposals. Once received, construction proposals would be 
evaluated and submitted to the Board of Trustees with a recommendation to award a 
construction contract. 
 
Background 
The existing Parking Lot 2 located on the east side of the Nursing and Allied Health 
building is over 15 years old and in need of asphalt resurfacing. As part of the deferred 
maintenance plan, the Facilities Planning and Construction and Facilities Operations and 
Maintenance departments have scheduled the replacement of the asphalt resurfacing.  
 
In order to proceed with the design of the resurfacing of the parking area, staff 
recommends contracting civil engineering services for preparation of plans and 
specifications.  This project was scheduled to be constructed during the summer of 2016 
while there is less vehicular traffic.  
 
Four civil engineering firms listed below were previously approved by the Board at the 
March 31, 2015 Board meeting for one year to provide professional services as needed 
for projects under $500,000. 
 

1. Halff Associates, Inc. 
2. Melden and Hunt 
3. Perez Consulting Engineering 
4. R. Gutierrez Engineering 

 
Based on the following criteria, Perez Consulting Engineers was recommended to provide 
civil engineering services for this project. 

 Previous experience with resurfacing of asphalt projects  
 Experience with similar projects  
 Familiarity with the college’s standards 

 
Funding Source 
Funds were available in the FY 2015 – 2016 construction budget for design and 
construction of these improvements, with the final engineering fees to be negotiated. 

35



December 15. 2015 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/21/2016 2:51:56 PM 
Page 23 

12‐15‐2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

 
Project Budget 

Budget 
Components 

Amount 
Budgeted 

Actual Cost 

Design $25,000 
Actual design fees are estimated and will be 
finalized during contract negotiations. 

Construction $250,000 
Actual cost will be determined after the solicitation 
of construction proposals. 

 
Enclosed Documents 
The packet included a site plan indicating the location of the proposed parking area. 
 
The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval to contract civil engineering 
services with Perez Consulting Engineers for the Asphalt Resurfacing of the Nursing and 
Allied Health Campus Parking Lot 2 (Non-Bond) project as presented. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Ms. Rose Benavidez, the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized contracting civil engineering 
services with Perez Consulting Engineers for the Asphalt Resurfacing of the Nursing and 
Allied Health Campus Parking Lot 2 (Non-Bond) project as presented.  The motion 
carried. 
 

 
Review and Action as Necessary on Contracting Civil Engineering 

Services for the Technology Campus General Motors Vehicle Storage 
Lot (Non-Bond) 

 
Approval to contract civil engineering design services for the Technology Campus 
General Motors Vehicle Storage Lot (Non-Bond) was requested. 
 
Purpose 
The procurement of a civil engineer would provide for design services necessary for the 
Technology Campus General Motors Vehicle Storage Lot (Non-Bond) project. 
 
Justification 
The procurement of a civil engineer would allow for the engineer to work with staff to 
prepare all necessary design development drawings and specifications in preparation for 
the construction documents phase using college design standards as well as all 
applicable codes and ordinances. Construction documents would then be issued for 
solicitation of construction proposals. Once received, construction proposals would be 
evaluated and submitted to the Board of Trustees with a recommendation to award a 
construction contract. 
 
Background 
The current vehicle storage lot at the Technology Campus was constructed of a caliche 
surface. Faculty requested that the parking storage lot be paved in order to address 
various maintenance issues as indicated below.  

36



December 15. 2015 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/21/2016 2:51:56 PM 
Page 24 

12‐15‐2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

 Regular lawn maintenance was needed due to weed growth 
 Proper drainage was needed due to a low finish floor elevation 
 Donated vehicles needed to be stored in a secure and protected area 

 
In order to proceed with the design of the parking area, staff recommended contracting 
civil engineering services for preparation of plans and specifications. This was scheduled 
to be constructed during the summer of 2016.  
 
Four civil engineering firms listed below were previously approved by the Board at the 
March 31, 2015 Board meeting for one year to provide professional services as needed 
for projects under $500,000. 
 

1. Halff Associates, Inc. 
2. Melden and Hunt 
3. Perez Consulting Engineering 
4. R. Gutierrez Engineering 

 
Based on the following criteria, R. Gutierrez Engineers was recommended to provide civil 
engineering services for this project. 

 Previous experience with parking facilities  
 Experience with similar projects  
 Familiarity with the college’s standards 

 
Funding Source 
Funds were available in the FY 2015 – 2016 construction budget for design and 
construction of these improvements, with the final engineering fees to be negotiated. 
 

Project Budget 
Budget 

Components 
Amount 

Budgeted 
Actual Cost 

Design $11,250 
Actual design fees are estimated and will be 
finalized during contract negotiations. 

Construction $125,000 
Actual cost will be determined after the solicitation 
of construction proposals. 

 
Enclosed Documents 
The packet included a site plan indicating the location of the proposed parking area. 
 
The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval to contract civil engineering 
services with R. Gutierrez Engineers for the Technology Campus General Motors Vehicle 
Storage Lot (Non-Bond) project as presented. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Ms. Rose Benavidez. the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized contracting civil engineering 
services with R. Gutierrez Engineers for the Technology Campus General Motors Vehicle 
Storage Lot (Non-Bond) project as presented.  The motion carried. 
 
 

37



December 15. 2015 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/21/2016 2:51:56 PM 
Page 25 

12‐15‐2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Review and Action as Necessary on Substantial Completion for Pecan 
Plaza Resurface Alley Side of Building B 

 
Approval of substantial completion of the Pecan Plaza Resurface Alley Side of Building 
B project was requested. 
 
Halff Associates and college staff visited the site and developed a construction punch list.  
As a result of this site visit and observation of the completed work, a Certificate of 
Substantial Completion for the project was certified on November 3, 2015. Substantial 
Completion was accomplished within the time allowed in the Owner/Contractor 
agreement for this project.  A copy of the Substantial Completion Certificate was included 
in the packet. 
 
Contractor 5 Star Construction would continue working on the punch list items identified 
and would have thirty (30) days to complete before final completion can be recommended 
for approval.  It was anticipated that final acceptance of this project would be 
recommended for approval at the January 2016 Board meeting. 
 
The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval of the substantial completion of 
the Pecan Plaza Resurface Alley Side of Building B as presented. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Mrs. Graciela Farias, the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized the substantial completion of 
the Pecan Plaza Resurface Alley Side of Building B as presented.  The motion carried. 
 
 

Update on Status of Non-Bond Program Construction Projects 
 
The Facilities Planning and Construction staff prepared the attached design and 
construction update. This update summarized the status of each capital improvement 
project currently in progress. Mary Elizondo and Rick de la Garza attended the meeting 
to respond to questions and address concerns of the Board. 
 
Non-Bond Technology Campus Cooling Tower Replacement Project 
 
At the September 22, 2015 board meeting, staff was authorized to negotiate the final 
completion and close out of the Technology Campus Cooling Tower Replacement with 
Pro Tech Mechanical. A delay in the completion of this project resulted in possible 
liquidated damages being incurred. The contractor worked to complete all pending items 
needed to close out the project but a new concern surfaced. This item could also affect 
the liquidated damages provision in the contract. Staff continued to work with Halff 
Associates and the contractor on resolving this issue. Therefore, a recommendation was 
not provided at this time but an appropriate recommendation would be provided at a 
subsequent Facilities Committee meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 

38



December 15. 2015 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/21/2016 2:51:56 PM 
Page 26 

12‐15‐2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Non-Bond Relocation of Portable Buildings at the Pecan Campus 

Original Plan  
At the July 28, 2015 Board meeting, the Board of Trustees approved and authorized a 
revised plan for relocation of Pecan Campus portable buildings. A total of 14 existing 
portable buildings needed to be relocated to allow for the construction of the Bond 
projects. Twelve of the portables were being relocated to the west side of Pecan Campus 
along the west loop road. The remaining two portables needed to be relocated to the 
south side of campus to replace two auctioned portables as part of the revised Board 
approved plan. 
 
Updated Plan 
College staff requested the use of two portable buildings (PB 18 and PB 19) for the Spring 
2016 semester. These portables were planned to be relocated to the south side of 
campus to replace PB 9 and PB 10 which were going to be auctioned. This new request 
would relocate PB18 and PB19 to the west side of the Pecan Campus West Academic 
Building. This updated relocation request would require additional engineering services 
for the electrical and data infrastructure required for the portable buildings. 
 
These items were for the Board’s information, and no action was taken at this time. 
 
 

Consideration and Approval of Checks and Financial Reports 
 
Board action was requested to approve the checks for release and the financial reports 
for the month of November 2015.  The approval was for checks submitted for release in 
the amount greater than $125,000.00 and checks in the amount greater than $25,000.00 
that were released as authorized by Board Policy No. 5610. 
 
Mrs. Mary Elizondo, Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services, provided a 
review of the Financial Report for the month of November 2015, and was available to 
respond to questions posed by the Board. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Roy de León and a second by Mr. Jesse Villarreal, the Board of 
Trustees approved the submitted checks for release in an amount over $125,000.00, the 
checks that were released as authorized by Board Policy #5610, and the financial reports 
submitted for the month of November 2015.  The motion carried. 
 
 

Announcements 
 

A. Next Meetings: 

 Tuesday, December 8, 2015 

 3:00 p.m. – Education and Workforce Development Committee 
 4:00 p.m. – Facilities Committee 
 5:30 p.m. – Finance & HR Committee meeting 

 
 

39



December 15. 2015 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/21/2016 2:51:56 PM 
Page 27 

12‐15‐2015 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

 Tuesday, December 15, 2015 

 5:30 p.m. – Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees 
 

B. Other Announcements: 

 The College will be closed November 26 – 29th in observance of the 
Thanksgiving Holiday. 

 The Winter 2015 Commencement Ceremonies will be held Saturday, 
December 12, 2015 at the State Farm Arena, Hidalgo, Texas: 

10:00 a.m. Ceremony 

o Bachelor Program 
o Business and Technology 
o Nursing and Allied Health 

 
2:00 p.m. Ceremony 

o Liberal Arts 
o Mathematics and Science 
o Social and Behavioral Sciences 

 
 The Board Holiday Dinner will be held Tuesday, December 15, 2015  

@ 7:30 p.m. at Hacienda Del Patron, 4401 W Expy 83, McAllen, TX 78503 

 

Adjournment: 
There being no further business to discuss, the Regular Meeting of the South Texas 
College Board of Trustees adjourned at 6:37 p.m. 
 
I certify the foregoing are the true and correct minutes of the Tuesday, December 15, 
2015 Regular Board Meeting of the South Texas College Board of Trustees. 
  
 

Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez 

Secretary  
 

40



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 3 

Approval and Authorization to Accept Grant Award(s) 
 
Authorization to accept and approve the following grant awards and use of related funds 
as authorized by each grant is requested: 
 
1. Additional Funds (Reallocation) for the “Carl Perkins Basic Grant” from the 

Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board 
 

Additional funds for the “Carl Perkins Basic Grant” Award have been reallocated to 
South Texas College in the amount of $47,247 for the period of September 1, 2015, 
through August 31, 2016.  This reallocation from the Texas Higher Education 
Coordinating Board (THECB) would provide funds for instructional resources and 
software, professional development, program promotion, and other expenditures as 
approved by the entire awarded grant amount, totaling $1,466,258. 
 
Carl Perkins funds are awarded to community and technical colleges to improve 
graduation, retention, access, quality, and expansion of Career and Technical 
Education programs.  
 
The THECB reallocates unexpended funds from a state pool to qualified grant 
recipients.  These funds come from unexpended prior-year grant funds and/or 
unallocated current year funds, and are awarded to recipients following the same 
allocation formula used to establish initial rewards. Yearly reallocation funds are not 
guaranteed. 
 
This grant heavily supports STC’s Strategic Directions One and Two: Clear Pathway, 
as well as Access and Success. Thirty (30) Career and Technical Education 
instructional programs have been selected from the Divisions of Nursing and Allied 
Health; Business and Technology; and Liberal Arts & Social Sciences for improvement 
with these funds. In support of Career and Technical Education programs and 
students, funds will also be provided to the Academic Affairs, Student Affairs & 
Enrollment Management, Continuing and Professional Workforce Education, and 
Information Services and Planning areas. 

 
2. The “WIA Statewide Funding for Industry – Recognized Skills Certification 

Initiative” Grant from the Lower Rio Grande Valley Workforce Development 
Board, Inc., DBA Workforce Solutions 

 
The “WIA Statewide Funding for Industry – Recognized Skills Certification Initiative” 
grant from the Lower Rio Grande Valley Workforce Development Board, Inc., DBA 
Workforce Solutions (hereinafter referred to as Workforce Solutions) would fund 
workforce development programs beginning February 1, 2016, through June 30, 2016, 
in the amount of $108,000.  
 
As part of these efforts, Workforce Solutions is awarding South Texas College 
$108,000 to purchase equipment, which will be used to provide training to eligible 
participants under a Texas Workforce Commission WIA Statewide Funding for 
Industry – Recognized Skills Certification Initiative (IRSC) for packaging Machinery 
Manufacturing Institutes (PMMI). STC will partner with Workforce Solutions to 

41



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 4 

purchase this equipment in an effort to provide adult education and training, which are 
key to prepare job seekers with the skills necessary for success in jobs that meet 
employer demand. These services will improve the skills, education and literacy 
levels, subsequent employment, and job retention and earnings for our communities. 
 
This grant meets South Texas College’s Strategic Direction Three: South Texas 
College engages in effective, proven efforts to ensure student success and positively 
affect the economic and social mobility of residents in our region. In addition, the grant 
meets Strategic Direction Five for Collaboration: South Texas College commits to 
effective interdepartmental and interdivisional collaborations and advances mutually 
beneficial community and educational partnerships that create a collective impact on 
student success. 
 

The presented grants would provide up to $155,247 in additional funding for the College 
to provide services and opportunities throughout the region. 
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended the Board of Trustees approve and authorize accepting the following 
grant awards and use of related funds as authorized by each grant, contingent upon 
official award as appropriate: 
 
1. Additional Funds (Reallocation) for the “Carl Perkins Basic Grant” from the Texas 

Higher Education Coordinating Board 
2. The “WIA Statewide Funding for Industry – Recognized Skills Certification Initiative” 

Grant from the Lower Rio Grande Valley Workforce Development Board, Inc., DBA 
Workforce Solutions 

3. Additional Grant(s) Received/Pending Official Award 
 
The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees:  
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes accepting the 
following grant awards and using related funds as authorized by each grant, contingent 
upon official award as appropriate: 
 
1. Additional Funds (Reallocation) for the “Carl Perkins Basic Grant” from the Texas 

Higher Education Coordinating Board 
2. The “WIA Statewide Funding for Industry – Recognized Skills Certification Initiative” 

Grant from the Lower Rio Grande Valley Workforce Development Board, Inc., DBA 
Workforce Solutions 

3. Additional Grant(s) Received/Pending Official Award 
 

Approval Recommended: 
 
 
Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D. 
President   

 
 

42



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 5 

Advisement from Hidalgo County Judge Ramon Garcia Regarding 
County Intent to Enter Tax Abatement Agreement 

 
Hidalgo County Judge Ramon Garcia has submitted a notice that Hidalgo County 
intended to enter into a tax abatement agreement with South Texas Electric Coop, Inc.   
 
The letter, dated November 11, 2015, was submitted to the College in accordance with 
state law, which required the County to notify the governing bodies of each other taxing 
unit in which property subject to the agreement is located.   
 
This letter was written to notify the College of anticipated future action of the Hidalgo 
County Commissioners’ Court, and the letter was received on December 15, 2015. 
 
Mr. Jesus Ramirez, Legal Counsel, has advised that the intended action by the County 
would not impact the College’s tax levy against those same properties.  Any subsequent 
abatement of the College’s levy against those properties would be at the sole discretion 
of the South Texas College Board of Trustees.   
 
This item is presented for the Board’s information and no action is requested. 

 
  

 
  

43



44



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 6 

Review and Action as Necessary on Proposed New Policy 
#3301: Definition of Semester Credit Hours 

 
Approval of the proposed new Policy #3301: Definition of Semester Credit Hours is 
requested. 
 
This would be a new policy, and is proposed for adoption by the Board for compliance 
with requirements by the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools Council on 
Colleges (SACS-COC). 
 
The policy codifies the College’s adherence to the Texas Lower Division Academic 
Course Guide Manual for academic transfer courses, and the Texas Workforce Education 
Course Manual for technical courses when determining the amount and level of credit 
awarded for all courses. 
 
The Policy also defines the credit hour as the basic measure of engaged learning time 
expected of a student, including time in classrooms, labs, internships, studios, clinical, 
practicums, cooperative educational experiences, and out-of-class preparation time. 
 
Finally, the Policy identifies various modes of instruction offered at South Texas College, 
to include traditional and non-traditional instruction. 
 
The Policy has been reviewed by the President’s Cabinet, the Academic Council, and the 
Planning and Development Council. 

 
The Education and Workforce Development Committee recommended Board approval of 
the proposed new Policy #3301: Definition of Semester Credit Hours as presented and 
which would supersede any previously adopted Board policy. 
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the proposed new Policy #3301: Definition of Semester Credit Hours as 
presented and which would supersede any previously adopted Board policy. 
 
The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the proposed 
new Policy #3301: Definition of Semester Credit Hours as presented and which would 
supersede any previously adopted Board policy. 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D. 
President  

45



MANUAL OF POLICY 

Title Definition of Semester Credit Hours 3301 

Legal Authority Approval of the Board of Trustees Page 1 of 1 

Date Approved by Board Board Minute Order dated January 26, 2016 

 

South Texas College employs sound and acceptable practices for determining the amount and 
level of credit awarded for courses. The College adheres to the Texas Lower Division 
Academic Course Guide Manual for academic transfer courses and the Texas Workforce 
Education Course Manual for technical courses to determine the amount and level of credit 
awarded for all courses whether face-to-face, online, hybrid, or other delivery modes. 
 
The semester credit hour provides the basis for measuring the amount of engaged learning time 
expected of a typical student enrolled in the traditional classroom settings and in laboratories, 
internships, studios, clinicals, practicums, and cooperative education experiences and in distance 
and correspondence education. The value of a credit hour can be determined by contact time, the 
educational experience, and out-of-class preparation by the student. 
 
A semester credit hour is an amount of work represented in intended learning outcomes and 
verified by evidence of student achievement, for the various modes of instruction offered at 
South Texas College, in accordance with the following: 
 

1. For traditionally-delivered courses during traditional long semesters, meet not less than 
one (1) hour each week during a traditional long semester, approximately sixteen (16) 
weeks. This includes not less than one (1) hour each week for approximately fifteen (15) 
weeks of direct faculty instruction, a minimum of two (2) hours out-of-class student work 
each week for each credit hour; plus additional contact hours for a final examination or 
final experience.  
 

2. Face-to-face courses that are offered in less than a sixteen (16) week semester will consist 
of the same number of class contact hours have the same learner outcomes and quality of 
instruction as sixteen (16) week semester courses.  
 

3. At least an equivalent amount of work is required for other academic activities including 
laboratories, internships, studios, clinicals, practicums, and cooperative education 
experiences and other academic work that lead to the award of credit.  
 

4. Online, hybrid and other nontraditional modes of delivery, may not meet the contact 
hours assigned above. In such instances, the semester credit hour is based upon the 
learning outcomes and estimated contact hours required to successfully meet those 
outcomes. Faculty review these courses to ensure that the learning outcomes and quality 
of instruction is equivalent to traditionally-delivered courses. 
 

5. In determining the amount of coursework to achieve learning competencies and 
outcomes, South Texas College takes into account and considers alternative delivery 
methods, measurements of student work, academic calendars, disciplines, and degree 
levels.  
 

6. These definitions and this policy pertain to all courses offered by the South Texas 
College regardless of location or mode of delivery.  

New
 P

oli
cy

46



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 7 

Review of Presentation to the Education and Workforce 
Development Committee: 

 
The following presentation was delivered to the Education and Workforce Development 
Committee on Tuesday, January 12, 2015: 
 

1. Presentation of South Texas College Workforce Training Opportunities for 
Industry Partners in Reynosa 
 
Mr. Carlos Margo, Interim Associate Dean, The Office of Industry Training & 
Economic Development, and Mr. Mario Reyna, Dean for Business and 
Technology, presented on workforce training opportunities for industry partners in 
Reynosa, through a proposed partnership with Instituto Internacional de Estudios 
Superiores (IIES). 
 
The College identified this strategy as an opportunity to improve regional prosperity 
in the South Texas College service area, Hidalgo and Starr counties, through 
collaboration with the maquiladoras in Reynosa.  Through offering workforce 
development training to industrial partners across the border, the local economy 
would see increased activity.  The Federal Reserve Bank of Dallas estimated that 
a 10 percent increase in maquiladora output leads to a 6.6 percent increase in total 
employment in McAllen. 
 
For this reason, the proposed initiative was supported by the McAllen Economic 
Development Corporation as well as by INDEX Reynosa. 
 
Successful collaboration with IIES in Reynosa and development of improved 
workforce training in industrial partners across the border will also contribute to a 
greater profile for the Rio Grande Valley in attracting global businesses to invest 
in the area, increasing the demand for high skilled workers and providing a boon 
to the local economy.  
 
Staff was working to determine the feasibility of creating a 501(c)(3) to serve as a 
conduit for this international collaboration. 
 
Staff was also investigating the possibility of further collaboration with IIES, which 
currently included a high school of about 250 students, as well as higher education 
programs including two Associates Degrees, five Bachelors Degrees, and one 
Masters Degree.   

 
This presentations was for the Committee’s information and feedback to staff, and no 
action was requested. 
  

47



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 8 

Review and Action as Necessary on Award of Proposals, Rejection of 
Proposal, Purchases, and Renewals  

 
Approval of the following proposal awards, reject a proposal, purchases, and renewals will 
is requested:     
 

A. Awards 
B. Non-Instructional Items 

 C. Technology Items 

 
A. Awards 
 
1) Firefighter Equipment (Award) 
Award the proposal for firefighter equipment to Municipal Emergency Services, Inc. 
(Houston, TX), at a total cost of $19,658.00. 
 
Purpose – The Fire Science Program in the Division of Technology is requesting the 
purchase of firefighter equipment for student instruction in the Basic Fire Academy. 
 
Justification and Benefit – The firefighter equipment is needed for hands on instruction in 
the Basic Fire Academy.  This equipment will allow students to better understand the use 
and need of these types of firefighting equipment.  It will help better prepare the students 
when hired as a firefighter. 
 
Background - Proposal documents were advertised on November 16, 2015 and November 
23, 2015 and issued to three (3) vendors.  One (1) response was received on December 
1, 2015 and reviewed by the Fire Science Program and Purchasing Department. 
 
Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Carl Perkins grant budget for FY 2015-
2016. 
 
2) Purchase and Installation of Digital Readout Units (Award)  
Award the proposal for the purchase and installation of digital readout units to MSC 
Industrial Supply, Co. (Harlingen, TX), at a total cost of $11,030.60. 
 
Purpose – The Precision Manufacturing Technology (PMT) Program in the Division of 
Technology is requesting the purchase of seven (7) digital readout units for student 
instruction in the Basic Machine Shop and Intermediate Machining courses.  
 
Justification and Benefit – The digital readout units will be installed in lathes located at 
the Technology Campus and Pharr Center.  They will be used for instruction and 
machining to provide accurate and precise measurements during machining and cutting 
operations. The digital read outs are essential for class instruction and an important tool 
for students to learn. 
 
Background – Proposal documents were advertised on November 9, 2015 and November 
16, 2015 and issued to five (5) vendors.  Two (2) responses were received on November 

48



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 9 

24, 2015 and reviewed by the Precision Manufacturing Technology Program and 
Purchasing Department. 
 
Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Carl Perkins grant budget for FY 2015-
2016. 
 
3) Signs, Banners, and Related Products (Award) 
Award the proposal for signs, banners, and related products for the period beginning 
January 30, 2016 through January 29, 2017 with two one-year options to renew, at an 
estimated cost of $35,000.00.  The vendors are as follows: 
 

 AGAS, Mfg. (Philadelphia, PA) 
 Fast Signs (McAllen, TX) 
 Gateway Printing & Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX) 
 The Sign Depot (McAllen, TX) 

 

Award Board Meeting Date Original Term Renewal Term 

Original 01/26/16 01/30/16 – 01/29/17 2 – one year 
options 

 
Purpose – The Office of Public Relations, Planning and Construction, Student Services, 
and Continuing Education are requesting the purchase of signs, banners, and related 
products for identification purposes and event awareness. 
 
Justification and Benefit – The signs, flags, and related products will be used by various 
departments’ college wide to promote and market instructional programs, departments, 
events, and South Texas College in the community and the public schools. 
 
The proposal award to each vendor will be based upon the services they provide, their 
pricing, and their availability (delivery timeline).  It will include hanging banners, year signs, 
table covers, metal signs, name plates, and office entrance signs. 
 
Background - Proposal documents were advertised on November 23, 2015 and November 
30, 2015 and issued to twelve (12) vendors.  Eight (8) responses were received on 
December 8, 2015 and reviewed by Public Relations and Marketing and the Purchasing 
Department.   
 
Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Public Relations and Marketing, Student 
Services, Continuing Education, and Planning and Construction budgets for FY 2015-
2016. 
 
4) Higher Education Strategic Market Assessment (Reject) 
Reject the two (2) proposals received for the higher education strategic market 
assessment project because they were over the available budget.  
 
 
 
 

49



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 10 

B. Non – Instructional Items 
 
5) Furniture (Purchase) 
Purchase furniture from the State of Texas Multiple Award Schedule (TXMAS) approved 
vendors, at a total amount of $16,508.70. 
 

# Vendor Amount 

A Allsteel, Inc./Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. 
(Edinburg, TX) 

$4,173.12

B Exemplis Corporation/ Gateway Printing and Office 
Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX) 

$754.48

C The Hon Company/Gateway Printing and Office Supply, 
Inc. (Edinburg, TX) 

$6,158.38

D Krueger International, Inc./Gateway Printing and Office 
Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX) 

$5,422.72

 Total $16,508.70

 
The purchases can be summarized as follows: 

 Allsteel, Inc./Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX) 
 Pecan Campus  

o 4 Chairs for the Centers of Learning Excellence  
o 8 Chairs for Student Affairs 

 Exemplis Corporation/Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX) 
 Pecan Campus  

o 1 Chair for the Learning Commons and Open Labs  
o 1 Chair for the Office of Strategic Initiatives 

 The HON Company/Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX) 
 Nursing Allied Health Campus 

o 1 Desk for the Medical Assistant Technology Program 
 Pecan Campus  

o 1 Desk for the Office of Strategic Initiatives 
o 1 Bookcase for the Office of Safety and Security 
o 6 Vertical Files and 2 Bookcases for the Business Office 
o 4  Vertical Files for the Education Program 
o 1 Vertical File for College Success Program 

 Starr Campus  
o 1 Vertical File for the Psychology Program 

 Krueger International, Inc./Gateway Printing and Office Supply Inc. (Edinburg, 
TX) 
 Pecan Campus  

o 1 Desk and 1 Chair for the Learning Commons and Open Labs 
o 1 Desk and 4 Chairs for the Business Office 

50



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 11 

 Starr Campus  
o 1 Chair for the Psychology Program 

 
Fund for these expenditures are budgeted in the requesting department budgets for         
FY 2015-2016 as follows:  Associate Degree Nursing, Business Office, Centers for 
Learning Excellence, College Success, Education Learning Commons and Open Labs, 
Office of Safety and Security, Office of Strategic Initiatives, Psychology and Student 
Affairs. 
 
6) Institutional Membership (Renewal) 
Renew an institutional membership with Hispanic Association of Colleges and 
Universities (HACU) (San Antonio, TX), a sole source vendor, for the period beginning 
January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016, at a total amount of $10,825.00. 
 
Purpose – The President’s Office is requesting to renew the institutional membership with 
HACU for an additional year. 
 
Justification and Benefit – The association promotes the development of member colleges 
and universities, improves access to and the quality of post-secondary educational 
opportunities for Hispanic students and champions Hispanic success in higher education.  
 
Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Institutional Membership budget for            
FY 2015-2016. 
 
C. Technology Items 
 
7) Computers, Laptop, Tablets, and Printers (Purchase) 
Purchase of computers, laptop, tablets, and printers from the State of Texas Department 
of Information Resources (DIR) approved vendors Dell Marketing, LP. (Dallas, TX) and 
from the National Joint Powers Alliance approved vendor CDW Government (Vernon 
Hills, IL), in the total amount of $22,490.48.   
 
All purchase requests for computers, laptop, tablets, and printers have been evaluated by 
Technology Resources Department and the Chief Information Officer.  An itemized list 
with justification is included for your review and information.   
 
Technology Resources used the following criteria when recommending the purchase of 
technology: 

 
 Systems being requested meet the South Texas College standard configuration 
 The new systems will replace an older model (5+ years and out of warranty) 
 Software requirements exceed the system capacity 
 System is for a new hire and Technology Resources does not have refurbished 

systems available 

51



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 12 

 Instructional and/or business need must be clearly identified/justified for any 
equipment that is outside standard configuration or does not replace existing office 
systems. (ex. mobile devices) 

 
The purchases can be summarized as follows: 
 

 Faculty Computers 
 1 Computer for Music Program 
 6 Computers for English Program 
 1 Computer for CADD Program 
 

 Staff Computer 
 1 Computer for the Division of Nursing and Allied Health 

 
 Class-Instruction Laptop 
 1 Laptop for Computer Science Program 
 

 Staff/Faculty Tablets 
 2 Tablets for Chemistry Program 
 2 Tablets for Cashiers Office 

 
 Printers 
 2 Printers for Infrastructure (Technology Resources) 

 
Funds for these expenditures are budgeted in the requesting department budgets for          
FY 2015-2016 as follows: Music, English, CADD, Computer Science, Chemistry, Cashiers 
Office, and Infrastructure. 
 
8) Network Equipment and Phones (Purchase) 
Purchase network equipment and phones from Insight Public Sector (Tempe, 
AZ/McAllen, TX), a State of Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR) approved 
vendor, at a total cost of $111,557.62. 
 
Purpose – Technology Resources is requesting the purchase of network equipment and 
phones which will include wireless connections, phones, routers, and switches. 
 
Justification and Benefit – The network equipment needed is a Wireless LAN controller 
which will support more wireless access points. This controller and licenses will be able 
to support all the access points that will be installed as part of the Bond construction 
district-wide.  
 
The IP Phones and licenses are needed to replace damaged phones and to provide 
phones for new employees throughout the College district.  
 

52



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 13 

The voice routers will provide redundancy to our voice system. The sixteen (16) port blade 
switches and optics will allow us to connect devices in our Pecan Campus data center at 
higher speeds and redundancy capabilities.  
 
Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Telecom budget for FY 2015-2016. 
 
9) Network Switches and Connectors  (Purchase) 
Purchase network switches and connectors from Insight Public Sector (Tempe, 
AZ/McAllen, TX), a State of Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR) approved 
vendor, at a total cost of $10,231.75. 
 
Purpose – Technology Resources is requesting the purchase of two (2) network switches 
and two (2) optic connectors to be installed at the Mid Valley Campus South Academic 
Building. 
 
Justification and Benefit – These switches and connectors are needed to support the 
newly wired network infrastructure which supports higher speed internet connections. 
 
Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Construction-Mid Valley Campus Building 
H Data Cabling Infrastructure budget for FY 2015-2016. 
 
10) Servers, Installation, and Configuration (Purchase) 
Purchase servers, installation, and configuration from Logical Front (The Woodlands, 
TX), a State of Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR) approved vendor, at a 
total cost of $192,200.53. 
 
Purpose - Technology Resources is requesting the purchase of eight (8) servers which 
are needed at the Pecan Campus to support the implementation of a district-wide process 
-- Virtual Desktop Infrastructure (VDI). 
 
Justification and Benefit – The Servers are needed as more and more faculty and staff 
are using technology in teaching and additional classrooms being added to the College 
more hardware and software will be put into production that must be routinely updated 
and maintained with an expected up-time of 100%. Even the best equipment has 
mechanical failures especially as it gets older and has multiple users. The use of VDI 
technology provides a proactive answer to the routine issues experienced with computers. 
Included are: 
 

 Longer Shelf Life / Lower On-Going Costs – The expected life of a PC is only four 
years before it is obsolete and sold at auction. Using VDI can extend the life of the 
hardware to an expected minimum of six years. This allows the College to expend 
less annual budget on new equipment for end-users. 

 Improved Security – Software and files which reside on individual computers can 
be a security risk. An individual computer can be stolen or the files may be copied. 

53



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 14 

When VDI is implemented software and files reside on servers rather than an 
individual computer improving the security. The physical loss of a computer no 
longer equals the loss of software and files. 

 Better Support – The corruption of software or a virus (for example) will no longer 
stop productivity as a new user session can be implemented in minutes from the 
server. The process of upgrading software will be less time consuming and less 
staff intensive as software will be upgraded on the server and users will 
automatically access the newest version upon login. 
 

Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Infrastructure budget for FY 2015-2016. 
 
11) Timekeeping System (Purchase) 
Purchase a timekeeping system from TimeClock Plus by Data Management, Inc. (San 
Angelo, TX), a Texas Cooperative Purchasing Network (TCPN) approved vendor, at a 
total cost of $210,401.98. 
 
Purpose – The Business Office and the Office of Human Resources are requesting the 
purchase of a new timekeeping system to replace the current timekeeping system in order 
to upgrade the capabilities and to ensure that mandated federal and state laws are 
adhered to.  Timeclock Plus allows detailed reporting on employee attendance, real time 
processing, and increased controls such as mechanisms to prevent employees from 
manipulating their working hours.  
 
Justification and Benefit – The current timekeeping system, TimeForce, was purchased 
on December 15, 2005.  An upgraded timekeeping system, Timeclock Plus, is necessary 
to keep up with the College growth and need for resources, to provide more accurate 
tracking of hours as required by federal regulations, to automate manual processes for 
better efficiency overall, and to strengthen internal controls over employee timekeeping. 
 
The following improvements will be implemented by purchasing Timeclock Plus: 
 

 Reduction of paper processes  
 Automation of vacation and sick leave processes and elimination of Leave Forms, 

Time Adjustments Forms and Payroll Worksheets 
 Compliance with Affordable Care Act and Teacher Retirement System 

Requirements 
 Upgrade of Biometric clocks 
 Improved quality of reports 
 Streamline of Banner integration with Timeclock Plus 

 
By fully integrating the new time and attendance system into our database, the College 
will reduce human errors and have greater confidence in easily accessible and accurate 
employee information.   
 

54



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 15 

All non-exempt professional support, classified, and part time employees, which total to 
approximately 1,550 employees, use the timekeeping system.  Supervisors also utilize the 
system to review and to approve the time worked.  This system will include software 
licenses, hardware, training, support, and maintenance. Also included is the business 
process mapping necessary for the implementation and integration. 
  
Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Human Resources and Business Office 
budget for FY 2015-2016. 

 
12) Virtual Desktop Licenses Phase I (Purchase) 
Purchase virtual desktop licenses phase I from Dell Marketing, LP. (Dallas, TX), a State 
of Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR) approved vendor, at a total cost of 
$46,168.83. 
Purpose – Technology Resources is requesting the purchase of three hundred (300) 
virtual desktop licenses which will be installed in the servers for future software 
installations or upgrades to classroom podium computers throughout the College district. 
This will be the first phase of licenses to be installed. 
 
Justification and Benefit – These licenses will allow various software to be installed or 
upgraded from the server to the desktop without interruption of student instruction.  This 
will streamline all the software used in instructional podium computers as instructors move 
from classroom to classroom throughout the district.  It will allow for multiple software 
upgrades at once, data can also be stored in the server(s) which will follow the users from 
location to location, and computer issues can be resolved faster by the technical staff via 
the network.   
 
Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Infrastructure budget for FY 2015-2016. 
 
Recommendation: 
The Finance and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of the 
proposal awards, rejection of a proposal, purchases, and renewals as listed below: 
 

A. Awards 

B. Non-Instructional Items 

 C. Technology Items 

 
A. Awards 
1) Firefighter Equipment (Award):  award the proposal for firefighter equipment to 

Municipal Emergency Services, Inc. (Houston, TX), at a total cost of $19,658.00; 
2) Purchase and Installation of Digital Readout Units (Award):  award the 

proposal for purchase and installation of digital readout units to MSC Industrial 
Supply, Co. (Harlingen, TX), at a total cost of $11,030.60; 

3) Signs, Banners, and Related Products (Award):  award the proposal for signs, 
banners, and related products for the period beginning January 30, 2016 through 

55



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 16 

January 29, 2017 with two one-year options to renew, at an estimated cost of 
$35,000.00.  The vendors are as follows: 

 AGAS, Mfg. (Philadelphia, PA) 
 Fast Signs (McAllen, TX) 
 Gateway Printing & Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX) 
 The Sign Depot (McAllen, TX) 

4) Higher Education Strategic Market Assessment (Reject):  reject the two (2) 
proposals for the higher education strategic market assessment project because 
they were over the available budget. 

 
B. Non – Instructional Items 
5) Furniture (Purchase):  purchase furniture from the State of Texas Multiple Award 

Schedule (TXMAS) approved vendors, at a total amount of $16,508.70; 

# Vendor Amount 

A Allsteel, Inc./Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. 
(Edinburg, TX) 

$4,173.12

B Exemplis Corporation/Gateway Printing and Office 
Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX) 

$754.48

C The Hon Company/Gateway Printing and Office Supply, 
Inc. (Edinburg, TX) 

$6,158.38

D Krueger International, Inc./Gateway Printing and Office 
Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX) 

$5,422.72

 Total $16,508.70

 
6) Institutional Membership (Renewal):  renew the institutional membership with 

Hispanic Association of Colleges and Universities (HACU) (San Antonio, TX), 
a sole source vendor, for the period beginning January 1, 2016 through December 
31, 2016, at a total amount of $10,825.00; 

 
C. Technology 
7) Computers, Laptop, Tablets, and Printers (Purchase):  purchase of computers, 

laptop, tablets, and printers from the State of Texas Department of Information 
Resources (DIR) approved vendor Dell Marketing, LP. (Dallas, TX) and from the 
National Joint Powers Alliance approved vendor CDW Government (Vernon Hills, 
IL), in the total amount of $22,490.48; 

8) Network Equipment and Phones (Purchase):  purchase network equipment and 
phones from Insight Public Sector (Tempe, AZ/McAllen, TX), a State of Texas 
Department of Information Resources (DIR) approved vendor, at a total cost of 
$111,557.62; 

9) Network Switches and Connectors  (Purchase):  purchase network switches 
and connectors from Insight Public Sector (Tempe, AZ/McAllen, TX), a State of 
Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR) approved vendor, at a total cost 
of $10,231.75; 

10) Servers, Installation, and Configuration (Purchase):  purchase servers, 
installation and configuration from Logical Front (The Woodlands, TX), a State of 

56



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 17 

Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR) approved vendor, at a total cost 
of $192,200.53; 

11) Timekeeping System (Purchase):  purchase a timekeeping system from 
TimeClock Plus by Data Management, Inc. (San Angelo, TX), a Texas Cooperative 
Purchasing Network (TCPN) approved vendor, at a total cost of $210,401.98; 

12) Virtual Desktop Licenses Phase I (Purchase):  purchase virtual desktop licenses 
phase I from Dell Marketing, LP. (Dallas, TX), a State of Texas Department of 
Information Resources (DIR) approved vendor, at a total cost of $46,168.83. 

 
SUMMARY TOTAL: 
The total for all proposal awards, rejection of a proposal, purchases, and renewals is 
$686,073.49. 
 
The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the proposal 
awards, rejection of a proposal, purchases, and renewals as presented. 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D. 
President 
 
 
  

57



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 18 

Review and Recommend Action on Revision of Adjunct & Overload Pay Rate Scale 
and Elimination of Summer Faculty Pay Rate Scale 

 
Approval of revision of Adjunct & Overload Pay Rate Scale and elimination of Summer 
Faculty Pay Rate Scale is requested. 
 
Purpose – The proposed revision of Adjunct & Overload Pay Rate Scale and Elimination 
of Summer Faculty Pay Rate Scale is presented for the Board’s review and consideration. 
These scales have not been adjusted since FY 2007-2008. 
 
Justification – Adjunct faculty (part-time) are essential to the delivery of instruction at 
South Texas College.  In addition, the use of full-time faculty for teaching overloads at 
the adjunct faculty rate of pay allows the College to offer additional courses in a more 
cost effective manner.   
 
This revision will provide South Texas College with more competitive rates to attract and 
retain adjunct faculty and full time faculty who teach overloads for the College. In addition, 
the revised adjunct/overload rate will be equal or higher than the current Summer Full 
Time Faculty Pay Scale; therefore, it is proposed to eliminate the summer Pay Rate Scale 
and utilize the Adjunct /Overload Pay Scale for all semesters and/or sessions effective 
Fall 2016. 
 
The definition of adjunct faculty and an overload assignment is as follows: 
 
 Adjunct Faculty - faculty members, not on the Board approved staffing plan, 

employed on a part-time basis with no benefits, and limited to teaching no more than 
ten Lecture Hour Equivalent (LHE) per semester.  

 Overload Assignment - compensation for full-time regular faculty is paid at the 
adjunct rate for all LHEs beyond 15 per semester or 30 per academic year.  

 
Background – Currently, South Texas College uses two pay scales to compensate faculty 
overloads and adjunct salaries:  
 
1. Adjunct & Overload Pay Rate Scale 
2. Summer Faculty Pay Rate Scale 

 
These pay rates have not changed since FY 2007-2008. While the pay rates have been 
adequate in the past, departments are finding it exceedingly more difficult to recruit 
adjunct faculty and full time faculty to teach overloads. 
 
The following information, labeled A through E below, is provided to demonstrate the 
current and proposed pay rates. 
 
A. Comparison with Very Large Colleges in Texas 
B. Comparison with Local Area Institutions 

58



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 19 

C. Comparison of Current Pay Rate between South Texas College and UT-RGV 
D. Proposal: Adjunct and Overload Rate of Pay 
E. Funding Implications 

 
A. Comparison with Very Large Colleges in Texas 
 
The chart below reflects the results of a survey of the adjunct (part-time) pay rate for 
faculty teaching at Very Large Colleges in Texas.  South Texas College ranks 7th out of 
10 Very Large Colleges in Texas (1= highest and 10= lowest).  
 

 

Comparison of Part-time Faculty Pay for One Course (3 LHE) * 

Very Large Colleges in Texas 

Source: TCCTA Institutional Questionnaire 

 

Very Large Colleges in Texas 

Classification per Texas Higher Education 
Coordinating Board 

Academic 
Year 

2013-2014 

Academic 
Year 

2014-2015 

Rank 

Highest Pay to 
Lowest Pay 

 Austin Community College $ 2,781 $ 2,844 1 

 El Paso Community College $ 2,619 $ 2,670 2 

 Tarrant County College District $ 2,388 $ 2,444 3 

 Collin County Community College $ 2,244 $ 2,379 4 

 Alamo Community College District $ 2,366 $ 2,366 5 

 Dallas County Community College District $ 2,164 $ 2,274 6 

 South Texas College $ 1,950 $ 1,950 7 

 Houston Community College $ 1,800 $ 1,910 8 

 Lone Star College System $ 1,908 $ 1,908 9 

 San Jacinto College  $ 1,824 $ 1,824 10 

 

*LHE = Lecture Hour Equivalents 

Furthermore, a comparison between the South Texas College service area and the 
service areas of the same Very Large Colleges’ service area, shows the deep South 
Texas region with the lowest percentage (4.5%) of the population with a graduate degree 
(US Census Bureau and US Department of Commerce, 2014 American Community 
Survey). 

59



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 20 

This combination of factors indicates two things: the available supply of adjunct faculty is 
limited by our geographic location and the current pay rate is not as competitive as other 
areas with larger pools of graduate degree holders. 

 
B. Comparison with Local Area Institutions 

 
In effect, South Texas College departments are competing with the University of Texas 
at Rio Grande Valley (UT-RGV), Texas State Technical College (TSTC), and Texas 
Southmost College (TSC) for a limited resource. The adjunct pay for these institutions is 
listed in the chart below which reflects adjunct pay for a faculty member with a Master’s 
Degree teaching one 3 LHE course for the 2014-2015 Academic Year.  
 

Comparison of Adjunct Faculty Pay for One Course (3 LHE)  

Local Area Institutions 
Faculty with Master’s Degree  

2014-2015 Academic  

Source: TCCTA- PT Instructors Compensation 

Texas State Technical College $1,390 

Texas Southmost College $ 1,920 

South Texas College $1,950 

The University of Texas at Rio Grande Valley  $2,400 

 
UT-RGV’s proximity has made it the default competitor for adjuncts (part-time), and their 
part-time faculty pay rates, which were adopted in Fall 2015.  At UT-RGV, the pay is 
dependent not only on highest degree earned, but also on teaching experience.  In 
addition, their adjunct faculty rates are substantially higher than the current rate at South 
Texas College.   
 
Adjunct faculty are essential to the delivery of instruction at South Texas College.  In 
addition, the use of full-time faculty for teaching overloads, at the adjunct faculty rate of 
pay, allows the College to offer additional courses in a more cost effective manner.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

60



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 21 

C. Comparison of Current Pay Rate between South Texas College and UT-RGV 
 
As a method of comparison, the table below shows South Texas College adjunct/overload 
pay rates and summer pay rates for full-time faculty, compared to UT-RGV adjunct pay 
for both the Masters and Doctoral Levels.  
 

 

Comparison of Current Pay Rate for Adjunct Rates  

between South Texas College and UT-RGV  

and South Texas College Proposed Rates 

Per LHE (Lecture Hour Equivalent) 

 Current Rates 

STC and UT-RGV 

Proposed Rates  

Degree South Texas College UT-RGV* South Texas College 

 Adjunct / 
Overload  

Summer  
Full-Time Faculty 

Adjunct  

Faculty 

Adjunct/Overload/ 
Summer 

Associate $480 $575 Not Applicable $575 

Bachelor $525 $625 Not Applicable $625 

Master $650 $750 $800  - $1,100 $750 

Doctorate $750 $750 $900 – $1,800 $850 

*UTRGV institutional Pay Ranges for Part Time Faculty (7/3/2015).   
http://www.utrgv.edu/_files/documents/provost/faculty-resources/utrgv-institutional-
pay-ranges-for%20part-time-faculty.pdf 

 
D. Proposal: Adjunct and Overload Rate of Pay 
 
At the request of Interim Vice President for Academic Affairs, Dr. Anahid Petrosian, the 
Academic Affairs leadership team reviewed recommendations from faculty leaders to 
arrive at a recommendation that will allow the institution to remain competitive in recruiting 
and retaining adjunct faculty. Administrative staff and faculty recommended that to remain 
competitive and to operate more efficiently through the use of adjuncts and overloads, 
the following proposal be accepted. 
 
To keep South Texas College competitive in recruiting and maintaining adjunct faculty 
members, and to close the gap between South Texas College and UT-RGV at the Master 
and Doctorate level, it is proposed that the Adjunct/Overload Pay scale be revised as 
shown in the table below and eliminate the Summer Faculty Pay Rate scale.  
 

61



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 22 

Proposed Rate Changes 

Adjunct/Overload Pay Scale 

Per LHE (Lecture Hour Equivalent) 

Degree Current 

 Rate per LHE 

Proposed  

Rate per LHE 

Proposed  

Increase per LHE 

Associate $480 $575 $95 

Bachelor $525 $625 $100 

Master $650 $750 $100 

Doctorate $750 $850 $100 

 
 
E. Funding Implications 
 
The chart below reflects the additional cost of the proposed increases in the adjunct 
faculty and faculty overload rate of pay for the two semesters (Fall and Spring) is 
approximately $886,000.  The estimate was based on 4,543.3 LHEs. Furthermore, the 
additional cost of the proposed increase for Summer Pay (including all Full Time Faculty 
Assignments and Adjunct Faculty) is approximately $288,000. This change will impact 
over 135 adjunct faculty and over 450 full-time faculty who teach overload or summer 
courses.  In addition, the use of adjunct faculty and full time faculty to teach overloads 
have helped reduce the need for additional full time faculty, while being able to provide 
an adequate number of courses. 
 

Funding Implications for the Proposed Change 

Proposed Adjustment for Adjunct/Overload Rate Scale 

Semester Current Plan Proposed Plan Increase 

Fall & Spring $ 5,705,500 $ 6,591,902 $886,402

Summer $ 3,123,068 $ 3,411,065 $287,997

Total $1,174,399

 
Furthermore, later in the packet, the Committee is asked to review a proposal to amend 
Policy #3803: Conditions of Employment of Full-Time Faculty Teaching during Summer 
Terms to reflect this change. 
 
Reviewers – Dr. Anahid Petrosian, Interim Vice President for Academic Affairs, and Mrs. 
Mary Elizondo, Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services, have reviewed 
the documentation with staff and recommend approval. 
 

62



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 23 

Dr. Anahid Petrosian, Interim Vice President for Academic Affairs, will be available at the 
Board Meeting to address any questions by the Board. 
 
The Finance and Human Committee recommended Board approval of the revision of 
Adjunct & Overload Pay Rate Scale and elimination of Summer Faculty Pay Rate Scale 
as presented. 
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the revision of Adjunct & Overload Pay Rate Scale and elimination of Summer 
Faculty Pay Rate Scale as presented. 
 
The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of 
Trustees: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the revision of 
Adjunct & Overload Pay Rate Scale and elimination of Summer Faculty Pay Rate Scale 
as presented. 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D. 
President 

 
  

63



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 24 

Review and Action as Necessary on Revised Policies  
 
Approval of the proposed revisions to the following policies is requested: 
 

a. Revise Policy #3803: Conditions of Employment of Full-Time Faculty Teaching 
during Summer Terms 

 
Request for the revision to the policy is necessary for the following reasons: 

 

 If the proposal for the Revision of Adjunct & Overload Pay Rate Scale and 
Elimination of Summer Faculty Pay Rate Scale is approved it will be necessary 
to amend the Policy to comply with the new changes.  

 The revised Adjunct & Overload Pay Rate Scale will be equal or higher than the 
current summer Full Time Faculty Pay Rate Scale, so it is recommended to 
eliminate the Summer Pay Rate Scale, effective Fall 2016 to utilize the Adjunct 
& Overload Pay Rate Scale.   

 
b. Revise Policy #6322: Smoke/Tobacco/E-Cigarette Free Environment 

 
Request for the revision to the policy is necessary for the following reasons: 

 

 To include E-Cigarettes under the provisions of the policy. 
 The City of McAllen has passed ordinance revisions that include E-Cigarettes 

within their current Smoke and Tobacco Free Ordinance provisions. 
 
The revised policies follow in the packet for the Committee’s information and review.  The 
additions to the policy are highlighted in yellow and the deletions are designated with a 
red strikeout.   
 
The revised policies have been reviewed by staff, the President’s Cabinet, President’s 
Administrative Staff, Planning and Development Council (PDC) staff, and by South Texas 
College’s Legal Counsel.   
 
The Finance and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of the 
proposed revisions to Policy #3803: Conditions of Employment of Full-Time Faculty 
Teaching during Summer Terms and Policy #6322: Smoke/Tobacco/E-Cigarette Free 
Environment as presented and which supersedes any previously adopted Board policy. 
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the proposed revisions to Policy #3803: Conditions of Employment of Full-Time 
Faculty Teaching during Summer Terms and Policy #6322: Smoke/Tobacco/E-Cigarette 
Free Environment as presented and which supersedes any previously adopted Board 
policy. 
 
 

64



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 25 

The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the proposed 
revisions to Policy #3803: Conditions of Employment of Full-Time Faculty Teaching during 
Summer Terms and Policy #6322: Smoke/Tobacco/E-Cigarette Free Environment as 
presented and which supersedes any previously adopted Board policy. 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D. 
President 

 
 

  

65



MANUAL OF POLICY 

Title Conditions of Employment of Full-Time Faculty  

Teaching during Summer Terms 

3803 

Legal Authority Approval of the Board of Trustees Page 1 of 1 

Date Approved by 

Board 

Board Minute Order Dated August 16, 2001 

As Amended by Board Minute Order Dated August 29, 2002 

As Amended by Board Minute Order Dated August 23, 2007 

As Amended by Board Minute Order Dated January 26, 2016 

 

Strikethrough denotes deletion  

Italics denote addition 
 

 

The following guidelines are applicable to full-time faculty on 9-month contracts teaching during 

summer terms: 

 

1. Full-time faculty employed during the summer are expected to hold office hours.  Standards 

for required office hours will be established by the chief academic officer of the college and 

will be published in advance of each summer term. 

 

2. Faculty employed during the summer are not required to participate in other summer college 

activities unless they are employed under a prorated contract during the summer terms or 

unless they are receiving a Chair stipend during summer months.  Other summer activities are 

activities that do not pertain directly to the classes being taught but are usually considered to 

be a required part of each faculty member’s responsibility during the regular 9-month contract 

period (i.e. committee work, registration assistance, student advisement, etc.) as defined in 

Policy 3802, paragraph 1. 

 

3. Compensation for full-time faculty during summer terms will follow the same pay plan as for 

overload and adjunct assignments, and be published in the College’s Employee Salary Pay 

Plans.  All LHE’s in excess of twelve (12) will be paid at adjunct rates  

 

4. All teaching loads in excess of 9 LHE’s during each of Summer I or Summer II, or in excess 

of 12 LHE’s in Summer III, must be approved in advance by the Division Dean and the Vice 

President for Academic Affairs.  Loads of this magnitude during Summer I, II or III will only 

be approved if no other reasonable alternatives are available. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

66



MANUAL OF POLICY 

Title  Smoke/Tobacco/E-Cigarette Free Environment 6322 

Legal Authority Approval of the Board of Trustees Page 1 of 1 

Date Approved by Board Board Minute Order Dated November 9, 1995 

As Amended by Board Minute Order Dated September 2, 1999 

As Amended by Board Minute Order Dated July 18, 2007 

Board Minute Order dated January 26, 2016 

 

Strikethrough denotes deletion  

Italics denote addition 

 

South Texas College, including all its facilities and grounds, is a smoke/tobacco/e-cigarette free 

environment except in designated smoking/tobacco use areas and parking lots. 

 

Persons violating this policy shall be subject to appropriate disciplinary action. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

67



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 26 

Update on Status of 2013 Bond Construction Program 
 
Enclosed is a copy of the presentation prepared by Broaddus and Associates as an 
update on the status of the 2013 Bond Construction Program.  A representative from 
Broaddus and Associates will be present at the January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting 
to provide the update. 
 

 

  

68



Fa
ci

lit
ie

s C
om

m
itt

ee
 M

ee
tin

g 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
12

, 2
01

6 

SS
O

U
T
H

 T
E
X
A
S

 C
O

L
L
E
G

E
 

 
2

0
1

3
 B

O
N

D
 C

O
N

S
T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

 
U

P
C

O
M

IN
G

 T
IM

E
L
IN

E
 

69



BB
O

A
R

D
 A

P
P
R

O
V
A
L
 I
T
E
M

S
 

S
ou

th
 T

ex
as

 C
ol

le
ge

 
20

13
 B

on
d

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
 P

ro
gr

am
 

U
p

co
m

in
g 

T
im

el
in

e 
– 

01
/1

2/
16

 

O
ct

ob
er

 '1
5 

N
ov

em
b

er
 '1

5 
D

ec
em

b
er

 ‘1
5 

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
'1

6 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

'1
6 

Board Approval 

1 
U

p
d

at
e 

(N
o 

A
ct

io
n

) 
U

p
d

at
e 

(N
o 

A
ct

io
n

) 
U

p
da

te
 (

N
o 

A
ct

io
n)

 
U

p
da

te
 (

N
o 

A
ct

io
n

) 
U

p
da

te
 (

N
o 

A
ct

io
n

) 

2 
S

ch
em

at
ic

 D
es

ig
n

 A
p

p
ro

va
l 

S
ch

em
at

ic
 D

es
ig

n
 

A
p

p
ro

va
l 

S
ch

em
at

ic
 D

es
ig

n
 

A
p

p
ro

va
l 

C
h

il
le

r 
P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t 

A
w

ar
d

 
B

&
A

 U
se

 o
f 

 
C

on
ti

n
ge

n
cy

 F
u

n
d

s 

3 
N

u
rs

in
g 

&
 A

ll
ie

d
 H

ea
lt

h
 

T
h

er
m

al
 E

n
er

gy
 E

n
gi

n
ee

r 
S

el
ec

ti
on

  

P
ec

an
 C

am
p

u
s 

T
h

er
m

al
 

P
la

n
t E

xp
an

si
on

 G
M

P
 

A
p

p
ro

va
l 

F
F

&
E

 
R

ec
om

m
en

d
at

io
n

 
E

G
V

 A
d

di
ti

on
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
– 

S
ta

rr
 &

 M
id

-V
al

le
y 

S
ta

rr
 C

ou
n

ty
 S

it
e 

&
 

P
ar

k
in

g 
S

D
 A

p
p

ro
va

l 

4 
C

h
il

le
r 

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t 
W

ag
e 

S
ca

le
 

D
et

er
m

in
at

io
n

 

A
E

 S
el

ec
ti

on
 –

 P
h

ar
r 

C
en

te
r 

fo
r 

P
u

b
li

c 
S

af
et

y 
E

xc
el

le
n

ce
 

5 
A

d
d

it
io

n
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
– 

M
V

C
 

L
ib

ra
ry

 R
en

ov
at

io
n

  
F

F
&

E
 R

F
P

 S
ol

ic
it

at
io

n
 

  
O

C
IP

 (
O

w
n

er
 C

on
tr

ol
le

d
 

In
su

ra
n

ce
 P

ro
gr

am
) 

A
ge

n
t 

6 
  

  
  

C
iv

il
 E

n
gi

n
ee

ri
n

g 
S

el
ec

ti
on

 –
 P

h
ar

r 
C

en
te

r 
fo

r 
P

u
bl

ic
 S

af
et

y 
E

xc
el

le
n

ce
 

  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

70



OO
P
E
R

A
T
IO

N
A
L
 I
T
E
M

S
 

S
ou

th
 T

ex
as

 C
ol

le
ge

 
20

13
 B

on
d

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
 P

ro
gr

am
 

U
p

co
m

in
g 

T
im

el
in

e 

O
ct

ob
er

 '1
5 

N
ov

em
b

er
 '1

5 
D

ec
em

b
er

 ‘1
5 

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
'1

6 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

'1
6 

Operational 

1 
C

hi
ll

er
 S

ol
ic

it
at

io
n

 
C

en
te

r 
fo

r 
P

u
b

li
c 

S
af

et
y 
R
FQ
’s

 
  

  

2 
F

F
&

E
 R

F
P

 
C

h
il

le
r 

R
F

P
 

S
ol

ic
it

at
io

n
  

  
  

3 
N

eg
ot

ia
te

 N
&

A
H

 
T

h
er

m
al

 P
la

n
t 

C
on

tr
ac

t 

P
h

ar
r 

C
en

te
r 

fo
r 

P
u

bl
ic

 E
xc

el
le

n
ce

 
A

/E
 R

F
Q

  
  

  

4 
 O

C
IP

 A
ge

n
t 

R
F

P
 

  
  

5 
P

ec
an

 C
am

p
us

 
S

h
u

td
ow

n
  

  
  

6 
  

  
  

7 
  

  
  

  
  

8 
  

  
  

  
  

9 
  

  
  

  
  

10
 

  
  

  
  

  

71



IIN
F
O

R
M

A
T
IO

N
 &

 P
R

E
S

E
N

T
A
T
IO

N
 

IT
E
M

S
 

S
ou

th
 T

ex
as

 C
ol

le
ge

 
20

13
 B

on
d

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
 P

ro
gr

am
 

U
p

co
m

in
g 

T
im

el
in

e 

O
ct

ob
er

 '1
5 

N
ov

em
b

er
 '1

5 
D

ec
em

b
er

 ‘1
5 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

'1
6 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
'1

6 

Informational/Presentations 

1 
W

ag
e 

S
ca

le
 

D
et

er
m

in
at

io
n

  
O

C
IP

 P
re

se
n

ta
ti

on
 

V
ol

u
m

e 
P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

ie
s  

2 
G

M
P

 S
ch

ed
u

le
 

3 
  

4 
  

5 
  

  
  

  
  

6 
  

  
  

  
  

7 
  

  
  

  
  

8 
  

  
  

  
  

9 
  

  
  

  
  

10
 

  
  

  
  

  

72



Ar
ch

ite
ct

/E
ng

in
ee

r
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

  Project Development

 Board approval of A/E

Contract Negotiations

 Concept Development

 Schematic Approval

Design Development

 30%

 60%

 95%

 100%

 B&A Review

 Board Approval

 30%

 50%

 75%

 95% Substantial Comp

 100%

 Final Completion

N
or
th

Ac
ad
em

ic
Bu

ild
in
g

PB
K 

Ar
ch

ite
cts

D.
 W

ils
on

 C
on

str
uc

tio
n

So
ut
h
Ac
ad
em

ic
Bu

ild
in
g

BS
A 

Ar
ch

ite
cts

D.
 W

ils
on

 C
on

str
uc

tio
n

ST
EM

Bu
ild
in
g

BS
A 

Ar
ch

ite
cts

D.
 W

ils
on

 C
on

str
uc

tio
n

St
ud

en
tA

ct
iv
iti
es

Bu
ild
in
g
an
d
Ca
fe
te
ria

W
ar

re
n G

ro
up

 A
rch

ite
cts

D.
 W

ils
on

 C
on

str
uc

tio
n

Th
er
m
al
Pl
an
tE

xp
an
sio

n
Ha

lff 
As

so
cia

tes
D.

 W
ils

on
 C

on
str

uc
tio

n
Pa
rk
in
g
an
d
Si
te

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

PC
E 

D.
 W

ils
on

 C
on

str
uc

tio
n

He
al
th

Pr
of
es
sio

ns
an
d
Sc
ie
nc
e
Bu

ild
in
g

RO
FA

 A
rch

ite
cts

Sk
an

sk
a U

SA

W
or
kf
or
ce

Tr
ai
ni
ng

Ce
nt
er

Ex
pa
ns
io
n

EG
V 

Ar
ch

ite
cts

Sk
an

sk
a U

SA

Li
br
ar
y
Ex
pa
ns
io
n

Ma
ta 

+ 
Ga

rci
a A

rch
ite

cts
Sk

an
sk

a U
SA

St
ud

en
tS

er
vi
ce
sB

ui
ld
in
g
Ex
pa
ns
io
n

RO
FA

 A
rch

ite
cts

Sk
an

sk
a U

SA

Th
er
m
al
Pl
an
t

DB
R 

En
gin

ee
rin

g
Sk

an
sk

a U
SA

Pa
rk
in
g
an
d
Si
te

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

Ha
lff 

As
so

cia
tes

Sk
an

sk
a U

SA

So
ut
hw

es
tB

ui
ld
in
g
Re

no
va
tio

n
EG

V 
Ar

ch
ite

cts
EC

ON
 C

on
str

uc
tio

n
Pa
rk
in
g
an
d
Si
te

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

Hi
no

jos
a E

ng
ine

er
ing

EC
ON

 C
on

str
uc

tio
n

Ca
m
pu

sE
xp
an
sio

n
ER

O 
Ar

ch
ite

cts
D.

 W
ils

on
 C

on
str

uc
tio

n
Pa
rk
in
g
an
d
Si
te

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

R.
 G

uti
er

re
z E

ng
ine

er
s

D.
 W

ils
on

 C
on

str
uc

tio
n

He
al
th

Pr
of
es
sio

ns
an
d
Sc
ie
nc
e
Bu

ild
in
g

Ma
ta 

+ 
Ga

rci
a A

rch
ite

cts
D.

 W
ils

on
 C

on
str

uc
tio

n

W
or
kf
or
ce

Tr
ai
ni
ng

Ce
nt
er

Ex
pa
ns
io
n

EG
V 

Ar
ch

ite
cts

D.
 W

ils
on

 C
on

str
uc

tio
n

Li
br
ar
y

Ma
ta 

+ 
Ga

rci
a A

rch
ite

cts
D.

 W
ils

on
 C

on
str

uc
tio

n

St
ud

en
tS

er
vi
ce
sB

ui
ld
in
g
Ex
pa
ns
io
n

Ma
ta 

+ 
Ga

rci
a A

rch
ite

cts
D.

 W
ils

on
 C

on
str

uc
tio

n

St
ud

en
tA

ct
iv
iti
es

Bu
ild
in
g
Ex
pa
ns
io
n

Ma
ta 

+ 
Ga

rci
a A

rch
ite

cts
D.

 W
ils

on
 C

on
str

uc
tio

n

Th
er
m
al
Pl
an
t

Si
gm

a H
N 

En
gin

ee
rs

D.
 W

ils
on

 C
on

str
uc

tio
n

Pa
rk
in
g
an
d
Si
te

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

Me
lde

n &
 H

un
t E

ng
ine

er
ing

D.
 W

ils
on

 C
on

str
uc

tio
n

Tr
ai
ni
ng

Fa
ci
lit
y

TB
D

TB
D

Pa
rk
in
g
an
d
Si
te

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

TB
D

TB
D

Tr
ai
ni
ng

La
bs

Im
pr
ov
em

en
ts

EG
V 

Ar
ch

ite
cts

TB
D

S
T

C
 L

a 
Jo

ya
 T

ea
ch

in
g

 S
it

e 
(J

im
m

y 
C

ar
te

r 
E

C
H

S
 )

20
13

 B
ON

D 
CO

NS
TR

UC
TI

ON
 P

RO
GR

AM
 P

RO
GR

ES
S 

RE
PO

RT
 - 

Ja
nu

ar
y 1

2, 
20

16

S
ta

rr
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
am

p
u

s

Pr
oj

ec
t D

ev
elo

pm
en

t

R
eg

io
n

al
 C

en
te

r 
fo

r 
P

u
b

lic
 S

af
et

y 
E

xc
el

le
n

ce
 -

 P
h

ar
r

P
ec

an
 C

am
p

u
s

M
id

 V
al

le
y 

C
am

p
u

s

T
ec

h
n

o
lo

g
y 

C
am

p
u

s

N
u

rs
in

g
 a

n
d

 A
lli

ed
 H

ea
lt

h
 C

am
p

u
s

Pr
ice

Pr
op

os
als

Co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

Ph
as

e

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

  P
ro

jec
t 

Nu
mb

er

De
sig

n 
Ph

as
e

73



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 27 

Review and Action as Necessary on Approval of Interlocal and Lease 
Agreements with the City of Pharr and Pharr San Juan Alamo ISD 

 
The Board is asked to approve the proposed Interlocal Agreement with Pharr San Juan 
Alamo ISD and the City of Pharr and the included Lease Agreement with Pharr San Juan 
Alamo ISD. 
 
Pharr San Juan Alamo ISD (PSJA ISD) and the City of Pharr have each approved an 
Interlocal agreement that would support the development of the South Texas College 
Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence in Pharr, Texas. 
 
The proposed Interlocal agreement between the College (South Texas College), the City 
(City of Pharr), and the District (PSJA ISD) includes commitments from each signatory to 
the Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence, as outlined below.   
 
Purpose 
The proposed agreements will allow for the construction of the Regional Center for Public 
Safety Excellence with commitments from the College, the City, and the District. 
 
Justification 
In 2011, The Texas Workforce Commission projected an estimated 22 percent increase 
in police officer employment in the South Texas region over the next 10 years.  Currently, 
some 1,751 law enforcement officers are employed in Hidalgo and Starr Counties. 
However, currently only four police academies in the counties of Hidalgo and Starr offer 
basic police officer courses certified by the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement 
("TCOLE").   Overall, local law enforcement officers in the Rio Grande Valley usually have 
to travel to College Station or San Antonio for specialized training or continuing education 
courses at the expense of local police departments and other law enforcement agencies 
in South Texas. Twenty-eight South Texas law enforcement entities lack police 
academies. Hence, there is a lack of sufficient training opportunities in South Texas to 
which law enforcement officers have reasonable access. 
 
HB 1887 of the 84th Legislative Session led to statutory authority for the College to 
undertake the development of regional law enforcement training. 
 
South Texas College Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence will provide the 
additional benefit to local law enforcement agencies of direct coordination and 
responsiveness to community needs, reducing the need for pre-hire training processes 
by local agencies. 
 
Project Scope 
The Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence will consist of an estimated 21,800 
square-foot facility.  The Project will include classroom facilities, vehicle driving range, 
outdoor shooting range, firearms simulator, mobile firearms simulator/live firing range, 
driving simulator, obstacle course, fitness rooms, and administrative offices. 

74



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 28 

The estimated initial construction cost is $6.782M, which includes $4.2M from the 
College’s Series 2013 Bond Issuance, $1.5M provided by the Texas Department of Public 
Safety, and $1M provided by the District. 
 
Obligations of the District 
 
The District will contribute $1,370,532.00, which includes its $1M monetary contribution 
and 10 acres of real property. 
 
Obligations of the City 
 
The City will contribute approximately fifty-nine (59) acres of real property at an estimated 
value of $2.5M. 
 
Obligations of the College 
 
Design and Construction 
The College will be solely responsible for the design and construction of the Regional 
Center for Public Safety Excellence, but will invite designated officials of the City and the 
District to review and comment on the schematic design during that phase of the project. 
 
Land 
The College will take legal title to and possession of approximately fifty-nine (59) acres of 
property from the City and an additional ten (10) acres from the District for initial 
construction. 
 
Curriculum and Programs 
The College will develop and provide instructional programs and course curriculum to 
satisfy the requirements established by the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement for 
the Basic Peace Officer Certification and continuing education programs and will operate 
as a TCOLE approved training provider. 
 
The College will permit annual enrollment of up to 110 full-time equivalent (FTE) eligible 
District students in dual enrollment programs leading to an Associate of Arts Degree in 
Criminal Justice and/or Early College classes in related fields of study. 
 
The College intends to partner with the City’s Police Academy, though the College 
reserves the right to become an independent TCOLE authorized academy at a future 
date. 
 
Continued Operation 
The College agrees to design, construct, maintain and operate the facility continuously 
for a minimum period of twenty years, commencing from the date of substantial 
completion of the project. 
Funds and resources are available through the College’s 2013 Bond Series issuance, the 
Texas Department of Public Safety, and commitments from the City of Pharr and the 
Pharr San Juan Alamo ISD. 
 

75



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 29 

Presenters 
Dr. Shirley Reed, President, and Mr. Jesus Ramirez, Legal Counsel, will be available to 
respond to questions. 
 
Legal Counsel has requested the opportunity to discuss the agreement with the Board in 
Executive Session, pursuant to the provisions of the Texas Open Meetings Act (Texas 
Government Code § 551.001 et seq) to discuss legal matters. 
 
Upon approval of the proposed agreements by the South Texas College Board of 
Trustees, the College will be able to accept transfer of the initial properties and financial 
contributions and will be able to begin the design and construction process. 
 
The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval of the proposed Interlocal 
Agreement with Pharr San Juan Alamo ISD and the City of Pharr and the included Lease 
Agreement with Pharr San Juan Alamo ISD, and further authorization for the College 
President to make further changes to the agreements, insofar as those changes are not 
material. 
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the proposed Interlocal Agreement with Pharr San Juan Alamo ISD and the City 
of Pharr and the included Lease Agreement with Pharr San Juan Alamo ISD, and further 
authorization for the College President to make further changes to the agreements, 
insofar as those changes are not material. 
 
The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the proposed 
Interlocal Agreement with Pharr San Juan Alamo ISD and the City of Pharr and the 
included Lease Agreement with Pharr San Juan Alamo ISD, and further authorization for 
the College President to make further changes to the agreements, insofar as those 
changes are not material. 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D. 
President 
 
 

  

76



P
h

ar
r 

C
it

y 
L

im
it

s 

L
an

d
 P

ro
p

os
ed

 f
or

 R
eg

io
n

al
 C

en
te

r 
fo

r 
P

u
b

li
c 

S
af

et
y 

E
xc

el
le

n
ce

 

#1
: ~

59
 a

cr
es

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
ed

 b
y 

C
it

y 
of

 P
ha

rr
 a

t p
ro

je
ct

 s
ta

rt
 

#2
: 1

0 
ac

re
s 

co
nt

ri
bu

te
d 

by
 P

S
JA

 I
S

D
 a

t p
ro

je
ct

 s
ta

rt
 

#3
: 3

2.
24

 a
cr

es
 p

ro
po

se
d 

fo
r 

co
nt

ri
bu

ti
on

 b
y 

C
it

y 
w

it
hi

n 
tw

o 
ye

ar
s 

#4
:1

2.
55

 a
cr

es
 p

ro
po

se
d 

fo
r 

co
nt

ri
bu

ti
on

 b
y 

C
it

y 
w

it
hi

n 
fi

ve
 y

ea
rs

 

77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 30 

Review and Action as Necessary on Contracting Architectural Design 
Services for the 2013 Bond Construction Regional Center for Public 

Safety Excellence  
 

Approval to contract architect design services to prepare plans for the 2013 Bond 
Construction Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence project is requested. 
 
Purpose 
Architectural design services are necessary for design and construction administration 
services for the 2013 Bond Construction Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence 
project. The design scope of work includes, but is not limited to, design, analysis, 
preparation of plans and specifications, permit applications, construction administration, 
and inspection of the project. 
 
Justification 
The proposed Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence is needed in response to the 
critical need for public safety and law enforcement professionals in South Texas. The 
facility would be a world class instructional space with the latest technologies to educate 
and train law enforcement professionals. 
 
The proposed Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence project will include: 

 Office and Administrative Spaces 
 Classrooms 
 Computer Labs 
 Lecture Hall 
 Support Spaces 

 
Background 
On November 30, 2015, South Texas College began soliciting for architectural design 
services for the purpose of selecting a firm to prepare the necessary plans and 
specifications for the Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence. A total of thirty-seven 
(37) firms received a copy of the RFQ and a total of eight (8) firms submitted their 
responses on December 16, 2015.  
 
Funding Source 
Funds for these expenditures are budgeted in the bond construction budget for FY 2015-
2016. Additional funding may be identified from other sources. 
 
Reviewers 
The Requests for Qualifications have been reviewed by staff from Broaddus and 
Associates, Facilities Planning and Construction, Operations and Maintenance, and 
Purchasing departments. 
 
Enclosed Documents 
A site plan indicating the location of the proposed Regional Center for Public Safety 
Excellence is enclosed. The evaluation team members completed evaluations for the 
firms and prepared the enclosed scoring and ranking summary. 

130



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 31 

During the Facilities Committee meeting there was some discussion regarding the 
evaluation committee’s recommendation.  Legal counsel advised that the Board could 
either accept the evaluation committee’s rankings or reject the submitted qualifications 
entirely and begin the solicitation process with new evaluation criteria, within the 
constraints of state procurement code.   
 
Toward that end, legal counsel advised that the Facilities Committee could recommend 
Board approval of the top ranked firm or could recommend Board approval to reject the 
submitted qualifications. 
 
The Facilities Committee, with two votes opposed, recommended Board approval to 
contract architectural design services with PBK Architects, Inc. for preparation of plans 
and specifications for the 2013 Bond Construction Regional Center for Public Safety 
Excellence project as presented 
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the contracting of architectural design services with PBK Architects, Inc. for 
preparation of plans and specifications for the 2013 Bond Construction Regional Center 
for Public Safety Excellence project as presented. 
 
The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the contracting 
of architectural design services with PBK Architects, Inc. for preparation of plans and 
specifications for the 2013 Bond Construction Regional Center for Public Safety 
Excellence project as presented. 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D. 
President 
  

131



VENDOR
Boultinghouse Simpson

Gates Architects Gignac & Associates, LLP.
Mata+Garcia

Architects, LLP.
Milnet Architectural

Services
Negrete & Kolar
Architects, LLP. PBK Architects, Inc.

Rike Ogden Figueroa Allex Architects, 
Inc. The Warren Group Architects, Inc.

ADDRESS 3301 N McColl Rd 3700 N 10th St 1314 Ivy Ave 608 S 12th St 11720 N IH 35 3900 N 10th St 1007 Walnut Ave 1801 S 2nd St Ste 330

CITY/STATE/ZIP McAllen, TX 78501 McAllen, TX 78504 McAllen, TX 78501 McAllen, TX 78501 Austin, TX 78753 McAllen, TX 78501 McAllen, TX 78501 McAllen, TX 78503

PHONE 956-630-9494 956-686-0100 956-631-1945 956-688-5656 512-474-6526 210-854-0241 956-686-7771 956-994-1900

FAX 956-630-2058 956-662-7313 956-631-1968 956-687-9289 956-386-0613 956-687-1331 956-687-3433 956-994-1962

CONTACT Danny Boultinghouse Raymond Gignac Hector Rene Garcia Rodolfo R. Molina, Jr. David Negrete Cliff Whittingstall Luis A. Figueroa Laura Nasri Warran

3.1.1  Statement of Interest for 
Project

Indicated their choice to remain a small 
firm by choice and are selective in 
projects they pursue.  For that reason a 
project for STC will be priority.  
Pointed out their previous work for 
STC and their availability.

Pointed out their expertise with state-of-
the-art educational spaces.  Indicated 
that sustainable design is a regular 
practice for the firm.

Indicated that they only undertake an 
assignment if it can be given undivided 
attention.  Stated that their on-time 
completion rate is 98% and their on-
budget rate is 92%.

The company pointed out their 
experience in educational projects and 
their experience specifically in bond 
construction projects. 

Stated that firm's work has been 
primarily for public institutions.  Listed 
several projects firm has worked on 
that relate to public safety and 
education.  

Mentioned the firm's significant 
experience in designing public safety 
training facilities.  Also pointed out the 
addition of public safety design 
consultant as part of their team.

The firm cited the previous work they 
have provided for STC and stated their 
confidence in the ability to continue 
providing service.

Indicated that the firm and its team of 
consultants is ready to collaborate on 
the project.  Indicated that the STC 
project will be the main focus for its 
team.

3.1.2  History and Statistics of Firm

- Firm established in 1990
- Has over 600 successful projects 
- Three registered architects
-  8 total staff

- The principal has over 30 years of 
experience in architecture.
- Offices in Corpus Christi, Harlingen 
and McAllen

- Firm originally established in 1981
- Identify themselves as medium-sized 
firm with two principals
- Staff of 15

- Established in 2000
- Pointed out experience in educational 
design and bond projects.
- pointed out the 30+ years experience 
of principal

- Firm established in 2003
- Offices in Austin and Edinburg
- Principal has 30+ years experience

- Established in 1981
- 6 offices throughout Texas, including 
McAllen

- Established in 1947 in McAllen
- Maintain offices in McAllen and 
Harlingen

- Established in 2004
- Offices in McAllen and Austin
- Recognized as "Top 5 Small 
Businesses of 2013" by McAllen 
Chamber of Commerce

3.1.3 Narrative on qualifications and 
specialized experience

Pointed to the 40+ years of experience 
of the top two principals, over 600 
successful projects and an 85% repeat 
client rate.  Did not indicate any 
specialized experience.

Indicated that educational projects are 
their main focus.  Added that they have 
experience with public safety projects.

Pointed out their previous experience 
providing services to South Texas 
College. 

Pointed to experience in the following:
- Bond experience
- CMR experience
- BIM experience
- Cost sensitivity

Pointed to experience in wide range of 
buildings, including law enforcement 
operations and emergency centers for 
various entities.

Pointed to experience in academic and 
library buildings.  Listed several public 
safety training facilities they and their 
specialty consultant have designed.

Listed several projects that indicate 
their experience with governmental 
entities.

Pointed to the firm's experience in 
Federal, Healthcare, Educational and 
Research facilities, which allows them 
to stay in touch with the latest 
technology.

3.1.4  Statement of Availability and 
Commitment

Indicated their availability and 
commitment to the project.  Stated that 
two of their principals would be 
involved with the project until 
completed.

Pointed out their accessibility due to 
proximity of offices. Indicated that they 
will maintain the project schedule 
established at the beginning of project.

Indicated an ability for rapid response 
to STC's needs.  Stated their 
commitment to timelines set by STC.

State that they do not pursue projects 
unless certain of capabilities to produce 
on or ahead of schedule.  Indicated that 
staff are immediately available for the 
project.

Indicated that the firm will commit to 
having the staff available to perform 
the work.

Indicated that timing of project is ideal 
for their schedule.   Stated their 
commitment of necessary time and 
resources for the project.

Indicated the immediate availability to 
provide services and the active 
participation by the key team members 
of the firm.

Indicated their commitment to allocate 
the best members of the staff to STC 
project.

3.2.1  Resumes of Principals and Key 
Members

Included resumes for the following:
- Danny Boultinghouse, Principal 
Architect
- Robert S. Simpson, Principal 
Architect
- John Gates, Architect

Included resumes for the following 
staff:
- Raymond Gignac, Principal-In-
Charge
- Rolando Garza, Architectural Design 
Manager
- Carolyn James, Architect/Interior 
Designer
- Nicholas Gignac, Associate AIA
- Rogelio Hernandez, Project Manager
- Juan Mujica, Project Manager
- Sergio Lainez, Project Architect
- Charlie Garcia, Project Architect
- Ana Salas-Luksa, Architectural 
Associate

Included resumes for the following 
staff:
- Hector R. Garcia, Coordinating 
Architect
- Fernando Mata, Partner/Director of 
Administration
-Rey Zamora, Architect Project 
Manager
- Adolfo J. Vela, Construction Field 
Rep.

Included resumes for the following 
staff:
- Rodolfo Molina, Jr. - President
- Ramon Villalobos - Project Manager
- Juan Martinez - Project Designer
- Mirtha Uranga - Interiors

Included resumes for the following 
staff:
- David Negrete, Architect Principal 
Partner
- Diana G. Negrete, Principal 
Partner/Administration
- Andres L Mata, Jr., Architect Project 
Manager
- Esteban Zamora, Project Designer
- Bruce W. Menke, Asst. Project 
Manager
- Jason T. George, Project Architect
- Fernando Perez, Project Production

Included resumes for the following 
staff:
- Cliff Whittingstall - Principal, 
Director of Higher Education
- Erasmo Eli Alvarado, III - Associate 
Principal
- Andre F. de Mattos - Project Manager
- Scott Adams - Design Leader
- A. Todd Scrimpsher - Director, PBK 
Operations-San Antonio

Included resumes for the following:
- Luis A. Figueroa - Principal Architect
- Micheal E. Allex - Architect Principal
- Humberto Rodriguez -Architect 
Principal
- Miguel A. Martinez - Associate 
Architect

Included resumes for the following 
staff:
- Laura Nassri Warren - Architect 
Principal
- Andrina De Anda - Associate 
Architect Director
- Natanael Perez - Senior Project 
Manager
- Amanda Gomez - Senior Project 
Manager

3.2.2  Project Assignments and Lines 
of Authority

Lines of authority and assignments 
within firm are shown in an 
organization chart that includes nine 
staff members.

Lines of authority were not addressed.  
Project Assignments were indicated on 
resumes.  Time commitment was 
addressed for only one subconsultant.

Lines of authority and project 
assignments were shown in 
organization chart.

Duties and time assignments for each 
staff member were included in 
resumes.

Lines of authority are indicated in an 
organization chart.  Indicate that all 
team members will, at some point, 
dedicate 100% of time to project.

Lines of authority and communication 
are indicated in an organization chart.  
A table is included that shows staff that 
will work on project and their time 
assignments.

Indicated duties and time assignments 
for the key team members.

Duties and time assignments for firm 
staff and staff from consultant firms are 
summarized in a table.   

3.2.3  Prime Firm's Proximity and 
ability to respond to unplanned 
meetings

Indicated their local presence and 
ability to respond to any planned or 
unexpected meetings.  Pointed out their 
being just miles from any of the STC 
campuses.  

Have three offices in South Texas with 
one in McAllen, Texas.

Located in McAllen, Texas. Located in McAllen, Texas. Located in Edinburg, Texas and would 
therefore be able to respond quickly to 
unexpected meetings.

Has an office in McAllen, Texas and 
can respond to unexpected meetings.

Located in McAllen, Texas. Located in McAllen, Texas can quickly 
respond to unexpected meetings.

3.2.4.  Prime Firm's experience with 
BIM

Did not address BIM. Indicated that firm uses BIM and listed 
eight projects in which it has been 
used.

Stated that they have used BIM on 
several projects.   Have obtained the 
services of a BIM consultant.

Indicated that they have been using 
BIM since 2011.

Indicated use of BIM for past eight 
years in a limited and incomplete 
manner.

Indicated how they will use BIM in 
projects for the college, but did not 
state their experience with it.

Stated that firm and its specialty 
consultants have moved to BIM in the 
last six years.

Indicated firm's use of BIM and listed 
three projects in which it has been 
used.

3.2.5 Litigation that could affect 
firm's ability provide services

Did not address question on litigation Indicated that firm does not have any 
pending litigation or claims that would 
affect ability to provide services.

Indicated that they are not involved in 
litigation.

Pointed out that since its inception, 
firm has not been involved in litigation.

Pointed to a construction defect claim 
by one client. 

Indicated there is no litigation. Indicated that there is no pending 
litigation against the firm that would 
affect its ability to provide services to 
STC.

Indicated "Not Applicable" on the 
question concerning litigation.

SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE
ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES - REGIONAL CENTER FOR PUBLIC SAFETY EXCELLENCE

PROJECT NO. 15-16-1046

3.1  Statement of Interest

3.2 Prime Firm

Page 1 of 2
132



VENDOR
Boultinghouse Simpson

Gates Architects Gignac & Associates, LLP.
Mata+Garcia

Architects, LLP.
Milnet Architectural

Services
Negrete & Kolar
Architects, LLP. PBK Architects, Inc.

Rike Ogden Figueroa Allex Architects, 
Inc. The Warren Group Architects, Inc.

SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE
ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES - REGIONAL CENTER FOR PUBLIC SAFETY EXCELLENCE

PROJECT NO. 15-16-1046

3.3.1  Organization chart with Role 
of Prime Firm and basic Services 
consultants

Included organization chart which 
showed the following consultants:
- Ethos Engineering - MEP
- Chanin Engineering - Structural
- Perez Consulting Engineers - Civil

Submitted organization chart showing 
prime firm and the following 
consultants:
- G2 Solutions Group - Public Safety 
Consultant
- DBR Engineering - MEP
- Lopez Engineering Group - Structural 
Engineering
- Perez Consulting Engineers - Civil 
Engineering/Surveying

Included organization chart with staff 
and the following consultants:
- CLH Engineering - Structural 
Engineer
- Hinojosa Engineering - Structural 
Engineer
- Sigma HN Engineering, MEP

Organization chart is included that 
shows the following consultants: 
- DBR Engineering - MEP
- Solorio & Associates - Structural 
Engineer

An organization chart is included 
which shows the following consultants:
- Halff Associates - MEP
- Chanin Engineering - Structural

Organization chart is included which 
shows the following consultants:
- DBR Engineering - MEP
- Chanin Engineering - Structural
- SSP Design - Landscape

Organization chart was included that 
showed the following consultants: 
- Hinojosa Engineering - Structural
- DBR Engineering - MEP

Organization chart was included that 
included the following consultants:
- Chanin Engineering. - Structural
- Halff Associates - MEP

3.3.2   Organization Chart with role 
of prime firm and specialized 
consultants

Did not included any specialized 
services consultant.

Included organization chart with the 
following specialty consultant:
- G2 Solutions Group - Public Safety 
Facilities

Included organization chart showing 
staff and the following specialty 
consultants:
- SSP Design - Landscape
- Treanor Architects - Allied Health 
Facilities
- Sigma HN Engineers - 
Telecommunications

Firm indicated they do not foresee need 
for a specialized consultant.

Indicated this was not applicable.  They 
stated that they would incorporate 
specialized consultant as needed.

Organization chart was included that 
showed the following specialty 
consultant:
- G2 Solutions Group, Inc. - Public 
Safety Consultant

No specialty consultant was named. No specialty consultants were shown.

3.3.3  Project team's experience with 
BIM

Ethos Engineering indicated they could 
provide BIM and Revit models.

Indicated BIM experience by 
consultants DEBR Engineering and 
Lopez Engineering Group.

Did not indicate BIM experience for 
the consultants.

Indicated that firm and its team have 
utilized BIM since 2011 on several 
projects.

Indicated their intent to move toward 
full use of BIM in the future.  Indicated 
use of BIM by all of the named 
consultants.

Indicated that project team has 
extensive experience in BIM.

Indicated that the two consultants have 
done projects using BIM.

Showed BIM experience for the MEP 
consultant.  

3.4.1  Minimum of 5 projects firm 
has worked on

- STC - Academic Building 
($6,092,000)
- STC - Classroom Building - Pecan 
Campus ($11,768,638)
- STC - Information Technology 
Building ($4,600,000)
- UT-Pan American - Annex Building 
Renovation ($2,727,000)
- UT-Pan American - Haggar Building 
Renovation ($2,200,000)

- City of Eagle Pass - Public Safety 
Complex ($3.6 million)
- La Joya ISD - Police Station & 
Training Facility
- Corpus Christi ISD - Veterans 
Memorial High School & Career 
Technology ($93,204,494)
- La Joya ISD - Juarez Lincoln High 
School & C.A.T.E. Labs ($57.3 
million)
- Pharr San-Juan Alamo ISD - 
Collegiate Academy ($17 million)

- City of Mercedes - City of Mercedes 
Fire Department ($2,616,015)
- Weslaco ISD - Weslaco High Music 
Halls ($3,832,000)
- City of Mercedes - City of Mercedes 
Police Department ($1,500,000)
- Hidalgo County - Community 
Resource Center & Linn San Manuel 
Fire Station ($2,500,000)
- South Texas College - Starr County 
Campus ($11,531,658)

- City of McAllen - McAllen Public 
Safety Building ($3,550,000)
- City of Raymondville - Raymondville 
Public Safety Building ($2,500,000)
- City of McAllen - Northwest Police 
Community Center ($579,000)
- Brooks County ISD - Junior High 
School ($8,474,346)
- PSJA ISD - Daniel Ramirez 
Elementary School-Demo and Rebuild 
($12,747,800)

- UT-Pan American - Marialice Shary 
Shivers Admiration Building Interior 
Renovations ($2,345,000)
- US General Services Administration - 
Weslaco Border Patrol ($13,000,000)
- Texas Department of Public Safety - 
Dept. of Public Safety - Rio Grande 
City Field Office ($3,500,000)
- Flat Creek Development - Federal 
Bureau of Investigation Office - 
Brownsville ($3,500,000)
- Edinburg CISD - Network Operating 
& Information Technology Training 
Center (3,750,000)

- Tarrant County College - Fire 
Technology Training Center 
($13,900,000)
- City of Progreso - New Police/Fire 
Station ($1,824,312)
- Collin College - Public Safety 
Training Center ($28,500,000)
- City of San Juan - Public Safety 
Building ($1,200,000)
- Lone Star College - Campus 
Expansion ($19,400,000)

- Harlingen ISD - Harlingen ISD 
School of Health Professions 
($15,319,400)
- PSJA ISD - PSJA Southwest Early 
College High School ($45,000,000)
-Valley View ISD - Valley View Early 
College Campus ($15,608,800)
- PSJA ISD - Zeferino Farias 
Elementary School ($10,358,911)
- City of McAllen - McAllen Public 
Safety Facility ($8,050,000)
- City of McAllen - McAllen City Hall 
($4,000,000)
- South Padre Island - South Padre 
Island Municipal Building (7,150,000)

- South Texas College - Student 
Activities and Cafeteria Building
- City of McAllen - McAllen 
International Airport Renovations and 
Additions ($21,000,000)
- General Services Administration - 
U.S. General Services Administration 
Facility ($3,500,000)
- General Services Administration - 
Social Security Services 
Administration Facility ($2,080,000)
- City of Pharr - Pharr International 
Trade Center ($2,700,000)
- Mission EDC - CEED Mission 
Economic Development Corporation

3.5.1  References for five projects

- University of Texas Pan American
- McAllen ISD

- La Joya ISD
- Corpus Christi ISD
- Pharr San-Juan Alamo ISD
- City of Eagle Pass

- San Benito CISD 
- Weslaco ISD
- Hidalgo County Precinct No. 4
- Brownsville ISD
- Hidalgo County Housing Authority

- Brooks County ISD
- Edinburg CISD
- Pharr-San Juan-Alamo ISD
- City of McAllen
- City of Raymondville

- UT-Pan American
- Edinburg CISD
- E.J.C. Incorporated
- Texas Facilities Commission
- Flat Creek Development

- Tarrant County College
- City of Progreso
- Collin College
- City of San Juan
- Lone Star College

-Harlingen ISD
- PSJA ISD
- Valley View ISD
- City of McAllen

- McAllen International Airport
- Mission EDC
- City of Pharr
- U.S. General Services Administration

3.6.1  Willingness and ability to 
expedite services. Ability to 
supplement production.

Reiterated the availability of the firm's 
staff and their commitment of whatever 
resources needed to fulfill work 
obligations.

Did not specifically address ability to 
expedite services, but provided very 
detailed project approach process and 
part of it addresses timely completion 
of project.

Indicated that firm has associated with 
other architectural firms to provide 
services for other projects (other than 
STC) so that work will be concentrated 
on STC projects.

Stated their ability to complete projects 
on short timelines.  Indicated their 
previous work with STC's construction 
program manager.

Indicated that firm is fully capable of 
undertaking the project.  Added that 
staff will work longer hours to meet 
expedited schedules.

Indicated that McAllen office will be 
the primary contact, but that it will 
utilize the 300+ company-wide staff to 
meet schedule demands.

Indicated that firm is committed to 
immediate and thorough response to 
the project.  Stated that in house staff 
in the Rio Grande Valley is able to 
provide all production.

Indicated their willingness and ability 
to expedite design and construction 
administration.  Will supplement 
production capability if necessary.

Total Evaluation Points 537.87 556.19 545.41 553.19 550.3 566.19 543.54 534.75

Ranking 7 2 5 3 4 1 6 8

3.5 References

3.6 Project Execution

3.3  Project Team

3.4 Representative Projects

Page 2 of 2
133



3.1 Statement of Interest (up to 100 points)

95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95

93 86 88 86 86 96 91 93

98 98 98 98 98 98 98 98

100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100

85 90 87 93 95 95 85 84

88 84 89 94 92 97 84 85

95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95

84 90 89 92 91 93 91 88

95 92 93 92 92 92 90 92
3.2 Prime Firm (up to 100 points)

85 90 90 90 95 95 95 85

94 90 90 88 93 95 93 93

95 97 97 97 98 98 98 96

70 90 90 95 90 95 90 95

93 91 93 98 91 99 91 89

97 89 90 98 97 98 93 89

85 90 90 90 95 95 95 85

84 90 92 92 90 92 91 86

90 95 95 95 90 95 95 94

SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE
ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES PROJECT NO. 15-16-1046

EVALUATION FORM

CRITERIA

Boultinghouse 
Simpson Gates 

Architects

Gignac & 
Associates, 

LLP.
Mata+Garcia 

Architects, LLP.

Milnet 
Architectural 

Services
Negrete & Kolar 
Architects, LLP.

PBK Architects, 
Inc.

Rike Ogden 
Figueroa Allex 

Architects, LLP.

The Warren 
Group 

Architects, Inc.

88.11 91.33 91.88 93.66

92.55 92.22 92.66 93.88

93.22 95.77 93.44 90.22

92.11 92.2293.77 95.66

3.1.1 Statement of interest on 
projects
3.1.2 Firm History and credentials
3.1.3 Narrative describing firm's 
qualifications and specialized 
design experience
3.1.4 Availability and commitment 
of firm, consultants, and key 
professionals 

3.2.1 Experience and expertise of 
principles and key members, 
including resumes
3.2.2 Proposed project 
assignments, lines of authority, 
estimated time assignment of 
personnel
3.2.3 Firm's proximity to college 
and ability to respond to project 
needs
3.2.4 Firm's experience with 
Building Information Modeling
3.2.5 Litigation prime firm is 
involved in

1/4

134



SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE
ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES PROJECT NO. 15-16-1046

EVALUATION FORM

CRITERIA

Boultinghouse 
Simpson Gates 

Architects

Gignac & 
Associates, 

LLP.
Mata+Garcia 

Architects, LLP.

Milnet 
Architectural 

Services
Negrete & Kolar 
Architects, LLP.

PBK Architects, 
Inc.

Rike Ogden 
Figueroa Allex 

Architects, LLP.

The Warren 
Group 

Architects, Inc.
3.3 Project Team (up to 100 points)

90 95 90 90 90 95 85 85

95 93 90 90 92 95 94 93

98 99 98 98 98 99 97 97

50 95 50 50 50 95 50 50

87 93 90 99 94 100 89 87

90 95 90 90 90 98 90 93

90 90 90 90 95 95 85 85

92 95 90 90 90 92 90 86

95 95 95 95 95 96 95 95

86.11 85.6687.44 94.44 87 88 88.22 96.11

3.3.1 Organizational chart showing, 
the roles of the prime firm and basic 
services consultants
--Name Consultant and provide brief 
history
--Consultant's proposed role in 
project
--Projects Consultant and prime 
have worked together on in last 5 
years
--Statement of Consultant's 
availability for this project
--Resumes showing experience and 
expertise of key individuals
3.3.2 Organizational chart showing 
roles of prime firm and specialized 
consultants
--Name Consultants and provide 
brief history
--Consultant's proposed role in 
project
--Three projects consultant has 
worked on during last 5 years
--Statement of Consultant's 
availability for the projects
--Resumes of principles and key 
members of consultant assigned to 
projects
3.3.3 Project team's experience with 
use of Building Information 
Modeling

2/4

135



SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE
ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES PROJECT NO. 15-16-1046

EVALUATION FORM

CRITERIA

Boultinghouse 
Simpson Gates 

Architects

Gignac & 
Associates, 

LLP.
Mata+Garcia 

Architects, LLP.

Milnet 
Architectural 

Services
Negrete & Kolar 
Architects, LLP.

PBK Architects, 
Inc.

Rike Ogden 
Figueroa Allex 

Architects, LLP.

The Warren 
Group 

Architects, Inc.
3.4 Representative Projects (up to 100 points)

85 95 95 95 90 90 85 85

92 93 90 94 91 96 94 92

95 99 97 99 97 98 95 94

60 100 60 60 60 80 40 40

83 83 80 87 83 92 88 81

90 87 87 98 98 93 93 90

87 92 90 92 90 90 85 82

88 88 92 92 92 95 92 85

95 95 96 95 95 96 95 93
3.5 Five References (up to 100 points)

95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95

95 94 95 95 92 93 95 94

95 94 95 96 95 94 97 90

95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95

85 90 90 90 90 85 90 90

90 90 93 93 92 95 95 85

93 93 92 92 92 91 90 91

90 90 92 92 90 90 90 89

95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95

86.11 92.44 87.44 90.22 88.44 92.22 85.22 82.44

92.55 92.88 93.55 93.66 92.88 92.55 93.55 91.55

3.4.1 Specific data on 5 
representative projects showing 
similarities
--Project name and location; Project 
Owner and contact information; 
Project construction cost; Project 
size in gross square feet; Date 
project was started and completed; 
Professional services prime firm 
provided for the project; Project 
manager; Project architect; Project 
designer; Names of consultant firms 
and their expertise; Description of 
BIM processes and deliverable 
provided

3.5.1 Name Owner and Owner's 
Representative and phone numbers

3/4

136



SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE
ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES PROJECT NO. 15-16-1046

EVALUATION FORM

CRITERIA

Boultinghouse 
Simpson Gates 

Architects

Gignac & 
Associates, 

LLP.
Mata+Garcia 

Architects, LLP.

Milnet 
Architectural 

Services
Negrete & Kolar 
Architects, LLP.

PBK Architects, 
Inc.

Rike Ogden 
Figueroa Allex 

Architects, LLP.

The Warren 
Group 

Architects, Inc.
3.6 Project Execution (up to 100 points)

95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95

94 96 92 93 96 95 95 95

98 98 98 98 98 98 98 98

100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100

70 70 75 85 85 85 75 80

90 88 93 93 90 93 92 90

95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95

88 95 90 90 90 90 93 88

90 99 98 95 95 94 95 93

93.8891.11 92.88 92.88 93.77 93.77

545.41 553.19 550.3 566.19 543.54

3.6.1 Expedite design and 
construction administration.  
Production capability to meet 
schedule demands

534.75

RANKING 7 2 5 3 4 1 6 8

93.11 92.66

TOTAL EVALUATION POINTS 537.87 556.19

4/4

137



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 32 

Review and Action as Necessary on Contracting Civil Engineering 
Services for the 2013 Bond Construction Regional Center for Public 

Safety Excellence Parking and Site Improvements  
 

Approval to contract civil engineering services to prepare plans for the 2013 Bond 
Construction Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence Parking and Site 
Improvements project is requested. 

Purpose 
Civil engineering services are necessary for design and construction administration 
services for the 2013 Bond Construction Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence 
Parking and Site Improvements project. The design scope of work includes, but is not 
limited to, design, analysis, preparation of plans and specifications, permit applications, 
construction administration, and inspection of the project. 
 
Justification 
The proposed Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence Parking and Site 
Improvements are needed in response to the critical need for public safety and law 
enforcement professionals in South Texas. The facility would be a world class 
instructional space with the latest technologies to educate and train law enforcement 
professionals. 
 
The proposed Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence Parking and Site 
Improvements project will include: 

 Parking Lot 
 Drives, Sidewalks 
 Infrastructure Improvements 
 Landscaping and Irrigation 
 Grading and Drainage 
 Vehicle Driving Range 
 Shooting Range 
 

Background 
On November 30, 2015, South Texas College began soliciting for civil engineering 
services for the purpose of selecting a firm to prepare the necessary plans and 
specifications for the Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence Parking and Site 
Improvements project. A total of twenty-one (21) firms received a copy of the RFQ and a 
total of ten (10) firms submitted their responses on December 16, 2015.  
 
Funding Source 
Funds for these expenditures are budgeted in the bond construction budget for FY 2015-
2016. Additional funding may be identified from other sources. 
 
Reviewers 
The Requests for Qualifications have been reviewed by staff from Broaddus and 
Associates, Facilities Planning and Construction, Operations and Maintenance, and 
Purchasing departments. 

138



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 33 

Enclosed Documents 
A site plan indicating the location of the proposed Regional Center for Public Safety 
Excellence Parking and Site Improvements is enclosed. The evaluation team members 
completed evaluations for the firms and prepared the enclosed scoring and ranking 
summary. 
 
The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval to contract civil engineering 
services with Dannenbaum Engineering Company for preparation of plans and 
specifications for the Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence Parking and Site 
Improvements project as presented. 
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize contracting civil engineering services with Dannenbaum Engineering Company 
for preparation of plans and specifications for the Regional Center for Public Safety 
Excellence Parking and Site Improvements project as presented. 
 
The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes contracting civil 
engineering services with Dannenbaum Engineering Company for preparation of plans 
and specifications for the Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence Parking and Site 
Improvements project as presented. 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D. 
President 
  

139



VENDOR
Dannenbaum Engineering Company-

McAllen, LLC.
Hinojosa

Engineering, Inc. Intelligent Engineering Services, LLP. LNV, Inc. Melden & Hunt, Inc.

ADDRESS 1109 W Nolana Loop Ste 208 108 W 18th St 10001 Reunion Pl Ste 200 801 W Nolana Ave Ste 202 115 W McIntyre St

CITY/STATE/ZIP McAllen, TX 78504 Mission, TX 78572 San Antonio, TX 78216 McAllen, TX 78504 Edinburg, TX 78541

PHONE 956-682-3677 956-581-0143 210-349-9098 956-627-3979 956-381-0981

FAX 956-686-1822 956-581-2074 210-349-0146 361-883-1986 956-381-1839

CONTACT Louis H. Jones, Jr. Ricardo Hinojosa Erlath W. Zuehl III Robert M. Viera Fred L. Kurth

3.1.1  Statement of Interest for 
Project

Stated the firm's desire to work on the 
"much needed" project and look 
forward to working with the college 
and the architect should they be 
selected.

Indicated that they have assembled a 
team especially designed for the needs 
of the project and which will exceed 
STC's expectations.

Presented a statement indicating that 
they are highly qualified and ready to 
undertake the project.

Stated that firm is large enough to 
provide high quality performance, but 
small enough to care about the detailed 
attention the project deserves.

Pointed out the firm's 678years of 
experience  in the Rio Grande Valley 
and the professional expertise they 
present.

3.1.2  History and Statistics of Firm

- Originally established in 1945
- 8 locations in Texas, including 
McAllen office

- Established in 1993
- 17 total Employees
- 3 licensed employees

- Established in 1999
- 30 employees
- 10 licensed professionals

- Established in 2000
- Offices in Corpus Christi, McAllen, 
Harlingen, Austin, Dallas/Ft Worth, 
Laredo and San Antonio.

- Founded in 1947
- Offices in Edinburg and Rio Grande 
City
- 50 staff

3.1.3  Firm's unique qualifications 
and  specialized design experience

Pointed out the firm's experience and 
knowledge of the area and their 
previous work for STC.  Also stated 
their experience with gun ranges and 
military training facilities.

Indicated that it is the only engineering 
firm that specializes in educational 
facilities.

Indicated that they have provided civil 
engineering services for more than 180 
projects for colleges and universities 
throughout Texas.

Pointed out the firm's broad areas of 
expertise, which include engineering, 
architecture, land surveying, structural 
engineers, and other areas.

Pointed out the firm's extensive 
experience with site and utility design 
and infrastructure construction in 
Hidalgo County.

3.1.4  Statement of Availability and 
Commitment

Stated their commitment to provide 
personnel to meet or exceed the 
project schedule.   Indicated a similar 
commitment from the subconsultant 
firms.

Indicated that availability to STC will 
be their top priority.  Included the 
responsibilities for the project of the 
principal and project manager, both 
professional engineers.

Indicated that they will provide all firm 
resources required to execute work.

Indicated that firm has immediate staff 
available to STC and the ability to 
commit resources to the project is a 
non-issue.

Pointed to the firm's depth and 
flexibility.  Indicated that with current 
workload, they have enough capacity 
to complete project on time.

3.2.1  Resumes of Principals and Key 
Members

Included Resumes for the following 
staff:
- Louis H. Jones, Jr., PE, Principal-in-
Charge
- John A. Carter, PE, QA Officer
- Richard D. Seitz, PE, Project 
Manager
- Daryl W. Duren, Project Scheduler
- Nathaniel Olivarez, PE, Civil
- Manny Carrizales, RPLS, EIT, 
Project Surveyor

Included resumes for the following 
staff:
- Ricardo Hinojosa, PE, Principal in 
Charge
- Reynaldo Robles, PE, Project 
Engineer
- Jorge Rodriguez, RPLS, Surveyor

Included resumes for the following 
staff:
- Erlath W. Zuehl III, PE, Principal-in-
Charge
- Donald N. Dacus, PE, Project Mgr 
LEED AP
- Henry C. Casal, Jr., RPLS, Survey 
Manager
- Ethny A Nava, EIT, Project Engineer
- Justin Jones, EIT, Project Engineer
- Geoffrey Leaf, Associate Senior Civil 
Designer

Included resumes for the following 
staff:
- Robert M. Viera, PE, RPLS, 
Principal-in-Charge
- Eugene Palacios, PE, CFM, Project 
Manager
- Richard Correa, PE, CFM,  Civil 
Design
- Juan Pimentel, PE, Civil Support
- Ernesto Flores, CFM, Civil Design
- Eric Trejo, PE, SECB, Structural 
Support
- Amy Hesseltine, PE, 
Environmental/Permitting

Included resumes for the following 
staff:
- Fred L. Kurth, PE, RPLS, Project 
Manager/Engineer
- Kelley Heller-Vela, PE, Asst. Project 
Manager/Engineer
- Robert Tamez, RPLS, Land Surveyor
- Mario Reyna, PE, Project 
Administrator

3.2.2  Project Assignments and Lines 
of Authority

Listed the staff, whose resumes were 
provided, their roles and time 
commitment from each.  They also 
includes three subconsultants.

Reiterated the roles of the two top staff 
of the firm, who will serve as principal 
and project manager.

Listed all the staff whose resumes 
were named above and the roles each 
will play, and the time commitment 
from each.

The roles and  time assignments were 
provided for the seven staff whose 
resumes were included.

Enumerated the duties each of the staff 
members named above will have on 
the project and the time each will 
devote to it.

3.2.3 Firm's proximity to South 
Texas College

Has office in McAllen which is 8.4 
miles from the project site and 2.3 mile 
from STC Pecan Campus.

Located in Mission, Texas. Stated that firm has office in McAllen. Firm has McAllen office. Firm has office in Edinburg.

3.2.4 Firm's Experience with BIM

Indicated that firm is just "entering the 
realm of BIM", but has been working 
with AutoCad 3D software since its 
inception.

Stated that firm has done several 
projects using BIM.

Indicated that they utilize AutoCad 
Civil 3D, which allows site 
information to be incorporated into the 
overall BIM model.

Indicated that firm has experience 
utilizing BIM and listed some projects 
where it has been used.

Indicated that they use AutoCad Civil 
3D, which will allow them to 
implement the use of BIM.

3.2.5 Litigation

Indicated "Not Applicable" on this 
item.

Listed three cases in which the firm is 
involved in litigation.

Stated that firm is not currently 
involved in litigation which would 
affect firm's ability to provide services.

Indicated that firm is not involved in 
litigation.

Indicated that they are not involved in 
any litigation.

3.3.1  Organization chart with Role 
of Prime Firm and consultants

Included organization chart with staff 
who will be involved in project.  
Included the following sub-
consultants:
-Trinity MEP Engineering - Lighting 
design
- Heffner Design Team - Landscape 
Architect
- Anthony Covacevich - Accessibility 
Checks and Controls

Included organization chart that 
showed all firm staff and their roles.  
No sub-consultants were included.

Included organization chart with all 
staff that will be involved in the 
project and included the following 
subconsultants:
- Cobb, Fendley & Associates, Inc. - 
Sub Surface Engineering
- Gignac Architects - Landscape 
Architecture & Irrigation
- DBR Engineering - MEP 
Engineering
- Raba Kistner, Inc. - Geotechnical 
Engineering

Included organization chart that 
showed the staff who would be 
involved in the project.  They included 
the following consultants:
-  Sigma HN Engineers - MEP 
engineering
- Terracon - Geotechnical engineering
- SSP Design - Landscape architecture

Included an organization chart that 
included the staff who would be 
involved in project.  They included the 
following subconsultants:
- DBR Consultants - MEP Engineering
-  SSP Design - Landscape Architect
- Vernon Rosser - Consultant for 
Firing Range

3.4.1  Minimum of 5 projects firm 
has worked on

- La Joya ISD - La Joya High School 
No. 4 ($58,000,000)
- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers - Fort 
Bliss Multi-Purpose Range Complex 
($16,000,000)
- U.S Army Corps of Engineers - Fort 
Polk, Louisiana Multi-Purpose Range 
Complex ($30,000,000)
- Fort Bend ISD - Sugar Land Junior 
High School ($1.1M)
- Chambers County (TX) - Disaster 
Recovery for Oak Island Volunteer 
Fire Department ($836,728)

- Donna ISD - Donna ISD North High 
School #2 ($3.5M)
- McAllen Public Utility - City of 
McAllen New Convention Center 
($1,426,000)
- La Joya ISD - La Joya Juarez Lincoln 
High School No. 3 ($57,413,000)
- PSJA ISD - Football Stadium 
Renovations ($1,310,066)
- City of Port Isabel - Events Center 
($3,930,000)

- Alamo Colleges - Two Parking Lots 
at Main Campus and one Parking Lot 
at Southwest Campus ($1.2M)
- Alamo Colleges - Three Parking Lots 
($600,000)
- Texas State University - North LBJ 
Street and Bus Loop Redevelopment 
Project
- Texas A&M University System - 
Agronomy Road Utilities Extension 
($3.1M)
- The University of Texas System - 
Greehey Children's Cancer Research 
Institute ($36M)

- City of Bee Cave, Texas - Juniper 
Trace and Police Parking 
Improvements ($84,633)
- Kenedy County - New Law 
Enforcement Center ($2.9M)
- City of Pearsall - Law Enforcement 
Center ($1M)
- L&F Distributors - New Building 
Site Improvements ($9M)
- City of Corpus Christi - Americans 
with Disabilities Act Master Plan 
($370,710 LNV fee)

- La Joya ISD - Elementary No. 25 
($8.446M)
- La Joya ISD - FEMA Hurricane Safe 
Room ($4.2M)
- IDEA Public Schools - San Juan 
Campus Phase I ($4.9M)
- IDEA Public Schools - Edinburg 
Campus Phase I&II ($5.4M)
- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers - 
Army Reserve Center, Rio Grande City 
($4.5M)

3.5.1  References for five projects

- La Joya ISD
- U.S Army Corps of Engineers (two 
projects)
- Fort Bend ISD
- Chambers County, Texas

- Donna ISD
- City of McAllen
- La Joya ISD
- PSJA ISD
- City of Port Isabel

- Alamo Colleges (2 projects)
-Texas A&M University System (2 
projects)
- The University of Texas System

- City of Bee Cave
- Kenedy County
- City of Pearsall
- HDA Architects
- City of Corpus Christi

- La Joya ISD
- Edinburg Boys & Girls Club
- IDEA Academy Public Schools
- McAllen ISD
- US Army Corps of Engineers

3.6.1  Willingness and ability to 
expedite services. Ability to 
supplement production.

Indicated that firm has more than 
adequate personnel from which to 
supplement or replace a member of the 
team if necessary.

Indicated their ability and willingness 
to expedite design services, but did not 
address how they would supplement 
production capability.

Reiterated their commitment to 
providing all firm resources required 
for the project.  Indicated that they do 
not intend to supplement production 
capability.

Firm indicated its willingness to 
expedite design services and 
construction administration.  It also 
included a description of its process to 
maintain work on schedule on a 
project.

Stated that firm never undertakes a 
contract without the proper resources 
to guarantee its absolute success.  
Reiterated the availability of their 
extensive staff resources to meet 
project needs and add any additional 
resources that may be required.

Total Evaluation Points 554.99 542.43 541.19 550.2 544.85

Ranking 1 6 7 3 5

3.6 Project Execution

3.1  Statement of Interest

3.2 Prime Firm

3.3  Project Team

3.4 Representative Projects

3.5 References

SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE
CIVIL ENGINEERING SERVICES - REGIONAL CENTER FOR PUBLIC SAFETY EXCELLENCE

PROJECT NO. 15-16-1047

Page 1 of 2
140



VENDOR

ADDRESS

CITY/STATE/ZIP

PHONE

FAX

CONTACT

3.1.1  Statement of Interest for 
Project

3.1.2  History and Statistics of Firm

3.1.3  Firm's unique qualifications 
and  specialized design experience

3.1.4  Statement of Availability and 
Commitment

3.2.1  Resumes of Principals and Key 
Members

3.2.2  Project Assignments and Lines 
of Authority

3.2.3 Firm's proximity to South 
Texas College

3.2.4 Firm's Experience with BIM

3.2.5 Litigation

3.3.1  Organization chart with Role 
of Prime Firm and consultants

3.4.1  Minimum of 5 projects firm 
has worked on

3.5.1  References for five projects

3.6.1  Willingness and ability to 
expedite services. Ability to 
supplement production.

Total Evaluation Points

Ranking

3.6 Project Execution

3.1  Statement of Interest

3.2 Prime Firm

3.3  Project Team

3.4 Representative Projects

3.5 References

Pena Engineering, LLC. Perez Consulting Engineers, LLC. R. Gutierrez Engineering Corporation
Sigler Winston Greenwood (SWG) 

Engineering, LLC.
South Texas Infrastructure Group, 

LLC.

1001 Whitewing Ave 808 Dallas Ave 130 E Park Ave 611 Bill Summers Intl Blvd 900 S Stewart Rd Ste 13

McAllen, TX 78501 McAllen, TX 78501 Pharr, TX 78577 Weslaco, TX 78596 Mission, TX 78572

956-682-8812 956-631-4482 956-782-2557 956-968-2194 956-424-3335

956-631-7362 956-682-1545 956-782-2558 956-968-8300 956-583-7116

Pablo Pena, III J. David Perez Ramiro Gutierrez Randy Winston Julio Cerda

Stated the firm's ability to bring 
experienced personnel to the project

Stated their interest in work for STC 
and cited their familiarity with the 
college's procedures due to previous 
work.

Pointed out the firm's intimate 
knowledge of the area and 
surroundings where the project is to be 
located.

Indicated their intent to serve STC.  
Pointed to the firm's long experience 
in the Rio Grande Valley and their 
work on the Mid Valley Campus.

Firm presented a summary of their 
qualifications and expressed their 
interest in providing services to STC.

- Established in 2010
- Two staff - an engineer and a 
surveyor

- Established in 1991
- Located in McAllen, TX

- Established in 1998
- Two professional engineers on staff
- One Surveyor
- 11 total staff members

- Established in 1945
- Three professional engineers
- 20 total staff
- Has provided work for various area 
school districts.

- 2 years in business
- 1 Professional engineer
- 5 employees

Pointed out the experience of the two 
staff members.

Cited the principal's experience in 
providing services throughout the Rio 
Grande Valley and therefore has 
familiarity with its regional 
characteristics.

The firm cited their previous 
experience in providing similar work 
for STC, their knowledge of the area 
of the project, and their familiarity 
with the City of Pharr. 

Pointed out that firm was one of the 
first firms established in the Rio 
Grande Valley and most of the Valley 
infrastructure was designed by them.

Firm did not directly address this 
question.

Did not directly address question. Indicated that STC projects would be 
completed within schedule.  Added 
that current projects are 85% complete 
and the firm can start on the project 
immediately.

Stated the firm's ability to add the 
project to its current design schedule 
with ease.  Added that the principal 
and key professional staff will be 
assigned to the work.

Indicated the firm's readiness and 
capability for serving STC on any size 
project.

Stated that their goal is to provide STC 
with projects that can be completed in 
a timely manner within the available 
funding.

Included resumes for the following:
- Pablo Pena, III, RPLS, Owner, 
Project Surveyor
- Arturo Garcia, Jr., PE, Project 
Manager and Engineer

Included resumes for the following 
staff:
- J. David Perez, PE, President
- Jorge D. Perez, PE, Vice President
- Rene Gonzalez, PE, Project Engineer

Included resumes for the following 
staff:
- Ramiro Gutierrez, PE, President and 
Principal-in-Charge
- Hernan A. Lugo, PE, CFM, Senior 
Project Manager
- Pablo Soto, Jr., RPLS, Land Surveyor

Included resumes for the following 
staff:
- Joseph B. Winston Jr., PE, RPLS, 
Vice President
- Randall C. Winston, PE, President
- Alfonso A. Gonzalez, PE, Project 
Engineer
- Humberto Lopez, EIT
- Cindy Meza, Project Manager

Included resumes for the following 
staff: 
- Julio C. Cerda, PE, Project Manager
- Victor Treviño, EIT
- Ronaldo Longoria, EIT

Work is outlined for both staff named 
above.

Indicated time assignments on STC 
projects for the top three staff.

Briefly described the duties of each of 
the three main staff members who 
would work on a project. Did not give 
specific time assignments, but 
indicated that each will be assigned "as 
much as may be needed."

Described the roles and time 
assignments of each of the three 
professional engineers on staff who 
would be involved in projects.

Described the roles of each of the 
three staff members named above.  
Also provided the time assignments for 
each.

Firm is located in McAllen. Firm is located in McAllen. Firm is located in Pharr. Firm is located in Weslaco. Firm is located in Mission.

Did not address this question. Indicated their familiarity with BIM 
through work for STC and architects.  
Uses AutoCad Civil 3D.

Indicated its use of BIM on other work 
it is currently performing for STC on 
the Bond Construction program.  
Pointed out it use of AutoCad Civil 3D 
on some of its projects.

Stated that firm does not use BIM Firm did not address this question.

Did not address this question. Indicated that they are not involved in 
any litigation.

Indicated that they are not currently 
involved in any litigation that would 
affect the ability to provide services.

Indicated that firm is free of pending 
litigation.

Firm did not address this question.

Included an organization chart that 
was very general.  Firm's staff was not 
included and no specific consultants 
were named.

Included organization chart that 
showed the main firm staff.  It 
included the following sub-
consultants:
- Sigma HN Engineers - MEP 
engineers
- CVQ Land Surveying - Surveying
- SSP Design - Landscape Design

Included organization chart that 
showed team members and their roles.  
It included the following sub-
consultants:
- Sigma HN Engineers - MEP 
Engineering
- Stephen Walker Architectural 
Landscape Services

Included organization chart that 
showed the top three staff and their 
specialties.  They did not show any 
sub-consultants.

Included organization chart that 
showed the following sub-consultants: 
- M. Garcia Engineering, LLC - Civil 
Engineering
- Channin Engineering, LLC - 
Structural
- R.O.W. Surveying Services, LLC - 
Surveying
- MEP Solutions Engineering - MEP 
engineering

- PSJA ISD - Marcia-Garza 
Elementary School ($10,212,085)
- PSJA ISD - Soresen Elementary 
School ($10,727,073)
- PSJA ISD - Audie Murphy Middle 
School ($22,624,770)
- PSJA ISD - Escalante Middle School 
($25,624,976)

- STC - Pecan Campus Infrastructure 
Improvements Project ($3M)
- STC - Northeast Parking Lot 
($414,913)
- PSJA ISD - 320 Space Parking Lot 
(576,000)
- STC - Nursing & Allied Health 
Center Plat and Parking Lot Addition 
(cost not indicated)
- UT-Pan American - Lamar Parking 
Lot (cost not indicated)

- STC - Nursing and Allied Health 
Center Campus Parking and Site 
Improvements ($1.2M)
- STC - Pecan Plaza Parking Lot 
Improvements ($213,860)
-PSJA ISD - Carnahan Elementary 
Parking Lot Additions ($184,497.90)
-PSJA ISD - LBJ Middle School 
Renovations and Additions 
($1,100,000)
- PSJA ISD - Sorensen Elementary 
($1.4M)

- Mercedes ISD - Early Childhood 
Development ($200,000)
- Donna ISD - Donna Sanchez 
Elementary ($3,000,000)
- Idea Academy - Idea Academy  
($450,000)
- Mercedes ISD - Mercedes Junior 
High Drainage Improvements 
($100,000)
- La Feria ISD - La Feria Solis 
Elementary ($1,500,000)

- Sharyland ISD - Pioneer High School 
Subdivision ($40,500,000)
- Sharyland ISD - Support Services 
Bus and Staff Parking Lot 
Improvements ($460,000)
- Idea Public Schools - McAllen 
Subdivision ($4,788,000)
- Idea Public Schools - Weslaco 
Subdivision ($8,371,000)
- PSJA ISD - Palmer Elementary 
Subdivision ($12,940,000)

- PSJA ISD
- San Jacinto Title Services
- Valley Land Title
- Land Title USA, Inc.
- Mark Freeland Law Office
- Kittleman Thomas, LLC

- ERO Architects
- Boultinghouse Simpson Architects
- EGV Architects
- UT-Rio Grande Valley

- PSJA ISD (listed 3 times)
- City of Pharr
- Hidalgo Cnty Precinct 2

- Mercedes ISD
- Donna ISD
- Idea Academy
- City of La Feria

- Orchard States (Steve Lollis)
- Marval Plaza (Gabriel Kamel)
- Rockingham Subdivision (Charles 
Carter)
- City of Mission
- City of Edinburg

Did not address this question. Stated their understanding that project 
needs to be on fast-track.  Indicated 
that additional personnel would be 
added as workload increases.

Indicated that the firm's ability to 
commence work on the project 
immediately.  Added that additional 
resources can be added if necessary.

Detailed the phases the firm would 
follow during the course of the project. 
Indicated that it knows of different 
avenues to recruit additional resources 
if necessary.

Did not specifically address expediting 
of work, but detailed the phases of 
work that would be followed to 
maintain work schedule.

507.19 548.64 551.97 535.53 521.75

10 4 2 8 9

SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE
CIVIL ENGINEERING SERVICES - REGIONAL CENTER FOR PUBLIC SAFETY EXCELLENCE

PROJECT NO. 15-16-1047

Page 2 of 2
141



3.1 Statement of Interest (up to 100 points)
95 95 95 95 95 80 95 95 90 85
94 90 88 91 94 75 93 93 91 85
98 98 98 98 98 90 98 98 97 96

100 100 95 100 100 75 100 100 100 95
74 74 78 84 81 77 92 92 90 71
93 89 87 91 80 86 80 95 84 73
95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 90 90
91 92 89 90 88 85 92 93 89 86
98 95 95 97 94 90 94 98 94 95

3.2 Prime Firm (up to 100 points)
95 95 95 95 95 90 95 95 95 95
93 89 90 90 93 70 93 93 90 80
97 97 97 97 97 90 97 97 97 97

100 100 100 80 100 50 100 100 100 80
86 89 93 96 96 70 95 95 95 70
91 95 86 93 83 80 85 98 80 80
95 95 95 95 95 93 95 95 95 95
91 92 89 87 89 87 94 93 80 84
92 90 95 95 92 90 95 95 92 90

3.3 Project Team (up to 100 points)  
95 90 95 95 85 95 90 90 95 90
93 85 92 92 94 70 94 93 85 90
97 95 97 96 97 90 97 96 97 96
90 50 50 40 50 80 50 50 50 40
89 91 89 97 92 79 99 97 70 79
95 98 95 95 90 90 85 95 80 85
95 90 95 95 87 92 92 90 95 87
90 86 88 90 91 85 93 94 84 86
95 90 95 95 95 90 95 95 92 95

3.4 Representative Projects (up to 100 points)
95 85 85 90 90 85 90 85 85 85
94 85 85 90 90 80 92 92 90 88
97 90 90 90 94 90 95 90 90 90
80 50 50 80 50 50 50 50 50 50
79 85 75 79 83 64 72 74 67 63
97 93 95 95 93 90 85 96 90 95
95 90 90 92 92 90 92 85 87 87
88 90 88 88 91 89 90 90 87 88
96 95 95 96 90 90 96 95 95 95

83.11

82.33 82.33

South Texas 
Infrastructure 
Group, LLC.

91.66 86.22

91.55 85.66

 Perez Consulting 
Engineers, LLC. 

R. Gutierrez
Engineering 
Corporation

Sigler Winston 
Greenwood 

(SWG) 

83.11

93.11 92 91.11 93.44 91.66 83.66 93.22 95.44

CRITERIA

SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE
CIVIL ENGINEERING SERVICES PROJECT NO. 15-16-1047

EVALUATION FORM

95.6694.33

88.8883.66

93.33 92 93.33 80

84.1184.6680.8885.88

88.88

Melden & Hunt, 
Inc.

Pena
Engineering, LLC.

86.77 85.66 88.33

3.4.1 Specific data on 5 representative projects 
showing similarities
--Project name and location; Project Owner and 
contact information; Project construction cost; 
Project size in gross square feet; Date project 
was started and completed; Professional 
services prime firm provided for the project; 
Project manager; Project architect; Project 
designer; Names of consultant firms and their 

Dannenbaum 
Engineering 
Company-

Hinojosa
Engineering, Inc.

Intelligent 
Engineering 

Services, LLP. LNV, Inc.

84.7791.22

93.33 93.55

3.1.1 Statement of interest on projects
3.1.2 Firm History and credentials
3.1.3 Narrative describing firm's qualifications 
and specialized design experience
3.1.4 Availability and commitment of firm, 
consultants, and key professionals

3.2.1 Experience and expertise of principles and 
key members, including resumes
3.2.2 Proposed project assignments, lines of 
authority, estimated time assignment of 
personnel
3.2.3 Firm's proximity of college and ability to 
respond to project needs
3.2.4 Firm's experience with Building Information 

3.3.1 Organizational chart showing, the roles of 
the prime firm and basic services consultants
--Name Consultant and provide brief history
--Consultant's proposed role in project
--Projects Consultant and prime firm have 
worked together on in last 5 years
--Statement of Consultant's availability for this 
project

88.3388.4486.1193.22

142



South Texas 
Infrastructure 
Group, LLC.

 Perez Consulting 
Engineers, LLC. 

R. Gutierrez
Engineering 
Corporation

Sigler Winston 
Greenwood 

(SWG) CRITERIA

SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE
CIVIL ENGINEERING SERVICES PROJECT NO. 15-16-1047

EVALUATION FORM

Melden & Hunt, 
Inc.

Pena
Engineering, LLC.

Dannenbaum 
Engineering 
Company-

Hinojosa
Engineering, Inc.

Intelligent 
Engineering 

Services, LLP. LNV, Inc.
3.5 Five References (up to 100 points)  

95 90 95 90 95 95 95 95 95 95
85 95 93 95 95 95 95 95 95 94
93 95 98 96 96 95 96 95 95 94
95 95 85 95 95 95 95 95 95 95
90 85 90 85 90 90 90 90 90 90
85 93 90 95 93 93 96 93 90 93
85 90 90 90 92 90 93 93 90 88
90 90 90 92 89 90 90 90 90 90
92 95 95 95 97 95 98 97 94 95

3.6 Project Execution (up to 100 points)
95 95 95 95 95 90 95 95 95 95
94 90 92 96 95 70 94 92 95 88
98 98 98 98 98 85 98 98 98 98

100 100 95 100 100 75 100 100 100 95
85 90 90 90 85 70 90 85 85 85
95 95 93 95 93 96 80 97 97 85
95 95 95 95 95 92 95 95 95 95
90 88 88 90 87 87 93 91 88 90
95 95 90 96 95 90 100 95 95 95

91.77

535.53 521.75
8 9

92.66 92.66

3.5.1 Name Owner and Owner's Representative 
and phone numbers.

3.6.1 Expedite design and construction 
administration.  Production capability to meet 
schedule demands.

94.22

TOTAL EVALUATION POINTS
RANKING

554.99
1

542.43
6

541.19
7

550.2
3

544.85
5

507.19
10

548.64
4

551.97
2

92.55

94.2293.8883.8893.6695

93.55 93.11 94.22 93.66

9494.11

90 92 91.77

92.88

143



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 34 

Review and Action as Necessary on Amendment to the Agreement 
with EGV Architects to Increase Design Services to Include the Re-

Design of Existing Buildings for the 2013 Bond Construction 
Workforce Expansion Projects at the Starr County and Mid Valley 

Campuses  
 
Approval to amend the agreement with EGV Architects to increase design services to 
include the re-design of existing buildings for the 2013 Bond Construction Workforce 
Expansion projects at the Starr County and Mid Valley Campuses is requested. 
  
Purpose 
Authorization is requested to increase design services for EGV Architects to include the 
re-design of the restrooms and classroom entrances at the existing workforce buildings 
at Starr County and Mid Valley Campuses. These services will also include designing a 
visual connection between the new Starr County Workforce Training Building Expansion 
and the existing Workforce Building as requested by the Board. 
 
Justification 
Re-designing the entrances to the restrooms and classrooms at the existing workforce 
buildings would allow for access to these spaces from the interior of the buildings. The 
relocation of the entrances to the restrooms will require existing restroom fixtures to be 
rearranged to accommodate the new entrances. The Committee also asked that the 
architect design a strong aesthetic integration to tie the new Starr County Workforce 
Training Building Expansion and the existing Workforce Building together at the Starr 
County Campus. 
 
Background 
As previously authorized by the Board of Trustees, EGV Architects began working with 
Broaddus & Associates, Facilities Planning & Construction, and college staff to develop 
the schematic design for the 2013 Bond Construction Workforce Expansion projects at 
the Starr County and Mid Valley Campuses. On September 10, 2015, the Board approved 
the schematic designs of the Workforce Expansion projects but requested that EGV 
Architects include alternates to make the restrooms accessible from inside the buildings.  
 
Broaddus and Associates has negotiated with EGV Architects and submitted proposals 
for this increased scope. EGV Architects has submitted a proposal in the amount of 
$8,000 plus $2,000 of reimbursable expenses for the Mid Valley Campus Workforce 
Training Center Expansion and $13,200 plus $4,000 of reimbursable expenses for the 
Starr County Campus Workforce Training Center for the increased design services.  
 
Funding Source 
Funds for these expenditures are budgeted in the bond construction budget for FY 2015-
2016. 
 
Enclosed Documents 
Enclosed are proposals and an amendment to EGV Architects current agreement. 
 
 

144



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 35 

Presenters 
Representatives from Broaddus & Associates and EGV Architects will be present at the 
Board meeting to respond to questions related to this recommendation. 
 
The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval of the amendment to the 
agreement with EGV Architects to increase design services to include the re-design of 
existing buildings for the 2013 Bond Construction Workforce Expansion projects at the 
Starr County and Mid Valley Campuses as presented. 
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the amendment to the agreement with EGV Architects to increase design 
services to include the re-design of existing buildings for the 2013 Bond Construction 
Workforce Expansion projects at the Starr County and Mid Valley Campuses as presented. 
 
The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the amendment 
to the agreement with EGV Architects to increase design services to include the re-design 
of existing buildings for the 2013 Bond Construction Workforce Expansion projects at the 
Starr County and Mid Valley Campuses as presented. 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D. 
President 
  

145



146



147



148



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 36 

Review and Action as Necessary on an Amendment to the 
Agreements for Additional Services with Civil Engineering Firms for 

Landscape and Irrigation Design Consultants for the 2013 Bond 
Construction Mid Valley, Technology, and Nursing and Allied Health 

Campuses Parking and Site Improvements  
 
Approval to amend the agreements for additional services with civil engineering firms for 
landscape and irrigation design consultants for the 2013 Bond Construction Mid Valley, 
Technology, and Nursing and Allied Health Campuses Parking and Site Improvements is 
requested. 
 
Purpose 
Authorization is requested to approve additional services with civil engineering firms for 
the design of landscape and irrigation at the Mid Valley, Technology, and Nursing & Allied 
Health Campuses for the 2013 Bond Construction program. 
 
Justification 
Landscape and irrigation is necessary to meet building codes and ordinances as required 
by the City. 
 
Background 
At the March 31, 2015 Board meeting, the Board approved fees for the civil engineering 
firms assigned to the various 2013 Bond Construction projects. Landscape and irrigation 
design services are not included as part of basic services and are considered additional 
services if needed and approved by the owner under the project engineer’s contract. 
Additional services with civil engineering firms for landscape and irrigation is 
recommended for the 2013 Bond Construction Parking and Site Improvements projects 
at the Pecan, Mid Valley, Technology, and Nursing and Allied Health Campuses. 
Additional services for the remaining Bond Construction projects will be requested at a 
later date.  
 
The proposed additional services fees are as follows: 
 

Project  Engineer  Additional 
Service 

Proposed Fee 

Engineer’s 
Coordination 

Fee* 

Reimbursable 
Expenses** 

Total 

Mid Valley 
Campus 

Halff Associates  $17,000 NA $1,000  $18,000

Technology 
Campus 

Hinojosa 
Engineering 

$11,622 $1,162.20 $0  $12,784.20

Nursing & Allied 
Health Campus 

R. Gutierrez 
Engineering 

$7,176 $718 $0  $7,894

*Halff Associates would not secure the services of a sub-consultant. 
Hinojosa Engineering and R. Gutierrez Engineering would coordinate with a sub-consultant. 

**Reimbursable expenses indicated will be a “not to exceed amount” and will be for expenses such as 
travel, reproductions, long distance phone service, etc. 

149



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 37 

 
Funding Source 
Funds for these expenditures are budgeted in the bond construction budget for FY 2015-
2016. 
 
Reviewers 
The proposals have been reviewed by Broaddus and Associates and staff from the 
Facilities Planning and Construction department. 
 
Enclosed Documents 
Proposals from the civil engineers are enclosed. 
 
Presenters 
Representatives from Broaddus & Associates will be present at the Board meeting to 
address any questions related to this recommendation. 
 
The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval of the amendment to the 
agreements for additional services with civil engineering firms for landscape and irrigation 
design consultants for the 2013 Bond Construction Mid Valley, Technology, and Nursing 
and Allied Health Campuses Parking and Site Improvements as presented. 
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the amendment to the agreements for additional services with civil engineering 
firms for landscape and irrigation design consultants for the 2013 Bond Construction Mid 
Valley, Technology, and Nursing and Allied Health Campuses Parking and Site 
Improvements as presented. 
 
The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the amendment 
to the agreements for additional services with civil engineering firms for landscape and 
irrigation design consultants for the 2013 Bond Construction Mid Valley, Technology, and 
Nursing and Allied Health Campuses Parking and Site Improvements as presented. 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D. 
President 
 
  

150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS 
AND PROPOSAL 

for 
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 

for  
 Nursing and Allied Health Campus, Pharr Texas 

Parking and Site Improvements (Phase I)   
 
 

 
 

 
 

Prepared by: 
 

Stephen P. Walker, L.A. 
Landscape Architect No. 01774 

McAllen, Texas 
 
 

31 October 2015 
 

 
 
 

158



Page 2 

 
Company Profile 
 
 
Name of Firm: Stephen P. Walker Architectural Landscape Services 
 
Business Address: McAllen Office    

7217 North 30th Street        
              McAllen, Texas 78504  

  
Telephone Number: Office:  (956) 358-6901  
    
   
Stephen P. Walker Architectural Services is a collection of individuals offering multi-discipline 
consulting landscape architectural services capable of meeting the technological necessities of our time.  
As a team, we strive to serve our clients by combining the skills and talents of our professional and 
technical staff with proven and accepted forms of technology to meet project goals and intricacies.  Our 
team of seasoned professionals has both the experience and innovative skills to produce technically sound 
practical recommendations and solutions.  All of our members possess coordination, communication and 
technical skills so as to remain focused on our clients concerns and requirements. 
 
Our combined staffs specialize in the disciplines of landscape architecture, project management, graphic 
illustration and presentation and computer networking.  Our group is experienced and inventive enough to 
offer solutions for both small and large projects.  To achieve these goals our members use Micro-station 
V8.  Our services include: 
 
· Landscape Architecture 
· Wetland Delineation and Construction documents 
· Vegetation Management 
· Model Delineation                                                          
              
Management and Staffing 
 
Our services will be coordinated with the owner or one of your representatives.  Our scope of services is 
defined by assessing the specific design objectives of the project.  Our Project Manager assigned to the 
project is responsible for the aspects of the project.  A principal will be assigned to provide guidance, 
oversight and review all tasks.  
 
Project Personnel 
Key personnel who will be assigned to this project are as follows: 
 
Principal: Stephen P. Walker, L.A. 
Task 
Landscape Architectural design services for landscape and irrigation improvements at the 
Nursing and Allied Health Campus in Pharr Texas (phase I). 
 
 
 

159



Page 3 

Scheduling  
Based on the projected turn-around time of approximately two-weeks after notice to proceed, we propose 
the following schedule: 
 
PROJECT PHASE  I                                                                      HOURS     % OF FEE 
 
Stage A  
1. Base information coordination / drafting                                              6                  8 % 
A. Base layout and set up (1”= 30’ or 1” = 20’ scale)  
 
Stage B 
1. Schematic landscape design                                                                29                  38 % 
A.  Final Landscape design and layout.                                                    8 
B. Draft Landscape schematic design.                                                  13 
D.  Landscape details / general notes.                                                      8 
  
Stage C 
1.   Irrigation design                                                                                 22                  28 % 
A   Irrigation design and layout                                                                16                                                                              
B.  Irrigation details / general notes.                                                          6  
 
Stage D 
1.Site visit and inspection____________________________________20______      26%_____   
A. Inspection of work and materials. (Estimated 6 trips to the site)        12 
B. Review of submittals and cost estimate.                                                8 
 
Additional hours for sight plan design options A,B and C.                      15  
 
Hourly rate: 
$35.00 (base labor rate) x 2.6 (over head) x 1.2 (profit) = $78 (Loaded hourly rate) 
 
77 hours x $78.00 = $6,006.00  
15 additional hours for design options = $1,170.00 
Total adjusted fee = $7,176.00 
 
This schedule does not include the following activities;  

· Topographic surveying. 

160



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 38 

Review and Action as Necessary to Award Proposal for Owner 
Procurement of Thermal Energy Plant Chillers for the 2013 Bond 

Construction Program  
 
Approval to award proposals for owner procurement of thermal energy plant chillers for the 
2013 Bond Construction program is requested. 
 
Purpose 
Authorization is requested to award proposals for the procurement of thermal energy plant 
chillers for the Pecan, Mid Valley, Nursing and Allied Health, and Starr County Campuses 
for the 2013 Bond Construction program.  
 
Justification 
In addition to the standardization of having one chiller manufacturer, the consolidation of 
all required chillers will provide South Texas College considerable savings as part of 
volume procurement.  This procurement will allow the College to identify the best value 
respondent based on criteria established within the Request for Proposals.  The selection 
will be based on: 1.) Cost, 2.) Energy Efficiency, 3.) Service Commitment, 4.) Delivery 
Capability, 5.) Warranty, 6.) Refrigerant Life Cycle, and 7.) References. 
 
Background 
On October 27, 2015, the Board authorized to solicit Request for Proposals for Owner 
Procurement of Thermal Energy Plant Chillers for the 2013 Bond Construction program. 
It was determined that each campus required the number of chillers as listed below: 

 Pecan Campus – 2 chillers 
 Mid Valley Campus – 3 chillers 
 Nursing and Allied Health Campus – 2 chillers 
 Starr County Campus – 3 chillers 

 
Solicitation for Request for Proposals for these services began on November 30, 2015. A 
total of four (4) firms received a copy of the RFP and a total of three (3) firms submitted 
their responses on January 5, 2016.  
 

Timeline for Solicitation for Request for Proposals 

November 30, 2015 Solicitation for Request for Proposals began. 

January 5, 2016 Three (3) proposals were received.  
(Two (2) proposals were evaluated – see attached) 

 
Based on the evaluations, the highest ranked firm is Johnson Controls, Inc. in the amount 
of $2,209,711.01. 
 
Funding Source 
Funds for these expenditures are budgeted in the bond construction budget for FY 2015-
2016. 
 
 

161



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 39 

Reviewers 
The proposals have been reviewed by staff from Broaddus and Associates, Halff 
Associates, Sigma HN Engineers, DBR Engineering, Facilities Planning and Construction, 
Operations and Maintenance, and Purchasing departments. 
 
Enclosed Documents 
Enclosed are the summaries of scoring and ranking for review by the Board. 
 
The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval to award the proposal for owner 
procurement of thermal energy plant chillers for the 2013 Bond Construction program to 
Johnson Controls, Inc. in the amount of $2,209,711.01 as presented, subject to Broaddus 
& Associates ability to negotiate an adjustment to the payment terms to allow the College 
some discount on that total. 
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize awarding the proposal for owner procurement of thermal energy plant chillers 
for the 2013 Bond Construction program to Johnson Controls, Inc. in the amount of 
$2,209,711.01 as presented, and subject to Broaddus & Associates ability to negotiate 
an adjustment to the payment terms to allow the College some discount on that total. 
 
 
The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes awarding the 
proposal for owner procurement of thermal energy plant chillers for the 2013 Bond 
Construction program to Johnson Controls, Inc. in the amount of $2,209,711.01 as 
presented, and subject to Broaddus & Associates ability to negotiate an adjustment to the 
payment terms to allow the College some discount on that total. 
 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D. 
President 
 
  

162



#
Q

ty
D

es
cr

ip
ti

on
U

n
it

 P
ri

ce
E

xt
en

si
on

U
n

it
 P

ri
ce

 
p

er
 T

on
U

n
it

 P
ri

ce
E

xt
en

si
on

U
n

it
 P

ri
ce

 
p

er
 T

on
U

n
it

 P
ri

ce
E

xt
en

si
on

U
n

it
 P

ri
ce

 
p

er
 T

on

1
3

M
id

 V
al

le
y 

C
am

pu
s 

(6
00

 T
on

 C
hi

ll
er

)
$2

34
,6

00
.0

0
$7

03
,8

00
.0

0
$3

91
.0

0
$2

53
,1

27
.0

0
$7

59
,3

81
.0

0
$4

22
.0

0

3
D

el
iv

er
y 

C
ha

rg
es

 
$3

,4
66

.6
7

$1
0,

40
0.

01
$5

.7
8

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0

C
am

p
u

s 
S

u
b

-T
ot

al
$2

38
,0

66
.6

7
$7

14
,2

00
.0

1
$3

96
.7

8
$2

53
,1

27
.0

0
$7

59
,3

81
.0

0
$4

22
.0

0

2
3

S
ta

rr
 C

ou
nt

y 
C

am
pu

s 
(5

00
 T

on
 C

hi
ll

er
)

$1
84

,2
67

.0
0

$5
52

,8
01

.0
0

$3
68

.5
3

$2
08

,9
61

.0
0

$6
26

,8
83

.0
0

$4
18

.0
0

3
D

el
iv

er
y 

C
ha

rg
es

 
$3

,7
00

.0
0

$1
1,

10
0.

00
$7

.4
0

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0

C
am

p
u

s 
S

u
b

-T
ot

al
$1

87
,9

67
.0

0
$5

63
,9

01
.0

0
$3

75
.9

3
$2

08
,9

61
.0

0
$6

26
,8

83
.0

0
$4

18
.0

0

3
2

P
ec

an
 C

am
pu

s 
(9

40
 T

on
 C

hi
ll

er
)

$2
71

,9
00

.0
0

$5
43

,8
00

.0
0

$2
89

.2
5

$2
63

,0
78

.0
0

$5
26

,1
56

.0
0

$2
80

.0
0

2
D

el
iv

er
y 

C
ha

rg
es

 
$4

,8
20

.0
0

$9
,6

40
.0

0
$5

.1
3

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0

C
am

p
u

s 
S

u
b

-T
ot

al
$2

76
,7

20
.0

0
$5

53
,4

40
.0

0
$2

94
.3

8
$2

63
,0

78
.0

0
$5

26
,1

56
.0

0
$2

80
.0

0

4
2

N
ur

si
ng

 a
nd

 A
ll

ie
d 

H
ea

lt
h 

C
am

pu
s 

(5
00

 T
on

 C
hi

ll
er

)
$1

84
,2

65
.0

0
$3

68
,5

30
.0

0
$3

68
.5

3
$2

08
,9

61
.0

0
$4

17
,9

22
.0

0
$4

18
.0

0

2
D

el
iv

er
y 

C
ha

rg
es

 
$4

,8
20

.0
0

$9
,6

40
.0

0
$5

.1
3

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0

C
am

p
u

s 
S

u
b

-T
ot

al
$1

89
,0

85
.0

0
$3

78
,1

70
.0

0
$3

73
.6

6
$2

08
,9

61
.0

0
$4

17
,9

22
.0

0
$4

18
.0

0

T
ot

al
 H

ig
h

 E
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 A
m

ou
n

t
 

$2
,2

09
,7

11
.0

1
 

 
$2

,3
30

,3
42

.0
0

 

1
3

M
id

 V
al

le
y 

C
am

pu
s 

(6
00

 T
on

 C
hi

ll
er

)
$2

12
,9

00
.0

0
$6

38
,7

00
.0

0
$3

54
.0

0
$2

31
,2

29
.0

0
$6

93
,6

87
.0

0
$3

86
.0

0
$1

83
,9

42
.0

0
$5

51
,8

26
.0

0
$3

06
.5

7

3
D

el
iv

er
y 

C
ha

rg
es

 
$3

,4
66

.6
7

$1
0,

40
0.

01
$5

.7
8

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

C
am

p
u

s 
S

u
b

-T
ot

al
$2

16
,3

66
.6

7
$6

49
,1

00
.0

1
$3

59
.7

8
$2

31
,2

29
.0

0
$6

93
,6

87
.0

0
$3

86
.0

0
$1

83
,9

42
.0

0
$5

51
,8

26
.0

0
$3

06
.5

7

2
3

S
ta

rr
 C

ou
nt

y 
C

am
pu

s 
(5

00
 T

on
 C

hi
ll

er
)

$1
76

,4
34

.0
0

$5
29

,3
02

.0
0

$3
53

.0
0

$1
62

,4
40

.0
0

$4
87

,3
20

.0
0

$3
25

.0
0

$1
72

,2
95

.6
7

$5
16

,8
87

.0
1

$3
44

.5
9

3
D

el
iv

er
y 

C
ha

rg
es

 
$3

,7
00

.0
0

$1
1,

10
0.

00
$7

.4
0

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

C
am

p
u

s 
S

u
b

-T
ot

al
$1

80
,1

34
.0

0
$5

40
,4

02
.0

0
$3

60
.4

0
$1

62
,4

40
.0

0
$4

87
,3

20
.0

0
$3

25
.0

0
$1

72
,2

95
.6

7
$5

16
,8

87
.0

1
$3

44
.5

9

3
2

P
ec

an
 C

am
pu

s 
(9

40
 T

on
 C

hi
ll

er
)

$2
62

,7
50

.0
0

$5
25

,5
00

.0
0

$2
79

.5
2

$2
38

,3
77

.0
0

$4
76

,7
54

.0
0

$2
54

.0
0

$2
40

,4
86

.0
0

$4
80

,9
72

.0
0

$2
55

.8
4

2
D

el
iv

er
y 

C
ha

rg
es

 
$4

,8
20

.0
0

$9
,6

40
.0

0
$5

.1
3

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

C
am

p
u

s 
S

u
b

-T
ot

al
$2

67
,5

70
.0

0
$5

35
,1

40
.0

0
$2

84
.6

5
$2

38
,3

77
.0

0
$4

76
,7

54
.0

0
$2

54
.0

0
$2

40
,4

86
.0

0
$4

80
,9

72
.0

0
$2

55
.8

4

4
2

N
ur

si
ng

 a
nd

 A
ll

ie
d 

H
ea

lt
h 

C
am

pu
s 

(5
00

 T
on

 C
hi

ll
er

)
$1

76
,5

00
.0

0
$3

53
,0

00
.0

0
$3

53
.0

0
$1

62
,4

40
.0

0
$3

24
,8

80
.0

0
$3

25
.0

0
$1

76
,2

76
.5

0
$3

52
,5

53
.0

0
$3

52
.5

5

2
D

el
iv

er
y 

C
ha

rg
es

 
$4

,8
20

.0
0

$9
,6

40
.0

0
$5

.1
3

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

C
am

p
u

s 
S

u
b

-T
ot

al
$1

81
,3

20
.0

0
$3

62
,6

40
.0

0
$3

58
.1

3
$1

62
,4

40
.0

0
$3

24
,8

80
.0

0
$3

25
.0

0
$1

76
,2

76
.5

0
$3

52
,5

53
.0

0
$3

52
.5

5

T
ot

al
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 A

m
ou

n
t

 
$2

,0
87

,2
82

.0
1

 
 

$1
,9

82
,6

41
.0

0
 

 
$1

,9
02

,2
38

.0
1

 

**
**

P
ro

po
sa

l d
id

 n
ot

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

hi
gh

 e
ff

ic
ie

nc
y 

pr
ic

in
g 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
C

ol
le

ge
 h

as
 s

el
ec

te
d 

th
er

ef
or

e 
no

t e
va

lu
at

ed
.

S
O

U
T

H
 T

E
X

A
S

 C
O

L
L

E
G

E
P

U
R

C
H

A
S

E
 O

F
 T

H
E

R
M

A
L

 E
N

E
R

G
Y

 P
L

A
N

T
 C

H
IL

L
E

R
S

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 1
5-

16
-1

04
3

V
E

N
D

O
R

A
D

D
R

E
S

S

C
IT

Y
/S

T
A

T
E

/Z
IP

P
H

O
N

E

22
09

 N
 P

ad
re

 I
sl

an
d 

D
r 

S
te

 F

Jo
hn

so
n 

C
on

tr
ol

s,
 I

nc
.

P
er

ry
 M

ec
ha

ni
ca

l S
ys

te
m

s

P
 O

 B
ox

 1
87

57

T
ra

ne

95
35

 B
al

l S
t S

te
 1

10
0

S
an

 A
nt

on
io

, T
X

 7
82

17

21
0-

51
6-

17
36

T
O

T
A

L
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 P
O

IN
T

S

R
A

N
K

IN
G

86
6-

68
0-

81
01

C
or

pu
s 

C
hr

is
ti

, T
X

 7
84

08

D
av

id
 W

hi
tl

ey

H
ig

h
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 P

ri
ci

n
g

S
ta

n
d

ar
d

 E
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 P
ri

ci
n

g 

F
A

X

C
O

N
T

A
C

T

36
1-

28
9-

96
85

C
or

pu
s 

C
hr

is
ti

, T
X

 7
84

80

36
1-

94
9-

49
80

B
re

nn
an

 V
ie

rr
a

36
1-

94
9-

49
81

2

89
.6

21
0-

65
7-

17
61

A
da

m
 B

ur
ro

ug
hs

93
.2

9

1
**

**

**
**

163



45
43

45
43

45
43

45
43

45
43

45
43

45
43

45
44

45
43

45
43

45
43

45
43

45
43

15
10

14
14

15
14

12
11

15
14

14
13

14
15

10
15

14
14

14
13

15
10

14
14

15
14

15
10

15
15

15
14

13
13

15
14

15
14

13
13

12
14

15
14

14
14

16
16

15
15

12
12

18
15

19
18

20
19

11
11

18
18

18
17

17
18

15
20

19
18

19
18

20
20

18
16

16
16

3
2

3
3

3
3

1
1

3
2

3
3

3
3

0
0

3
3

3
3

3
3

3
3

3
3

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

C
or

pu
s 

C
hr

is
ti

, T
X

 7
84

08

36
1-

94
9-

49
81

D
av

id
 W

hi
tl

ey
B

re
nn

an
 V

ie
rr

a

36
1-

28
9-

96
85

C
or

pu
s 

C
hr

is
ti

, T
X

 7
84

80

13
.6

9

A
D

D
R

E
S

S

S
O

U
T

H
 T

E
X

A
S

 C
O

L
L

E
G

E
P

U
R

C
H

A
S

E
 O

F
 T

H
E

R
M

A
L

 E
N

E
R

G
Y

 P
L

A
N

T
 C

H
IL

L
E

R
S

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 1
5-

16
-1

04
3

E
V

A
L

U
A

T
IO

N
 F

O
R

M

V
E

N
D

O
R

Jo
hn

so
n 

C
on

tr
ol

s,
 I

nc
.

P
er

ry
 M

ec
ha

ni
ca

l S
ys

te
m

s

22
09

 N
 P

ad
re

 I
sl

an
d 

D
r 

S
te

 F
P

 O
 B

ox
 1

87
57

F
A

X

P
H

O
N

E
/F

A
X

C
IT

Y
/S

T
A

T
E

13
.1

5

43
.0

7

C
O

N
T

A
C

T

86
6-

68
0-

81
01

36
1-

94
9-

49
80

1
T

he
  p

ur
ch

as
e 

pr
ic

e.
(u

p 
to

 4
5 

po
in

ts
) 

45

17
.5

3

T
he

 r
ep

ut
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ve

nd
or

 a
nd

 
of

 th
e 

ve
nd

or
's

 g
oo

ds
 o

r 
se

rv
ic

es
.

(u
p 

to
 1

5 
po

in
ts

)
2

13
.9

2

3
T

he
 q

ua
li

ty
 o

f 
th

e 
ve

nd
or

's
 g

oo
d 

or
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 (
up

 to
 1

6 
po

in
ts

)
14

.2
3

R
A

N
K

IN
G

2

T
O

T
A

L
 E

V
A

L
U

A
T

IO
N

 P
O

IN
T

S
89

.6
93

.2
9

1

6

T
he

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
ab

il
it

y 
of

 th
e 

C
ol

le
ge

 to
 c

om
pl

y 
w

it
h 

la
w

s 
an

d 
ru

le
s 

re
la

ti
ng

 to
 H

is
to

ri
ca

ll
y 

U
nd

er
ut

il
iz

ed
 B

us
in

es
s.

(u
p 

to
 1

 p
oi

nt
)

0
0

4
T

he
 e

xt
en

t t
o 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
ve

nd
or

's
 

go
od

s 
an

d/
or

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
m

ee
t t

he
 

C
ol

le
ge

's
 n

ee
ds

. (
up

 to
 2

0 
po

in
ts

)
17

.2
3

T
he

 v
en

do
r's

 p
as

t r
el

at
io

ns
hi

p 
w

it
h 

th
e 

C
ol

le
ge

. (
up

 to
 3

 p
oi

nt
s)

5
2.

46
2.

61

164



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 40 

Review and Action as Necessary on Contracting Insurance Agent 
Services to establish an Owner-Controlled Insurance Program for the 

2013 Bond Construction Program  
 
Approval to award proposals for insurance agent services to establish an Owner-Controlled 
insurance program for the 2013 Bond Construction program is requested. 
 
Purpose 
Authorization is requested to award proposals for the procurement of insurance agent 
services to establish an Owner-Controlled insurance program for the 2013 Bond 
Construction program. 
 
Justification 
At the December 15, 2015 Board meeting, the benefits of using an Owner-Controlled 
insurance program for the 2013 Bond Construction program was presented and the use 
of this program was approved.  
 
Background 
Solicitation for Request for Proposals for these services began on December 21, 2015. A 
total of eleven (11) firms received a copy of the RFP and a total of two (2) firms submitted 
their responses on January 5, 2016.  
 

Timeline for Solicitation for Request for Proposals 

December 21, 2015. Solicitation for Request for Proposals began. 

January 5, 2016 Two (2) proposals were received. 

 
Based on the evaluations, the highest ranked firm is Carlisle Insurance Agency, Inc. The 
exact cost will be determined once all Guaranteed Maximum Prices (GMP’s) are received 
from the Construction Manager-at-Risk firms. The cost range provided by the insurance 
agent is within the range of $67,500 to $97,500 which is covered by the insurance carriers. 
 
Funding Source 
Funds for these expenditures are budgeted in the bond construction budget for FY 2015-
2016. 
 
Reviewers 
The proposals have been reviewed by Broaddus and Associates, Risk Management 
Consultant, and staff from the Facilities Planning and Construction, Operations and 
Maintenance, and Purchasing departments. 
 
Enclosed Documents 
The evaluation team including college staff and Broaddus and Associates prepared the 
enclosed summary of scoring and ranking for review by the Board. 
 

165



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 41 

The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval to award proposals for insurance 
agent services to Carlisle Insurance Agency, Inc. to establish an Owner-Controlled 
insurance program for the 2013 Bond Construction as presented. 
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize awarding the proposal for insurance agent services to Carlisle Insurance 
Agency, Inc. to establish an Owner-Controlled insurance program for the 2013 Bond 
Construction as presented. 
 
The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes awarding the 
proposal for insurance agent services to Carlisle Insurance Agency, Inc. to establish an 
Owner-Controlled insurance program for the 2013 Bond Construction as presented. 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D. 
President 

  

166



Carlisle Insurance Agency, Inc. Montalvo Insurance Agency

611 S 14th St #100 208 S Texas Blvd

Kingsville, TX 78363 Weslaco, TX 78599

361-595-5611 956-968-5521

361-595-5815 956-969-9198

Chase Carlisle Ramon Montalvo III

# Description Proposed Proposed

1 Price Proposal

We would expect the insurance companies/carrier 
to compensate our agency for placement of 
coverage utilizing industry norm for these policies. 
The norm is generally 10% of policy premium. 
Based on the estimated costs for this program 
outlined above, we estimate the agency 
compensation, from the insurance company, to be 
between $67,500 and $97,500. There would be no 
additional fees or charges due from STC or any 
other related party to the OCIP program to our 
agency. The ultimate benefit from the OCIP 
program will be terms, conditions and pricing of 
the OCIP product. With Carlisle Insurance Agency 
and CRC Insurance Agency expertise in placing 
OCIP programs for public entities, South Texas 
College will enjoy these benefits. 

An average of 10% commission plus fees for 
OCIP Wrap Administrator and Third Party 
Review firm that the insurance carrier may 
recommend.

Primary Coverage: The rates for primary coverage 
are per thousand of the cost of the project. They 
can average between $3.00 to $7.00 per thousand 
depending on the limits, duration, exposure, type of
construction, etc. 

Excess Coverage: The rate for the first 5 million is 
usually 65% of the primary premium. Then 
reduced to 10% - 15% per million thereafter.

Builders Risk: The annual rates are as low as .10 
depending on the construction type, location, etc. 

Wrap Up Administration: The rates vary but the 
average is approximately $30,000 for the duration 
of the project with additional fees that may be 
incurred for specific addendums and/or other. 

2 Years in Business 90 years 62 years

3 Employees 70 8

4 Past or Pending Litigation None None

5 Experience with OCIP

Indicated that in 2015, Managing General Agent 
(CRC Insurance Agency) will place 180 policies 
with $100 million in premiums.  Organized OCIP 
program for Edinburg CISD in 2010.

Indicated no experience, but will partner with a 
leading Managing General Agent (APEX).

6
OCIP projects by Managing 
General Agent

- Los Angeles World Airports
- Port of Oakland
- Port of Seattle
- California Public University System
- Los Angeles Unified School District
- Edinburg CISD

OCIP administrator they are partnering with has 
worked with City of Weslaco.  No other projects 
listed.

7 Insurance coverages available

General Liability and Excess Liability, Owner's 
Professional Protective Indemnity Policy (OPPI), 
Owner Controlled Contractors Pollution Liability 
Insurance Program, Builders Risk, and Workers 
Compensation

General Liability, Workers Compensation, 
Employers Liability, Excess Liability, and Builders 
Risk

8
Companies to be approached 
for premium quotations

Named 26 companies Named 13 companies

94.15 85.98

1 2

CITY/STATE/ZIP

SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE
INSURANCE AGENT AND ADMINISTRATION SERVICES FOR OWNER CONTROLLED INSURANCE PROGRAM (OCIP)

PROJECT NO. 15-16-1048

RANKING

TOTAL EVALUATION POINTS

CONTACT

ADDRESS

VENDOR

FAX

PHONE

167



43 41
45 43
45 43
45 43
45 42
45 42
13 12
14 12
14 14
14 13
14 12
15 13
14 12
16 12
14 16
15 15
15 12
15 12
19 17
20 14
17 11
19 16
18 16
19 15
2 3
2 3
2 3
2 3
2 3
2 3
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0

2

FAX 956-969-9198
CONTACT Ramon Montalvo III

361-595-5815
Chase Carlisle

44.66

14

1
The purchase price.
(up to 45 points)

42.33

The reputation of the vendor and 
of the vendor's goods or services.
(up to 15 points)

RANKING

3
The quality of the vendor's good 
or services. (up to 16 points)

13.16

5
The vendor's past relationship 
with the College. (up to 3 points)

4

3

85.98

The extent to which the vendor's 
goods or services meet the 
college's needs.
(up to 20 points)

TOTAL EVALUATION POINTS

The impact on the ability of the 
College to comply with laws and 
rules relating to Historically 
Underutilized Business.
(up to 1 point)

94.15
1 2

0

SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE
INSURANCE AGENT AND ADMINISTRATION SERVICES FOR 

OWNER CONTROLLED INSURANCE PROGRAM
PROJECT NO. 15-16-1048

EVALUATION FORM

6

14.83

12.66

VENDOR
Montalvo

Insurance Agency

PHONE 956-968-5521

ADDRESS 208 S Texas Blvd
CITY/STATE/ZIP Weslaco, TX 78599

Carlisle
Insurance Agency, Inc.

611 S 14th St #100
Kingsville, TX 78363

361-595-5611

14.83

18.66

2

0

168



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 42 

Review and Action as Necessary on Substantial or Final Completion 
for the Following Non-Bond Construction Projects  

 
Approval of substantial or final completion for the following non-bond construction 
projects is requested: 
 

Projects 
Substantial 
Completion 

Final 
Completion 

Documents Attached

1. Technology Campus West 
Academic Building Re-Roofing 
 
Architect: Amtech Building 
Sciences, Inc. 
Contractor: Rio Roofing, Inc. 

Recommended Estimated 
February 2016

Substantial Completion

2. Pecan Campus Relocation of 
Electrical Power Lines 
 
Engineer: Sigma HN Engineers 
Contractor: Metro Electric 

Recommended Estimated 
February 2016

Substantial Completion

3. Pecan Campus Sports Field 
Lighting 
 
Engineer: DBR Engineering 
Contractor: Zitro Electric, LLC 

Recommended Estimated 
February 2016

Substantial Completion

4. Pecan Plaza Asphalt Resurfacing 
along Alley Side of Building B 
 
Engineer: Halff Associates 
Contractor: 5 Star Construction 

Approved 
December 

2015 

Recommended Final Completion Letter

 
1. Technology Campus West Academic Building Re-Roofing 
 
It is recommended that substantial completion for this project with Rio Roofing, Inc. be 
approved. 
 
Amtech Building Sciences, Inc. and college staff visited the site and developed a 
construction punch list.  As a result of this site visit and observation of the completed 
work, a Certificate of Substantial Completion for the project was certified on December 
14, 2015. Substantial Completion was accomplished within the time allowed in the 
Owner/Contractor agreement for this project.  A copy of the Substantial Completion 
Certificate is enclosed. 
 
Contractor Rio Roofing, Inc. will continue working on the punch list items identified and 
will have thirty (30) days to complete before final completion can be recommended for 
approval.  It is anticipated that final acceptance of this project will be recommended for 
approval at the February 2016 Board meeting. 
 
 
 
 

169



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 43 

2. Pecan Campus Relocation of Electrical Power Lines 
 
It is recommended that substantial completion for this project with Metro Electric be 
approved. 
 
Sigma HN Engineers and college staff visited the site and developed a construction punch 
list.  As a result of this site visit and observation of the completed work, a Certificate of 
Substantial Completion for the project was certified on January 4, 2016. Substantial 
Completion was accomplished within the time allowed in the Owner/Contractor 
agreement for this project.  A copy of the Substantial Completion Certificate is enclosed. 
 
Contractor Metro Electric will continue working on the punch list items identified and will 
have thirty (30) days to complete before final completion can be recommended for 
approval.  It is anticipated that final acceptance of this project will be recommended for 
approval at the February 2016 Board meeting. 
 
3. Pecan Campus Sports Field Lighting 
 
It is recommended that substantial completion for this project with Zitro Electric, LLC be 
approved. 
 
DBR Engineering and college staff visited the site and developed a construction punch 
list.  As a result of this site visit and observation of the completed work, a Certificate of 
Substantial Completion for the project was certified on December 9, 2015. Substantial 
Completion was accomplished within the time allowed in the Owner/Contractor 
agreement for this project.  A copy of the Substantial Completion Certificate is enclosed. 
 
Contractor Zitro Electric, LLC will continue working on the punch list items identified and 
will have thirty (30) days to complete before final completion can be recommended for 
approval.  It is anticipated that final acceptance of this project will be recommended for 
approval at the February 2016 Board meeting. 
 
4. Pecan Plaza Asphalt Resurfacing along Alley Side of Building B 
 
It is recommended that final completion and release of final payment for this project with 
5 Star Construction be approved. 
 
Final Completion including punch list items were accomplished as required in the 
Owner/Contractor agreement for this project. It is recommended that final completion and 
release of final payment for this project with 5 Star Construction be approved.  The original 
cost approved for this project was in the amount of $115,000. 
 
The following chart summarizes the above information:  
 

Construction 
Budget 

Approved 
Proposal 
Amount 

Net Total 
Change 
Orders 

Final Project 
Cost 

Previous 
Amount Paid 

Remaining 
Balance 

$75,000 $115,000 $3,140 $118,140 $112,233 $5,907 

170



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 44 

On January 4, 2016, STC Planning & Construction Department staff along with Halff 
Associates inspected the site to confirm that all punch list items were completed.   
Enclosed is a certificate of construction completion from Halff Associates acknowledging 
all work is complete and recommending release of final payment to 5 Star Construction 
in the amount of $5,907. 
 
The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval of the substantial or final 
completion of the projects as presented. 
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the substantial or final completion of the projects as presented. 
 
The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the substantial 
or final completion of the projects as presented. 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D. 
President 
 

  

171



172



173



174



175



176

dpalacios
Text Box
December 9, 2015



177



178



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 45 

Update on Status of Non-Bond Program Construction Projects 

The Facilities Planning and Construction staff prepared the attached design and 
construction update. This update summarizes the status of each capital improvement 
project currently in progress. Mary Elizondo and Rick de la Garza will be present to 
respond to questions and address concerns of the Board. 
 

 
  

179



   
   

  

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Ma
na

ge
r

Ar
ch

ite
ct

/E
ng

in
ee

r
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

  Project Development

 Board approval of A/E

Contract Negotiations

 Concept Development

 Schematic Approval

 30%

 60%

 95%

 100%

 Solicit of Proposals

Approve Contractor

 Construction Start

 30%

 50%

 75%

 95% Substantial Comp

 100%

 Final Completion

15
-1

-0
02

a
 P

ec
an

 - 
Co

ve
re

d A
re

a f
or

 C
er

am
ic 

Ar
ts 

Ki
lns

 
Ro

be
rt

EG
V 

Ar
ch

ite
cts

Ho
lch

em
on

t L
td.

15
-1

-0
02

b
 P

ec
an

 - 
Int

er
ior

 R
en

ov
ati

on
 fo

r C
er

am
ic 

Ar
ts 

Ro
be

rt
EG

V 
Ar

ch
ite

cts
He

rrc
on

15
-1

-0
06

 P
ec

an
 - 

Lib
ra

ry 
St

ud
y R

oo
ms

 A
dd

itio
ns

 
Ro

be
rt

Bo
ult

ing
ho

us
e S

im
ps

on
 G

ate
s A

rch
ite

cts
TB

D
15

-1
-0

07
 P

ec
an

 - 
St

ud
en

t A
cti

vit
ies

 S
po

rts
 F

iel
d L

igh
tin

g 
Ro

be
rt

DB
R 

En
gin

ee
rin

g
Zit

ro
 E

lec
tric

15
-1

-0
12

 P
ec

an
 - 

Inf
ra

str
uc

tur
e f

or
 R

elo
ca

tio
n o

f P
or

tab
le 

Bu
ild

ing
s 

Vi
cto

r
Me

lde
n &

 H
un

t
Ce

lso
 C

on
str

uc
tio

n
15

-1
-0

13
 P

ec
an

 - 
Re

loc
ati

on
 of

 E
lec

tric
al 

Po
we

r L
ine

s 
Ro

be
rt

Si
gm

a E
ng

ine
er

ing
Me

tro
 E

lec
tric

15
-1

-0
17

 P
ec

an
 - 

Bu
ild

ing
 K

 E
nr

oll
me

nt 
Ce

nte
r  

Vi
cto

r
Bo

ult
ing

ho
us

e S
im

ps
on

 G
ate

s A
rch

ite
cts

TB
D

15
-1

-0
20

 P
ec

an
 - 

AE
CH

S 
Se

rvi
ce

 D
riv

e a
nd

 S
ide

wa
lk 

N/
A

Jo
hn

R.
 G

uti
er

re
z E

ng
ine

er
ing

Ro
th 

Ex
ca

va
tio

n
15

-1
-R

01
 P

ec
an

 - 
Re

su
rfa

cin
g E

as
t L

oo
p R

oa
d a

nd
 E

ntr
an

ce
 (R

R)
 

Vi
cto

r
TB

D
TB

D
16

-1
-xx

1
 P

ec
an

 - 
Re

mo
va

l o
f E

xis
tin

g T
re

es
 

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

Ro
be

rt
TB

D
Ma

ldo
na

do
 N

ur
se

ry
16

-1
-R

01
 P

ec
an

 - 
Bu

ild
ing

 A
 S

ign
 R

ep
lac

em
en

t (
RR

) 
N/

A
N/

A
Ro

be
rt

Pu
bli

c R
ela

tio
ns

16
-1

-R
02

 P
ec

an
 - 

Up
gr

ad
e F

en
ce

 A
lon

g 3
1s

t S
tre

et 
(R

R)
 

Vi
cto

r
15

-1
-0

03
 P

ec
an

 P
laz

a -
 E

me
rg

en
cy

 G
en

er
ato

r a
nd

 W
irin

g 
Ri

ck
TB

D
TB

D
15

-1
-R

04
 P

ec
an

 P
laz

a -
 R

es
ur

fac
ing

 B
ac

k S
ide

 of
 B

uil
din

g B
 (R

R)
 

Vi
cto

r
Ha

lff 
As

so
cia

tes
5 S

tar
 C

on
str

uc
tio

n
16

-1
-0

16
 P

ec
an

 P
laz

a -
 P

ar
kin

g A
re

a f
or

 P
oli

ce
 V

eh
icl

es
 

Vi
cto

r
R.

 G
uti

er
re

z E
ng

ine
er

ing
TB

D

16
-2

-R
07

 M
V 

- C
hil

dc
ar

e C
en

ter
 P

lay
 G

ro
un

d F
loo

rin
g (

RR
) 

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

Vi
cto

r
N/

A
Pa

rk 
Pl

ac
e R

ec
re

ati
on

al 
16

-2
-R

11
 M

V 
- B

uil
din

g H
 D

ata
 C

ab
lin

g I
nfr

as
tru

ctu
re

 (R
R)

 
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
Ro

be
rt

N/
A

DI
R/

Br
idg

eN
et

15
-3

-0
04

 T
C 

- B
uil

din
g B

 D
oo

rs 
an

d F
ra

me
 R

ep
lac

em
en

t 
Ro

be
rt

RO
FA

TB
D

15
-3

-0
05

 T
C 

- G
M 

Ca
r S

tor
ag

e A
re

a U
pg

ra
de

 
Ro

be
rt

TB
D

TB
D

15
-3

-0
14

 T
C 

- W
or

kfo
rce

 B
uil

din
g C

on
fer

en
ce

 R
oo

m 
Ro

be
rt

RO
FA

TB
D

13
-3

-R
00

2
 T

C 
- W

es
t A

ca
de

mi
c B

uil
din

g R
e-

Ro
ofi

ng
 (R

R)
 

Ro
be

rt
Am

tec
h B

uil
din

g S
cie

nc
es

Ri
o R

oo
fin

g
14

-3
-R

00
4

 T
C 

- C
oo

lin
g T

ow
er

 R
ep

lac
em

en
t (

RR
) 

Ri
ck

Ha
lff 

As
so

cia
tes

Pr
o-

Te
ch

15
-3

-R
03

 T
C 

- R
ep

air
 C

on
cre

te 
Flo

or
 M

ec
ha

nic
al 

Ro
om

 (R
R)

 
N/

A
Ro

be
rt

CL
H 

En
gin

ee
rin

g 
TB

D
16

-2
-R

12
 T

C 
- B

uil
din

g B
 F

loo
rin

g R
ep

lac
em

en
t (

RR
) 

 T
C 

 B
uil

din
g B

 D
ata

 C
ab

lin
g I

nfr
as

tru
ctu

re
 (R

R)
 

14
-4

-R
00

4
 N

AH
 - 

Irr
iga

tio
n S

ys
tem

 U
pg

ra
de

 (R
R)

 
N/

A
N/

A
Jo

hn
SS

P 
De

sig
n

So
uth

er
n L

an
ds

ca
pe

s
16

-4
-xx

4
 N

AH
 - 

Th
er

ma
l P

lan
t 

Ro
be

rt
Ha

lff 
As

so
cia

tes
16

-4
-R

16
 N

AH
 - 

Re
su

rfa
ce

 P
ar

kin
g L

ot 
#2

 (R
R)

 
Jo

hn
TB

D

15
-5

-xx
5

 S
tar

r -
 B

uil
din

g E
 &

 J 
Cr

isi
s M

gt 
Ce

nte
r G

en
er

ato
r 

14
-6

-0
10

 D
W

 - 
Bu

ild
ing

 to
 B

uil
din

g A
DA

 C
om

pli
an

ce
 P

h I
I 

Ro
be

rt
Da

nn
en

ba
um

 E
ng

ine
er

ing
TB

D
14

-6
-R

01
2

 D
W

 - 
Lig

hti
ng

 U
pg

ra
de

s f
or

 P
ar

kin
g L

ots
 (R

R)
 

Ro
be

rt
DB

R 
En

gin
ee

rin
g

Me
tro

 E
lec

tric
15

-6
-0

01
 D

W
 - 

Ou
tdo

or
 F

ur
nit

ur
e 

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

Ri
ck

N/
A

15
-6

-0
02

 D
W

 - 
Di

re
cti

on
al 

Si
gn

ag
e 

N/
A

N/
A

Vi
cto

r
N/

A
TB

D
16

-6
-R

21
 D

W
 - 

Ai
r H

an
dle

r B
low

er
 W

he
els

 (R
R)

 
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
Ri

ck
N/

A
TB

D
 D

W
  

FO
CU

S 
on

 A
cti

ve
 Le

ar
nin

g (
RR

) 

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
ON

 P
RO

JE
CT

S 
PR

OG
RE

SS
 R

EP
OR

T 
- D

ec
em

be
r 1

5, 
20

15

Pr
oj

ec
t D

ev
elo

pm
en

t
De

sig
n 

Ph
as

e
So

lic
ita

tio
n 

of
 

Pr
op

os
als

Co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

Ph
as

e

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

Project number

Fo
r F

Y 
20

15
-2

01
6, 

27
 n

on
-b

on
d 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 ar
e c

ur
re

nt
ly 

in
 p

ro
gr

es
s, 

6 h
av

e b
ee

n 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 an
d 

40
 p

en
di

ng
 st

ar
t u

p 
- 7

3 T
ot

al

P
ec

an
 C

am
p

u
s 

an
d

 P
ec

an
 P

la
za

M
id

 V
al

le
y 

C
am

p
u

s

T
ec

h
n

o
lo

g
y 

C
am

p
u

s

N
u

rs
in

g
 a

n
d

 A
lli

ed
 H

ea
lt

h
 C

am
p

u
s

S
ta

rr
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
am

p
u

s

D
is

tr
ic

t 
W

id
e 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts

180



 
 

  

Pa
ge
 1
 o
f 4

 
 

S
ta

tu
s 

o
f 

N
o

n
-B

o
n

d
 C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 P

ro
je

ct
s 

in
 P

ro
g

re
ss

 
Ja

n
u

ar
y 

20
16

 
 

P
ro

je
ct

 
%

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 

D
at

e 
to

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 

C
u

rr
en

t 
A

ct
iv

it
y 

B
u

d
g

et
 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

A
m

o
u

n
t 

A
m

o
u

n
t 

P
ai

d
 

B
al

an
ce

 

 
 

P
ec

an
 C

a
m

p
u

s 
 

C
o

ve
re

d
 A

re
a 

fo
r 

C
er

am
ic

 A
rt

s 
K

iln
s 

 

 
75

%
 

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

1
6

 

1.
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ha
se

 
2.

 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

in
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

 
$3

2
5,

00
0

 
$3

4
0,

60
2.

50
 

$2
2

3,
10

7.
14

 
$1

1
7,

49
5.

36
 

In
te

ri
o

r 
R

en
o

va
ti

o
n

 
fo

r 
C

er
a

m
ic

 A
rt

s
 

10
0

%
 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

1
5

 
1.

 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

P
ha

se
 

2.
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

om
pl

et
e

 
$3

2
5,

00
0

 
$1

0
9,

20
9

 
$1

0
9,

20
9

 
$0

 

L
ib

ra
ry

 A
d

d
it

io
n

al
 

S
tu

d
y 

R
o

o
m

s 
 

15
%

 
Ju

ne
 2

01
5

 
1.

 
D

es
ig

n 
P

ha
se

 
2.

 
D

es
ig

n 
on

 h
ol

d
 

 
$5

4,
0

00
 

T
B

D
 

$0
 

T
B

D
 

S
p

o
rt

s 
F

ie
ld

s 
L

ig
h

ti
n

g
 

95
%

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
1

5
 

1.
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ha
se

 
2.

 
S

ub
st

an
tia

l C
o

m
pl

et
io

n
 

 
$2

0
0,

00
0

 
$2

2
8,

00
0

 
$2

1
4,

67
8.

63
 

$1
3,

3
21

.3
7

 

In
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 f
o

r 
R

el
o

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

 
P

o
rt

ab
le

 B
u

ild
in

g
s 

 

 
75

%
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
1

6
 

1.
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ha
se

 
2.

 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

in
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

$3
5

0,
00

0
 

$4
6

9,
21

9.
21

 
$2

1
4,

54
1.

87
 

$2
5

4,
67

7.
34

 

R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
 o

f 
E

le
ct

ri
ca

l P
o

w
er

 
L

in
es

 
 

 
95

%
 

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
1

5
 

1.
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ha
se

 
2.

 
S

ub
st

an
tia

l C
o

m
pl

et
io

n
 

  
$2

2
0,

00
0

 
$2

1
2,

35
3.

65
 

$1
6

9,
64

5.
32

 
$4

2,
7

07
.7

3
 

S
tu

d
en

t 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
u

il
d

in
g

 K
 

E
n

ro
llm

en
t 

C
en

te
r 

 

30
%

 
O

ct
ob

er
 

20
1

5
 

3.
 

D
es

ig
n 

D
ev

el
o

pm
en

t P
ha

se
 

3.
 

D
es

ig
n 

in
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

$3
7,

0
00

 
$3

7,
0

00
 

$3
2,

0
10

 
$4

,9
9

0
 

A
E

C
H

S
 S

er
vi

ce
 D

ri
ve

 
an

d
 S

id
ew

al
k 

R
el

o
ca

ti
o

n
 

 

 
10

0
%

 

 
A

ug
us

t 
20

1
5

 

1.
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ha
se

 
2.

 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
om

pl
et

e
 

$6
0,

0
00

 
$4

9,
4

72
 

$4
9,

4
72

 
$0

 

R
es

u
rf

ac
in

g
 E

as
t 

L
o

o
p

 R
o

ad
 a

n
d

 
E

n
tr

an
ce

 
5%

 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
1

6
 

1.
 

D
es

ig
n 

P
ha

se
 

2.
 

C
on

tr
ac

t N
e

go
tia

tio
ns

 
$8

,0
0

0
 

T
B

D
 

$0
 

T
B

D
 

R
em

o
va

l o
f 

T
re

es
 f

o
r 

B
o

n
d

 C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 
 

10
0

%
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
1

6
 

3.
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ha
se

 
4.

 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
om

pl
et

e
 

$2
1,

0
00

 
$7

,1
5

0
 

$7
,1

5
0

 
$0

 

181



 
 

  

Pa
ge
 2
 o
f 4

 
 

P
ro

je
ct

 
%

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 

D
at

e 
to

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 

C
u

rr
en

t 
A

ct
iv

it
y 

B
u

d
g

et
 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

A
m

o
u

n
t 

A
m

o
u

n
t 

P
ai

d
 

B
al

an
ce

 

B
u

il
d

in
g

 A
 S

ig
n

 
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t 

 
0%

 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
1

6
 

1.
 

P
ro

je
ct

 D
ev

el
o

pm
en

t 
2.

 
D

es
ig

n 
in

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
$1

0,
0

00
 

T
B

D
 

$0
 

T
B

D
 

U
p

g
ra

d
e 

F
en

ce
 A

lo
n

g
 

31
s

t  S
tr

ee
t 

 
 

10
0

%
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
1

6
 

1.
 

D
es

ig
n 

P
ha

se
 

2.
 

D
es

ig
n 

in
 P

ro
gr

es
s 

N
/A

 
N

/A
 

N
/A
 

N
/A
 

P
ec

an
 P

la
za

 P
o

lic
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

E
m

er
g

en
cy

 
G

en
er

at
o

r 
 

0%
 

M
a

y 
2

01
6

 
3.

 
P

ro
je

ct
 D

ev
el

o
pm

en
t 

4.
 

W
or

k 
in

 p
ro

gr
e

ss
 

 
$4

0
0,

00
0

 
T

B
D

 
$0

 
T

B
D

 

P
ec

an
 P

la
za

 A
sp

h
al

t 
R

es
u

rf
ac

in
g

 o
n

 A
lle

y 
S

id
e 

 

 
10

0
%

 

 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
1

5
 

1.
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ha
se

 
2.

 
F

in
al

 C
om

pl
et

io
n

 
  

$7
5,

0
00

 
$1

1
8,

14
0

 
$1

1
2,

23
3

 
$5

,9
0

7
 

P
ec

an
 P

la
za

 P
ar

ki
n

g
 

A
re

a 
fo

r 
P

o
lic

e 
V

eh
ic

le
s

 
 

 
10

%
 

M
a

y 
2

01
6

 

1.
 

D
es

ig
n 

P
ha

se
 

2.
 

C
on

tr
ac

t N
e

go
tia

tio
ns

 
 

  

$2
5

0,
00

0
 

T
B

D
 

$0
 

T
B

D
 

  
 

M
id

 V
al

le
y 

C
am

p
u

s 
 

 C
h

ild
ca

re
 C

en
te

r 
P

la
y 

G
ro

u
n

d
 F

lo
o

ri
n

g
 

 

10
0

%
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

1
5

 

1.
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ha
se

 
2.

 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
om

pl
et

e
 

 
$3

1,
0

00
 

$2
9,

6
90

.0
0

 
$2

9,
6

90
.0

0
 

$0
 

B
u

ild
in

g
 H

 D
at

a 
C

ab
li

n
g

 
In

fr
as

tr
u

ct
u

re
 

 

5%
 

M
ar

ch
 2

0
16

 

1.
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ha
se

 
2.

 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

S
ta

rt
 

$4
3,

5
00

 
$4

2,
8

11
.7

5
 

$0
 

$4
2,

8
11

.7
5

 

 
 

 
T

ec
h

n
o

lo
g

y 
C

am
p

u
s 

 
 

 
 

G
M

 C
ar

 S
to

ra
g

e 
A

re
a 

U
p

g
ra

d
e 

 
5%

 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
1

6
 

1.
 

D
es

ig
n 

P
ha

se
 

2.
 

C
on

tr
ac

t N
e

go
tia

tio
ns

 
$1

1,
2

50
 

T
B

D
 

$0
 

T
B

D
 

W
es

t 
A

c
ad

e
m

ic
 

B
u

ild
in

g
 R

e-
ro

o
fi

n
g

 
95

%
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
1

6
 

1.
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ha
se

 
2.

 
S

ub
st

an
tia

l C
o

m
pl

et
io

n
 

 

 
$1

,6
9

8,
90

0
 

 
$1

,2
9

6,
00

0
 

 
$1

,1
4

7,
22

0
 

 
$1

4
8,

78
0

 

182



 
 

  

Pa
ge
 3
 o
f 4

 
 

P
ro

je
ct

 
%

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 

D
at

e 
to

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 

C
u

rr
en

t 
A

ct
iv

it
y 

B
u

d
g

et
 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

A
m

o
u

n
t 

A
m

o
u

n
t 

P
ai

d
 

B
al

an
ce

 

H
V

A
C

 C
o

o
lin

g
 T

o
w

er
 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
95

%
 

  

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
1

5
 

  

1.
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ha
se

 
2.

 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

in
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

  

 
$4

1
5,

00
0

   

 
$3

9
6,

00
0

   

$3
6

1,
00

0
  

 
$3

5,
0

00
   

B
u

il
d

in
g

 B
 M

ai
n

 D
o

o
r 

an
d

 F
ra

m
e 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
20

%
 

M
ar

ch
  

20
1

6
 

1.
 

D
es

ig
n 

P
ha

se
 

2.
 

D
es

ig
n 

in
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

$7
,5

0
0

 
$3

,7
5

0
 

$0
 

$3
,7

5
0

 

B
u

il
d

in
g

 C
 

C
o

n
fe

re
n

ce
 R

o
o

m
 

A
d

d
it

io
n

 
20

%
 

M
ar

ch
 

20
1

6
 

1.
 

D
es

ig
n 

P
ha

se
 

2.
 

D
es

ig
n 

in
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

 
$9

,6
0

0
 

$4
,5

0
0

 
$0

 

   
$4

,5
0

0
    

R
ep

ai
r 

C
o

n
cr

et
e 

F
lo

o
r 

M
ec

h
an

ic
al

 
R

o
o

m
 

25
%

 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
1

6
 

1.
 

D
es

ig
n 

P
ha

se
 

2.
 

C
on

tr
ac

t N
e

go
tia

tio
ns

 
$5

,0
0

0
 

T
B

D
 

$0
 

T
B

D
 

B
u

il
d

in
g

 B
 F

lo
o

ri
n

g
 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
5%

 
Ju

ne
  

20
1

6
 

1.
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ha
se

 
2.

 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

in
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

$4
4,

2
00

 
$5

3,
1

14
.1

5
 

$0
 

$2
3,

8
67

.1
2

 

N
u

rs
in

g
 a

n
d

 A
ll

ie
d

 H
ea

lt
h

 C
am

p
u

s 

Ir
ri

g
at

io
n

 S
ys

te
m

 
u

p
g

ra
d

es
 

10
0

%
 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

1
5

 

1.
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ha
se

 
2.

 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
om

pl
et

e
 

  

$3
0,

0
00

 
$3

7,
7

67
 

$3
7,

7
67

 
$0

 

T
h

er
m

al
 P

la
n

t 
10

%
 

M
ar

ch
 

 2
01

6
 

1.
  

  
D

es
ig

n 
P

h
as

e
 

2.
  

  
C

on
tr

ac
t N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 

$2
,6

5
0,

00
0

 
T

B
D

 
$0

 
T

B
D

 

R
es

u
rf

ac
e 

P
a

rk
in

g
 

L
o

t 
2 

5%
  

M
ar

ch
  

20
1

6
 

1.
 

D
es

ig
n 

P
ha

se
 

2.
 

C
on

tr
ac

t N
e

go
tia

tio
ns

 
$2

5,
0

00
 

T
B

D
 

$0
 

T
B

D
 

 
 

S
ta

rr
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
am

p
u

s 
 

B
ld

g
 E

 &
 J

 C
ri

si
s 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

C
en

te
r 

w
it

h
 G

en
er

at
o

r 
0%

 
M

ar
ch

 
20

1
6

 

1.
 

P
ro

je
ct

 D
ev

el
o

pm
en

t 
2.

 
W

or
k 

in
 p

ro
gr

e
ss

 
 

$4
0

0,
00

0
 

T
B

D
 

$0
 

$4
0

0,
00

0
 

183



 
 

  

Pa
ge
 4
 o
f 4

 
 

P
ro

je
ct

 
%

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 

D
at

e 
to

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 

C
u

rr
en

t 
A

ct
iv

it
y 

B
u

d
g

et
 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

A
m

o
u

n
t 

A
m

o
u

n
t 

P
ai

d
 

B
al

an
ce

 

 
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
W

id
e 

 

B
u

il
d

in
g

 t
o

 B
u

il
d

in
g

 
A

D
A

 A
cc

es
si

b
il

it
y 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 

P
h

as
e 

II 

10
%

 
O

ct
ob

er
 

20
1

6
 

1.
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ha
se

 
2.

 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

S
ta

rt
 

$4
0

0,
00

0
 

T
B

D
 

$0
 

T
B

D
 

P
ar

ki
n

g
 L

o
ts

 L
ig

h
ti

n
g

 
U

p
g

ra
d

es
 t

o
 L

E
D

 
10

0
%

 
A

ug
us

t 
20

1
5

 

1.
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ha
se

 
2.

 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
om

pl
et

e
 

$1
0

0,
00

0
 

$5
0,

6
91

 
$5

0,
6

91
 

$0
 

D
ir

ec
ti

o
n

al
 S

ig
n

ag
e 

U
p

d
at

es
 

10
%

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
1

5
 

1.
 

P
ro

je
ct

 D
ev

el
o

pm
en

t 
2.

 
W

or
k 

in
 p

ro
gr

e
ss

 
$5

0,
0

00
 

T
B

D
 

$0
 

T
B

D
 

O
u

td
o

o
r 

F
u

rn
it

u
re

 
 

50
%

 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
1

5
 

1.
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ha
se

 
2.

 
M

at
er

ia
l d

el
iv

er
ed

 
$2

5,
0

00
 

T
B

D
 

$0
 

T
B

D
 

A
ir

 H
an

d
le

r 
B

lo
w

er
 

W
h

ee
ls

 
0%

 
Ju

ne
  

20
1

6
 

1.
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ha
se

 
2.

 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

S
ta

rt
 

$5
0,

0
00

 
$1

4,
2

49
.1

3
 

$0
 

$1
4,

2
49

.1
3

 

F
o

r 
F

Y
 2

01
4-

20
15

, 
27

 n
o

n
-b

o
n

d
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

ar
e 

cu
rr

en
tl

y 
in

 p
ro

g
re

ss
, 6

 h
av

e
 b

ee
n

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 a

n
d

 4
0 

p
en

d
in

g
 s

ta
rt

u
p

 -
 7

3 
T

o
ta

l 

 

184



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 46 

Consideration and Approval of Checks and Financial Reports 
 
Board action is requested to approve the checks for release and the financial reports for 
the month of December 2015.  The approval is for checks submitted for release in the 
amount greater than $125,000.00 and checks in the amount greater than $25,000.00 that 
were released as authorized by Board Policy No. 5610. 
 
Mrs. Mary Elizondo, Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services, will provide 
a review of the Financial Report for the month of December 2015, and will respond to 
questions posed by the Board. 
 
The checks and the financial reports submitted for approval are included in the 
Board packet under separate cover. 
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees approve the submitted checks for release 
in an amount over $125,000.00, the checks that were released as authorized by Board 
Policy #5610, and the financial reports submitted for the month of December 2015. 
 
The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the submitted 
checks for release in an amount over $125,000.00, the checks that were released as 
authorized by Board Policy #5610 and the financial reports submitted for the month of 
December 2015. 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
 
Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D. 
President 

  

185



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 47 

Consideration and Approval of Checks and Financial Reports 
 
The Checks and the Financial Reports presented for approval are included in the Board 
Packet under SEPARATE COVER: 

 
A. Release of Checks for $25,000.00 to less than $125,000.00 

Released Prior to Board Approval for December 2015 
B. Release of Checks for $125,000.00 and Above 

Board of Trustees Approval Required for December 2015 
C. Release of Checks for $125,000.00 and Above 

Released Prior to Board Approval (Policy 5610) for December 2015 
D. Release of Construction Fund Checks for December 2015 
E. Quarterly Investment Report for December 2015 
F. Summary of Revenue for December 2015 
G. Summary of State Appropriations Income for December 2015 
H. Summary of Property Tax Income for December 2015 
I. Summary of Expenditures by Classification for December 2015 
J. Summary of Expenditures by Function for December 2015 
K. Summary of Auxiliary Fund Revenues and Expenditures for December 2015 
L. Summary of Grant Revenues and Expenditures, December 2015 
M. Summary of Bid Solicitations 
N. Check Register for December 2015 

  

186



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 48 

 
 
 
 
 
 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
 
 

The Financial Reports are included in your 
Board packet under separate cover. 

 
  

187



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
President’s Report 

  

188



 
 
 

   

President’s Report 
December 16, 2015 – January 26, 2016 

 
 

 

Students were encouraged to register for the Spring 2016 Semester. They had the option of stopping by 
in person or registering online 24/7 via Jagnet.  

Among the many programs available to students is Design & 
Building Technologies.  Students were invited to explore this 
program that will be available this Spring Semester.   

 
 

 

 
South Texas College was a proud title sponsor of the Vipers Kids Day Game held December 16, 2015, 
at State Farm Arena.  Almost 5,500 future South Texas College students enjoyed a Vipers Game.  
This fun activity for the children was a first for many of the students.  We know that many of these 
students will transition to South Texas College in the not too distant future.  
 

  
 
  

1 
189

https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/a.449715503578.241681.50696268578/10153535756898579/?type=3
https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/a.449715503578.241681.50696268578/10153535756898579/?type=3
https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/a.449715503578.241681.50696268578/10153524346363579/?type=3
https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/a.449715503578.241681.50696268578/10153524346363579/?type=3
https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/a.449715503578.241681.50696268578/10153536166443579/?type=3
https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/a.449715503578.241681.50696268578/10153535756898579/?type=3
https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/a.449715503578.241681.50696268578/10153524346363579/?type=3


 
 
 

   

President’s Report 
December 16, 2015 – January 26, 2016 

 
 
On December 19th the South Texas College Ballet 
Folklorico welcomed Son Luna y Jóvenes 
Zapateadores to the McAllen Civic Auditorium, 
and gave an absolutely stunning performance. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Faculty and staff have returned from the Winter Break and prepared for the start of the Spring 2016 
Semester.  Enrollment continues to climb over last year’s numbers.  Classes began Tuesday, January 
19, 2016.    

The office of Human Resources held a January United at 
Work webinar on the flu and common cold.  This Preventing 
Colds and the Flu, was held on Tuesday, January 19th from 
11:30 a.m. – 12: 15p.m.  All interested employees were 
encouraged to join attend the webinar to learn important 
information that to stay healthy during the cold and flu 
season.  Everyone learned the difference between the two 
illnesses, how they are spread, preventive measures, 
including common myths about the flu vaccine and more. 
 
 
The Kinesiology Health & Wellness Center announced their hours of operation for the Spring 2016 
Semester.  Group Fitness Classes will be held at the Pecan Plaza location on Mon-Friday starting at 
4:30 PM-6:45 PM.  Everyone is invited to visit one of the College’s three facilities.   

2 
190

https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/pcb.10153485146698579/10153485143038579/?type=3
https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/pcb.10153485146698579/10153485143038579/?type=3
https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/pcb.10153485146698579/10153485143503579/?type=3
https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/pcb.10153485146698579/10153485143503579/?type=3
https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/pcb.10153485146698579/10153485144013579/?type=3
https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/pcb.10153485146698579/10153485144013579/?type=3
https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/pcb.10153485146698579/10153485144538579/?type=3
https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/pcb.10153485146698579/10153485144538579/?type=3
https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/pcb.10153485146698579/10153485143038579/?type=3
https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/pcb.10153485146698579/10153485143503579/?type=3
https://www.facebook.com/stcjaguars/photos/pcb.10153485146698579/10153485144013579/?type=3


 
 
 

   

President’s Report 
December 16, 2015 – January 26, 2016 

 
 

 
 
Faculty and staff were invited to emergency response training at 
the Pecan Campus Cooper Center auditorium on Friday, January 
15, 2016, 9:00 am. This training included guidance on how to 
protect themselves from active shooters on campus.  
  
The new Campus Carry law (Senate Bill 11 - 84th Legislative 
Session) was also reviewed. Differences between the new Open 
Carry law (House Bill 910 - 84th Legislative Session) that took 
effect January 1, 2016, the carrying of long guns, and Campus Carry were also reviewed. 
 

Faculty and staff were invited to become 
Beacon Mentors.  The South Texas College 
Beacon Mentoring Program is a collaborative 
initiative by the divisions of Academic Affair 
and Student Affairs & Enrollment 
Management to increase success rates in 
gatekeeper courses. The program assigns a 
trained Beacon Mentor to a gatekeeper 
course. The faculty member and the mentor 
work together to provide a support structure 
in and out of the classroom. The program 

requires a minimum four mandatory visits by the mentor with the student. Results indicate this program 
has a positive effect on student retention and completion. 
 
 Worked with key staff on a tuition proposal for offering Dual Enrollment Courses to Harlingen ISD.   

 
 Participated in the search committee for the Director of Facilities Planning and Construction 

position.  Interviews were held on Thursday, January 14, 2016 with the top four candidates 
selected by the search committee.   

 
 

3 
191



 
 
 

   

President’s Report 
December 16, 2015 – January 26, 2016 

 
 
 Together with Nicolas Gonzalez, Administrator for High School Programs and Services, met with 

Dr. Daniel King, Superintendent, PSJA ISD.  It was important to have a conversation with him 
regarding the TEA 2015 Report on High School Campuses with Passing Rates on the 
STARR/TAKS of less than or equal to 50% in any two of the preceeding three years.  There were 
a total of 14 underperforming schools from PSJA ISD on the list.      

 
 Together with Paul Rodriguez, Board Secretary and Jayson Valerio, Interim Dean for Nursing and 

Allied Health, participated in a meeting with representatives from Doctors Hospital at 
Renaissance; namely, Alonzo Cantu, R. Armour Forse, M.D., Ph.D., and Larry Safir.  DHR 
reached out to South Texas College to discuss our commitment to work collaboratively with them.  
It was a productive meeting, and it was clear DHR wants a strong and positive relationship with 
the College.  I assured them the feeling was mutual.  We will continue to work closely with key 
staff from DHR to ensure we address their critical needs for professional nurses and other health 
care professionals.   

 
 The South Texas College family gathered to share their appreciation and 

extend best wishes to Noemi Garza, Director of Library Public Services, upon 
her retirement.  Her last day at the College was January 15, 2016.  

 
 Traveled to Austin to attend the Texas Student Success Council Meeting held at the Austin 

Community College Highland Business Center, as well as the Texas Association of Community 
Colleges (TACC) Legislative Committee meeting, the 2016 Lamar Luncheon and the TACC 
Quarterly meeting and dinner.   

 
 Coordinated a School Board Member Appreciation Breakfast that was held on Friday, January 

22nd @ 8:00 AM, at the Pecan Campus Rainbow Room.  Participating school districts received 
framed certificates signed by the College’s Board of Trustees expressing appreciation for the 
collaboration, commitment, and resolve to work together with South Texas College for the 
success and well-being of all students in Hidalgo and Starr counties.  Over 24 school district 
superintendents and members of the Board were invited.  Also joining the breakfast were key 
staff from the College focused on public school and dual enrollment partnerships.   

 
 Participated on the Search Committee for the Internal Auditor position at South Texas College.  

Invitations for interviews were extended to the top candidates and interviews were held on 
Monday, January 25.   

 
 Coordinated the agendas and back-up materials for the Education and Workforce Development, 

Facilities, and Finance and Human Resources Committees, as well as the January 26th Regular 
Board meeting.   

 
 Continue to meet with South Texas College’s President’s Cabinet to: 

− facilitate administrative planning on a weekly basis;   
− review and address issues of concern; 
− formulate strategic direction and problem solving; and 
− provide communication and feedback among the President and the Vice Presidents 

4 
192



 
 
 

   

President’s Report 
December 16, 2015 – January 26, 2016 

 
 

− finalize FY 2015-2016 revenue projections, budget, staffing plan, and operational plan 
 

 Continue to meet with South Texas College’s President’s Administrative Staff.  The purpose of 
the President’s Administrative Staff is to communicate information to all administrative staff and 
to provide the opportunity for discussion on areas of concern regarding the leadership and 
strategic direction for the College.   

 

 Continue to meet with the College’s Vice Presidents, Administrators, Planning and Development 
Council, Coordinated Operations Council, and other Councils to address immediate concerns and 
issues facing the College.  Topics covered from December 16, 2015 thru January 26, 2016 
included:   
 
 Discussion of Spring 2016 Enrollment 

- Paid 
- Non-Paid 

 Discussion of Burning Glass Technologies’ Proposal to Provide Occupational Landscape Review 
 Discussion of UTRGV Entering Freshman Cohort with Dual Enrollment Credit 
 Discussion of International Student Organization at South Texas College 
 Discussion of Board Appreciation Breakfast: Friday, January 22nd @ 8:00 AM, Rainbow Room, 

Pecan Campus 
 Discussion of Reference Check Process for Internal Candidates 
 Discussion of TEA 2015 Report on High School Campuses with Passing Rates on 

STARR/TAKS of Less Than or Equal to 50% in Any Two of the Preceeding Three Years 
 Announcement of New CEO for Texas Association of Community Colleges (TACC) 
 Discussion of TACC 2017 Proposed Legislative Agenda 
 Discussion of New Positions Related to Bond Construction Program 
 Discussion of Civitas On-Site Visit Scheduled for February 18, 2016 
 Discussion of Proposed Compensation for Employees with Approved Licenses and Certificates 
 Discussion of Staffing Requests for FY 2016-2017 
 Review of Completion Schedule for New Buildings 
 Discussion of Staffing Requests for New Positions for New Buildings 
 Discussion of Equipment and Technology Needs for New Buildings 
 Update on Campus Lighting Survey 
 Update and Discussion of Open and Concealed Carry on Community College Campuses 
 Discussion of Critical Deadlines for Pending Projects 
 Discussion of Review and Update Process for Board Policy Manual 
 Discussion of Proposed Policy #6421: Skateboards, In-Line, Roller Skates, Bicycles, Motorized 

Scooters, and Similar Devices 
 

5 
193



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Education and Workforce 
Development Committee 

Minutes  
January 12th, 2016 

 
  

194



Education and Workforce Development Minutes 
January 12, 2016 @ 3:00 p.m. 
Page 1, Revised 01/18/2016 @ 3:55 PM 

E.W.D. Committee Minutes 01-12-2016 

South Texas College 
Board of Trustees 

Education and Workforce Development Committee 
Ann Richards Administration Building, Board Room 

Pecan Campus, McAllen, Texas 
Tuesday, January 12, 2016 @ 3:00 p.m. 

 
MINUTES 

 
The Education and Workforce Development Committee Meeting was held on Tuesday, 
January 12, 2016 in the Ann Richards Administration Building Board Room at the Pecan 
Campus in McAllen, Texas.  The meeting commenced at 3:10 p.m. with Mrs. Graciela 
Farias presiding. 
 
Members present: Mrs. Graciela Farias, Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., and Mr. Gary Gurwitz 
 
Other Trustees present: Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez  
 
Members absent: None 
 
Also present: Dr. Shirley A. Reed, Dr. Anahid Petrosian, Mr. Carlos Margo, Mr. Mario 
Reyna, Mrs. Laura Sanchez, Dr. Erasmus Addae, Mrs. Kristina Wilson, Ms. April 
Castaneda, Ms. Yvette Gonzalez, and Mr. Andrew Fish. 

 
 

Approval of Minutes for Tuesday, December 08, 2015 Committee 
Meeting 

 
Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., the Minutes 
for the Education and Workforce Development Committee meeting of Tuesday, 
December 08, 2015 were approved as written.  The motion carried. 
 

 
Review and Recommend Action on Proposed New Policy #3301: Definition 

of Semester Credit Hours 
 

Approval of the proposed new Policy #3301: Definition of Semester Credit Hours would 
be requested at the January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting.   
 
This would be a new policy, and was proposed for adoption by the Board for compliance 
with requirements by the Southern Association of Colleges and Schools Council on 
Colleges (SACS-COC). 
 
The policy codified the College’s adherence to the Texas Lower Division Academic 
Course Guide Manual for academic transfer courses, and the Texas Workforce Education 
Course Manual for technical courses when determining the amount and level of credit 
awarded for all courses. 

195



Education and Workforce Development Minutes 
January 12, 2016 @ 3:00 p.m. 
Page 2, Revised 01/18/2016 @ 3:55 PM 

E.W.D. Committee Minutes 01-12-2016 

The Policy also defined the credit hour as the basic measure of engaged learning time 
expected of a student, including time in classrooms, labs, internships, studios, clinical, 
practicums, cooperative educational experiences, and out-of-class preparation time. 
 
Finally, the Policy identified various modes of instruction offered at South Texas College, 
to include traditional and non-traditional instruction. 
 
The Policy was reviewed by the President’s Cabinet, the Academic Council, and the 
Planning and Development Council. 

 
Upon a motion by Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr. and a second by Mr. Gary Gurwitz, the Education 
and Workforce Development Committee recommended Board approval of the proposed 
new Policy #3301: Definition of Semester Credit Hours, which would supersede any 
previously adopted Board policy, as presented.  The motion carried. 
 
 
Presentation of South Texas College Workforce Training Opportunities for 

Industry Partners in Reynosa  
 
Mr. Carlos Margo, Interim Associate Dean, The Office of Industry Training & Economic 
Development, and Mr. Mario Reyna, Dean for Business and Technology, presented on 
workforce training opportunities for industry partners in Reynosa, through a proposed 
partnership with Instituto Internacional de Estudios Superiores (IIES). 
 
The College identified this strategy as an opportunity to improve regional prosperity in the 
South Texas College service area, Hidalgo and Starr counties, through collaboration with 
the maquiladoras in Reynosa.  Through offering workforce development training to 
industrial partners across the border, the local economy would see increased activity.  
The Federal Reserve Bank of Dallas estimated that a 10 percent increase in maquiladora 
output leads to a 6.6 percent increase in total employment in McAllen. 
 
For this reason, the proposed initiative was supported by the McAllen Economic 
Development Corporation as well as by INDEX Reynosa. 
 
Successful collaboration with IIES in Reynosa and development of improved workforce 
training in industrial partners across the border will also contribute to a greater profile for 
the Rio Grande Valley in attracting global businesses to invest in the area, increasing the 
demand for high skilled workers and providing a boon to the local economy.  
 
Staff was working to determine the feasibility of creating a 501(c)(3) to serve as a conduit 
for this international collaboration. 
 
Staff was also investigating the possibility of further collaboration with IIES, which 
currently included a high school of about 250 students, as well as higher education 
programs including two Associates Degrees, five Bachelors Degrees, and one Masters 
Degree.   
  
This item was for the Committee’s information and feedback to staff, and no action was 
requested.  

196



Education and Workforce Development Minutes 
January 12, 2016 @ 3:00 p.m. 
Page 3, Revised 01/18/2016 @ 3:55 PM 

E.W.D. Committee Minutes 01-12-2016 

Presentation of South Texas College Online Programs 
 
Dr. Erasmus Addae, Dean of Distance Learning, was prepared to present the South 
Texas College Online Programs.  Due to time constraints, this presentation was 
postponed to a subsequent Committee meeting. 
 
 

Adjournment 
 
There being no further business to discuss, the Education Workforce Development 
Committee Meeting of the South Texas College Board of Trustees adjourned at 4:00 p.m. 
  
I certify that the foregoing are the true and correct Minutes of the January 12, 2016 
Education and Workforce Development Committee of the South Texas College Board of 
Trustees. 
 
__________________ 
Mrs. Graciela Farias 
Presiding 
  
 
 
 

197



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Facilities Committee 
 Minutes 

January 12th, 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

198



Facilities Committee Minutes 
January 12, 2016 
Page 1, 1/20/2016 @ 4:00 PM 
 

Facilities Committee Minutes 01‐12‐2016 

South Texas College 
Board of Trustees 

Facilities Committee 
Ann Richards Administration Building, Board Room 

Pecan Campus, McAllen, Texas 
Tuesday, January 12, 2016 @ 4:00 PM 

 
MINUTES 

 
The Facilities Committee Meeting was held on Tuesday, January 12, 2016 in the Ann 
Richards Administration Building Board Room at the Pecan Campus in McAllen, Texas.  
The meeting commenced at 4:05 p.m. with Mr. Gary Gurwitz presiding. 
 
Members present: Mr. Gary Gurwitz, Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez, Ms. 
Rose Benavidez, and Mrs. Graciela Farias 
 
Members absent: Mr. Roy de León and Mr. Jesse Villarreal 
 
Also present: Dr. Shirley A. Reed, Mr. Chuy Ramirez, Mrs. Mary Elizondo, Mr. Ricardo 
de la Garza, Mr. George McCaleb, Mr. Raul Cabaza, III, Mr. Gilbert Gallegos, Ms. Diana 
Bravos Gonzalez, Mr. Rolando Garcia, Mr. Ramiro Gutierrez, Mr. Michael Hovar, and Mr. 
Andrew Fish 

 
 

Approval of December 8, 2015 Facilities Committee Meeting Minutes 
 

Upon a motion by Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr. and a second by Ms. Rose Benavidez, the Minutes 
for the Facilities Committee meeting of December 8, 2015 were approved as written.  The 
motion carried. 
 
 

Update on Pecan Campus Electrical Shutdown during the Winter Break 
  

The Facilities Planning and Construction, Facilities Operations and Maintenance, and the 
College’s Department of Public Safety staff successfully coordinated the electrical shut 
down of the Pecan Campus facilities during Winter Break. Mr. George McCaleb, Director 
of Facilities Maintenance and Operations, presented an update of the electrical shut down 
at the Pecan Campus at the January 12, 2016 Facilities Committee meeting. 
  

The electrical shut down was necessary to remove the aerial power lines located in the 
area between the existing buildings and new 2013 Bond buildings. The aerial power lines 
were relocated underground for safety and aesthetic purposes and the relocation was 
part of the master plan to integrate the Pecan West 20 acres with the existing campus. 
  

199



Facilities Committee Minutes 
January 12, 2016 
Page 2, 1/20/2016 @ 4:00 PM 
 

Facilities Committee Minutes 01‐12‐2016 

This critical and complex operation could be attributed to the successful cooperation, 
dedication, and hard work of all the parties involved which included staff from the College, 
architects, engineers, construction contractors, subcontractors, service providers, 
program managers, and City of McAllen's building department. Kudos to all individual and 
entities for diligently working and completing this project especially during the Winter 
Break. 
  

The Pecan Campus Relocation of the Electrical Power Line project was under the 
planning stage since August 2013. The aerial power lines could not be placed below 
ground without completely shutting down electrical power for all the buildings on the south 
side of Pecan Campus. This type of major and crucial construction operation had never 
been performed on any of the college’s campuses. It required hours of planning and 
coordination with college staff, various project architects, engineers, contractors, and 
various service providers. It was determined during the spring of 2015 that the only time 
frame long enough to perform the work would be during the Winter Break in 2015. Metro 
Electric is the general contractor for the project and provided the electrical infrastructure 
in order for AEP, electrical service company, to install the new underground service. New 
underground conduit, conductors, transformers, and switches were all part of the project. 
  

The electrical system shut down was coordinated with staff from the following College 
departments: 

 Facilities Operations and Maintenance for electrical, mechanical, and fire alarm 
and suppression systems 

 IS&P for the data and phone equipment 
 Department of Public Safety (formerly Police Department) for the 24/7 hour fire 

watch of all buildings 
 Facilities Planning and Construction (FPC) for the coordination and observation of 

the project construction with the 2013 Bond program manager, architects, 
engineers, contractors, and service providers. FPC also coordinated notifying the 
college district of the shut down and its return to operation. 

  
Along with the Relocation of Electrical Power Lines project, other currently on-going 
construction projects were also affected due to the electrical shut down, as follows: 
  

        The new 2013 Bond Pecan Thermal Plant required the electrical system to be shut 
off, which in turn required the chilled water system to be turned off for the entire 
Pecan Campus. Electrical panels and controls, chilled water piping and the 
emergency generator had to be relocated along with new equipment installed 
during this time period. The following actions were necessary in order to make this 
possible: 

o   A Partial GMP was approved in September 2015 to allow for the electrical 
equipment to be purchased and ordered in time to be installed during this 
period.  

o   D. Wilson Construction and their subcontractors worked diligently to ensure 
that the chiller system was back on line for the re-opening of the college by 
January 4, 2016. 

200



Facilities Committee Minutes 
January 12, 2016 
Page 3, 1/20/2016 @ 4:00 PM 
 

Facilities Committee Minutes 01‐12‐2016 

o   Maintenance staff was involved with the existing chiller system shut down 
and its returning to operation. 

o   Maintenance staff also had to coordinate the fire alarm system shut down 
and replacement of all fire alarm panel back up batteries. 

  

      The Pecan Campus Building B Covered Area for Ceramic Art Kilns project was 
under construction during this time. Holchemont, LTD. worked with its 
subcontractors with the use of portable generators and worked with D. Wilson for 
coordinated access to the construction site that minimized construction delays. 

 

    The Pecan Campus Relocation of the Portable Buildings project was also under 
construction. Celso Construction and Zuniga’s Movers continued their construction 
operations without delays while working in the area adjacent to D. Wilson and 
Metro Electric construction sites. 

  

The Relocation of the Electrical Power Lines shut down started on December 17, 2015 
and the electrical power was re-energized on December 30, 2015 without incident. This 
project took a tremendous amount of time and effort with all parties involved.  
 
South Texas College thanked all those involved for their participation, cooperation, and 
hard work to accomplish this work in the short time allotted to complete. 
   
Below is a list of individuals and entities involved: 
 

Program Manager 
         Broaddus & Associates 

o   Tim Weldon 
o   Rolando Garcia 

Project Architects and Engineers 
         Sigma HN Engineers 

o   Tony Nicanor 
         Halff Associates 

o   Trey Murray 
         EGV Architects 

o   Eduardo G. Vela 
         Meldon and Hunt Engineers 

o   Mario Reyna 
Project Contractors 

         Metro Electric 
         D. Wilson Construction 
         Holchemont LTD. 
         Celso Construction 
         Zuniga’s Movers 

Service Providers 
         AEP-5 teams 

201



Facilities Committee Minutes 
January 12, 2016 
Page 4, 1/20/2016 @ 4:00 PM 
 

Facilities Committee Minutes 01‐12‐2016 

o   Juan Ramos 
o   John Olague 
o   Jesse Cedillo 

         Fire Alarm (Fire Suppression Systems) 
o   Allied Fire Protection 
o   EI Fire and Safety 

Municipal Entity 
         City of McAllen Building and Permit Department 

South Texas College Staff 
         Luis Ornelas-Maintenance 
         Eloy Flores-Maintenance 
         Rick Sunday-Maintenance 
         George McCaleb-O&M Director 
         Joe Galindo-IS&P 

         Edgar Espinosa-IS&P 

         David Cazares-IS&P 

         Robert Cuellar-FPC Project Manager 
         Victor Gonzalez-FPC Project Manager 
         Rick de la Garza-FPC Senior Project Manager 

  

Presenters 
Mary Elizondo, Rick de la Garza, and George McCaleb attended the meeting to respond 
to questions and address concerns of the committee. 
  

No action was required from the committee. This item was presented for information and 
feedback to staff. 
 
 

Update on Status of 2013 Bond Construction Program 

 

The packet included a copy of the presentation prepared by Broaddus and Associates as 
an update on the status of the 2013 Bond Construction Program.  Mr. Gilbert Gallegos, 
Broaddus and Associates, provided the update. 
 
 
Review and Recommend Action on Approval of Interlocal and Lease Agreements 

with the City of Pharr and Pharr San Juan Alamo ISD 

The Facilities Committee was asked to recommend Board approval of the proposed 
Interlocal Agreement with Pharr San Juan Alamo ISD and the City of Pharr and the 
proposed Lease Agreement with Pharr San Juan Alamo ISD. 
 
Pharr San Juan Alamo ISD (PSJA ISD) and the City of Pharr each approved an Interlocal 
agreement that would support the development of the South Texas College Regional 
Center for Public Safety Excellence in Pharr, Texas. 

202



Facilities Committee Minutes 
January 12, 2016 
Page 5, 1/20/2016 @ 4:00 PM 
 

Facilities Committee Minutes 01‐12‐2016 

The proposed Interlocal agreement between the College (South Texas College), the City 
(City of Pharr), and the District (PSJA ISD) included commitments from each signatory to 
the Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence, as outlined below.   
 
Purpose 
The proposed agreements would allow for the construction of the Regional Center for 
Public Safety Excellence with commitments from the College, the City, and the District. 
 
Justification 
In 2011, The Texas Workforce Commission projected an estimated 22 percent increase 
in police officer employment in the South Texas region over the next 10 years.  Currently, 
some 1,751 law enforcement officers are employed in Hidalgo and Starr Counties. 
However, currently only four police academies in the counties of Hidalgo and Starr offer 
basic police officer courses certified by the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement 
("TCOLE").   Overall, local law enforcement officers in the Rio Grande Valley usually have 
to travel to College Station or San Antonio for specialized training or continuing education 
courses at the expense of local police department's agencies in South Texas. Twenty-
eight South Texas law enforcement entities lack police academies. Hence, there is a lack 
of sufficient training opportunities in South Texas to which law enforcement officers have 
reasonable access. 
 
HB 1887 of the 84th Legislative Session led to statutory authority for the College to 
undertake the development of regional law enforcement training. 
 
South Texas College Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence would provide the 
additional benefit to local law enforcement agencies of direct coordination and 
responsiveness to community needs, reducing the need for pre-hire training processes 
by local agencies. 
 
Project Scope 
The Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence would consist of an estimated 21,800 
square-foot facility.  The Project would include classroom facilities, vehicle driving range, 
outdoor shooting range, firearms simulator, mobile firearms simulator/live firing range, 
driving simulator, obstacle course, fitness rooms, and administrative offices. 

The estimated initial construction cost was $6.782M, which included $4.2M from the 
College’s Series 2013 Bond Issuance, $1.5M provided by the Texas Department of Public 
Safety, and $1M provided by the District. 
 
Obligations of the District 
 
The District would contribute $1,370,532.00, which included its $1M monetary 
contribution and 10 acres of real property. 
 
 
 

203



Facilities Committee Minutes 
January 12, 2016 
Page 6, 1/20/2016 @ 4:00 PM 
 

Facilities Committee Minutes 01‐12‐2016 

Obligations of the City 
 
The City would contribute approximately fifty-nine (59) acres of real property at an 
estimated value of $2.5M. 
 
The City was also reviewing the following obligations, and the College was awaiting 
clarification.  The City was unable to fully commit to the requirements due to the 
uncertainty whether the proposed land will be available for acquisition: 
 

 Within two years, the City shall acquire and transfer an additional 32.24 acres 
along El Rancho Blanco Road.   

 
 Within five years, the City shall acquire and transfer an additional 12.55 acres 

along El Rancho Blanco Road. 
 

 Upon conveyance of the additional real property in two- and in five-years by the 
City, the College would expand the Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence 
to include a Fire Science program and/or other programs as appropriate. 

 
Obligations of the College 
 
Design and Construction 
The College would be solely responsible for the design and construction of the Regional 
Center for Public Safety Excellence, but would invite designated officials of the City and 
the District to review and comment on the schematic design during that phase of the 
project. 
 
Land 
The College would take legal title to and possession of approximately fifty-nine (59) acres 
of property from the City and an additional ten (10) acres from the District for initial 
construction. 
 
Curriculum and Programs 
The College would develop and provide instructional programs and course curriculum to 
satisfy the requirements established by the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement for 
the Basic Peace Officer Certification and continuing education programs and will operate 
as a TCOLE approved training provider. 
 
The College would permit annual enrollment of up to 110 full-time equivalent (FTE) 
eligible District students in dual enrollment programs leading to an Associate of Arts 
Degree in Criminal Justice and/or Early College classes in related fields of study. 
 
The College intended to partner with the City’s Police Academy, though the College 
reserved the right to become an independent TCOLE authorized academy at a future 
date. 
 

204



Facilities Committee Minutes 
January 12, 2016 
Page 7, 1/20/2016 @ 4:00 PM 
 

Facilities Committee Minutes 01‐12‐2016 

Continued Operation 
The College agreed to design, construct, maintain and operate the facility continuously 
for a minimum period of twenty years, commencing from the date of substantial 
completion of the project. 
 
Funds and resources were available through the College’s 2013 Bond Series issuance, 
the Texas Department of Public Safety, and commitments from the City of Pharr and the 
Pharr San Juan Alamo ISD. 
 
Presenters 
Dr. Shirley Reed, President, and Mr. Jesus Ramirez, Legal Counsel, were available to 
respond to questions. 
 
Upon approval of the proposed agreements by the South Texas College Board of 
Trustees, the College would be able to accept transfer of the initial properties and financial 
contributions and would be able to begin the design and construction process. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez, the Facilities 
Committee recommended Board approval of the proposed Interlocal Agreement with 
Pharr San Juan Alamo ISD and the City of Pharr and the proposed Lease Agreement 
with Pharr San Juan Alamo ISD, and further authorization for the College President to 
make further changes to the agreements, insofar as those changes are not material.  The 
motion carried. 
 
 
Review and Recommend Action on Contracting Architectural Design Services for 

the 2013 Bond Construction Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence 
 

Approval to contract architect design services to prepare plans for the 2013 Bond 
Construction Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence project would be requested at 
the January 26, 2016 Board meeting. 

Purpose 
Architectural design services were necessary for design and construction administration 
services for the 2013 Bond Construction Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence 
project. The design scope of work included, but was not limited to, design, analysis, 
preparation of plans and specifications, permit applications, construction administration, 
and inspection of the project. 
 
Justification 
The proposed Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence was needed in response to 
the critical need for public safety and law enforcement professionals in South Texas. The 
facility would be a world class instructional space with the latest technologies to educate 
and train law enforcement professionals. 
 
The proposed Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence project would include: 

 Office and Administrative Spaces 

205



Facilities Committee Minutes 
January 12, 2016 
Page 8, 1/20/2016 @ 4:00 PM 
 

Facilities Committee Minutes 01‐12‐2016 

 Classrooms 
 Computer Labs 
 Lecture Hall 
 Support Spaces 

 
Background 
On November 30, 2015, South Texas College began soliciting for architectural design 
services for the purpose of selecting a firm to prepare the necessary plans and 
specifications for the Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence. A total of thirty-seven 
(37) firms received a copy of the RFQ and a total of eight (8) firms submitted their 
responses on December 16, 2015.  
 
Funding Source 
Funds for these expenditures were budgeted in the bond construction budget for FY 
2015-2016. Additional funding may be identified from other sources. 
 
Reviewers 
The Requests for Qualifications were reviewed by staff from Broaddus and Associates, 
Facilities Planning and Construction, Operations and Maintenance, and Purchasing 
departments. 
 
Enclosed Documents 
A site plan indicating the location of the proposed Regional Center for Public Safety 
Excellence was included in the packet. The evaluation team members completed 
evaluations for the firms and prepared the enclosed scoring and ranking summary. 
 
There was discussion regarding the evaluation committee’s recommendation.  Legal 
counsel advised that the Board could either accept the evaluation committee’s rankings 
or reject the submitted qualifications entirely and begin the solicitation process with new 
evaluation criteria, within the constraints of state procurement code.   
 
Toward that end, legal counsel advised that the Facilities Committee could recommend 
Board approval of the top ranked firm or could recommend Board approval to reject the 
submitted qualifications. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Mrs. Graciela Farias, the Facilities 
Committee recommended Board approval to contract architectural design services with 
PBK Architects, Inc. for preparation of plans and specifications for the 2013 Bond 
Construction Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence project as presented.  The 
motion carried, with three votes in favor and two opposed. 
 
 
 
 
 

206



Facilities Committee Minutes 
January 12, 2016 
Page 9, 1/20/2016 @ 4:00 PM 
 

Facilities Committee Minutes 01‐12‐2016 

Review and Recommend Action on Contracting Civil Engineering Services for the 
2013 Bond Construction Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence Parking and 

Site Improvements 
 
Approval to contract civil engineering services to prepare plans for the 2013 Bond 
Construction Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence Parking and Site 
Improvements project would be requested at the January 26, 2016 Board meeting. 

Purpose 
Civil engineering services were necessary for design and construction administration 
services for the 2013 Bond Construction Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence 
Parking and Site Improvements project. The design scope of work included, but was not 
limited to, design, analysis, preparation of plans and specifications, permit applications, 
construction administration, and inspection of the project. 
 
Justification 
The proposed Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence Parking and Site 
Improvements were needed in response to the critical need for public safety and law 
enforcement professionals in South Texas. The facility would be a world class 
instructional space with the latest technologies to educate and train law enforcement 
professionals. 
 
The proposed Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence Parking and Site 
Improvements project would include: 

 Parking Lot 
 Drives, Sidewalks 
 Infrastructure Improvements 
 Landscaping and Irrigation 
 Grading and Drainage 
 Vehicle Driving Range 
 Shooting Range 
 

Background 
On November 30, 2015, South Texas College began soliciting for civil engineering 
services for the purpose of selecting a firm to prepare the necessary plans and 
specifications for the Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence Parking and Site 
Improvements project. A total of twenty-one (21) firms received a copy of the RFQ and a 
total of ten (10) firms submitted their responses on December 16, 2015.  
 
Funding Source 
Funds for these expenditures were budgeted in the bond construction budget for FY 
2015-2016. Additional funding may be identified from other sources. 
 
 
 
 

207



Facilities Committee Minutes 
January 12, 2016 
Page 10, 1/20/2016 @ 4:00 PM 
 

Facilities Committee Minutes 01‐12‐2016 

Reviewers 
The Requests for Qualifications ere reviewed by staff from Broaddus and Associates, 
Facilities Planning and Construction, Operations and Maintenance, and Purchasing 
departments. 
 
Enclosed Documents 
A site plan indicating the location of the proposed Regional Center for Public Safety 
Excellence Parking and Site Improvements was included in the packet. The evaluation 
team members completed evaluations for the firms and prepared the enclosed scoring 
and ranking summary. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., the Facilities 
Committee recommended Board approval to contract civil engineering services with 
Dannenbaum Engineering Company for preparation of plans and specifications for the 
Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence Parking and Site Improvements project as 
presented.  The motion carried. 
 
 

Review and Recommend Action on Amendment to the Agreement with EGV 
Architects to Increase Design Services to Include the Re-Design of Existing 

Buildings for the 2013 Bond Construction Workforce Expansion Projects at the 
Starr County and Mid Valley Campuses 

Approval to amend the agreement with EGV Architects to increase design services to 
include the re-design of existing buildings for the 2013 Bond Construction Workforce 
Expansion projects at the Starr County and Mid Valley Campuses, would be requested 
at the January 26, 2016 Board meeting.  
  
Purpose 
Authorization was requested to increase design services for EGV Architects to include 
the re-design of the restrooms and classroom entrances at the existing workforce 
buildings at Starr County and Mid Valley Campuses. These services would also include 
designing a visual connection between the new Starr County Workforce Training Building 
Expansion and the existing Workforce Building as requested by the Board. 
 
Justification 
Re-designing the entrances to the restrooms and classrooms at the existing workforce 
buildings would allow for access to these spaces from the interior of the buildings. The 
relocation of the entrances to the restrooms would require existing restroom fixtures to be 
rearranged to accommodate the new entrances. The Committee also asked that the 
architect design a strong aesthetic integration to tie the new Starr County Workforce 
Training Building Expansion and the existing Workforce Building together at the Starr 
County Campus. 
 
Background 
As previously authorized by the Board of Trustees, EGV Architects began working with 
Broaddus & Associates, Facilities Planning & Construction, and college staff to develop 

208



Facilities Committee Minutes 
January 12, 2016 
Page 11, 1/20/2016 @ 4:00 PM 
 

Facilities Committee Minutes 01‐12‐2016 

the schematic design for the 2013 Bond Construction Workforce Expansion projects at 
the Starr County and Mid Valley Campuses. On September 10, 2015, the Board approved 
the schematic designs of the Workforce Expansion projects but requested that EGV 
Architects include alternates to make the restrooms accessible from inside the buildings.  
 
Broaddus and Associates negotiated with EGV Architects and submitted proposals for 
this increased scope. EGV Architects submitted a proposal in the amount of $8,000 plus 
$2,000 of reimbursable expenses for the Mid Valley Campus Workforce Training Center 
Expansion and $13,200 plus $4,000 of reimbursable expenses for the Starr County 
Campus Workforce Training Center for the increased design services.  
 
Funding Source 
Funds for these expenditures were budgeted in the bond construction budget for FY 2015-
2016. 
 
Enclosed Documents 
The packet included proposals and an amendment to EGV Architects current agreement. 
 
Presenters 
Representatives from Broaddus & Associates and EGV Architects attended the Facilities 
Committee meeting to respond to questions related to this recommendation. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez, the Facilities 
Committee recommended Board approval of an amendment to the agreement with EGV 
Architects to increase design services to include the re-design of existing buildings for the 
2013 Bond Construction Workforce Expansion projects at the Starr County and Mid Valley 
Campuses as presented.  The motion carried. 
 
 

Review and Recommend Action on an Amendment to the Agreements for 
Additional Services with Civil Engineering Firms for Landscape and Irrigation 

Design Consultants for the 2013 Bond Construction Mid Valley, Technology, and 
Nursing and Allied Health Campuses Parking and Site Improvements 

 
Approval to amend the agreements for additional services with civil engineering firms for 
landscape and irrigation design consultants for the 2013 Bond Construction Mid Valley, 
Technology, and Nursing and Allied Health Campuses Parking and Site Improvements 
would be requested at the January 26, 2016 Board meeting. 
 
Purpose 
Authorization was requested to approve additional services with civil engineering firms 
for the design of landscape and irrigation at the Mid Valley, Technology, and Nursing & 
Allied Health Campuses for the 2013 Bond Construction program. 
 
Justification 
Landscape and irrigation was necessary to meet building codes and ordinances as 
required by the City. 

209



Facilities Committee Minutes 
January 12, 2016 
Page 12, 1/20/2016 @ 4:00 PM 
 

Facilities Committee Minutes 01‐12‐2016 

Background 
At the March 31, 2015 Board meeting, the Board approved fees for the civil engineering 
firms assigned to the various 2013 Bond Construction projects. Landscape and irrigation 
design services were not included as part of basic services and are considered additional 
services if needed and approved by the owner under the project engineer’s contract. 
Additional services with civil engineering firms for landscape and irrigation were 
recommended for the 2013 Bond Construction Parking and Site Improvements projects 
at the Pecan, Mid Valley, Technology, and Nursing and Allied Health Campuses. 
Additional services for the remaining Bond Construction projects would be requested at 
a later date.  
 
The proposed additional services fees were identified as follows: 
 

Project Engineer Sub-
Consultant’s 

Proposed 
Fee 

Engineer’s 
Coordination 

Fee 

Reimbursable 
Expenses 

Total 

Mid Valley 
Campus 

Halff 
Associates 

$17,000 $0 $1,000 $18,000

Technology 
Campus 

Hinojosa 
Engineering 

$11,622 $1,162.20 $0 $12,784.20

Nursing & 
Allied Health 
Campus 

R. Gutierrez 
Engineering 

$7,176 $718 $0 $7,894

 
Funding Source 
Funds for these expenditures were budgeted in the bond construction budget for FY 
2015-2016. 
 
Reviewers 
The proposals were reviewed by Broaddus and Associates and staff from the Facilities 
Planning and Construction department. 
 
Enclosed Documents 
Proposals from the civil engineers were provided in the packet. 
 
Presenters 
Representatives from Broaddus & Associates attended the Facilities Committee meeting 
to address any questions by the committee related to this recommendation. 
 
The Committee noted that one of the engineers, Halff Associates, did not include a 
coordination fee, and Broaddus & Associates confirmed that this engineer would be 
completing the required work in-house, and no coordination with a third party would be 
required.   
 
The Committee then pointed out that the table above should not list a “sub-consultant’s” 
proposed fee for work that the engineer would complete in house, and asked that 

210



Facilities Committee Minutes 
January 12, 2016 
Page 13, 1/20/2016 @ 4:00 PM 
 

Facilities Committee Minutes 01‐12‐2016 

Broaddus & Associates correct the documentation prior to presenting it to the Board.  Mr. 
Gilbert Gallegos agreed to review and correct the documentation. 
 
No action was taken, and staff was asked to present the corrected information to the Board 
of Trustees for action as necessary. 
 
 

Review and Recommend Action to Award Proposal for Owner Procurement of 
Thermal Energy Plant Chillers for the 2013 Bond Construction Program 

 
Approval to award proposals for owner procurement of thermal energy plant chillers for the 
2013 Bond Construction program would be requested at the January 26, 2016 Board 
meeting. 
 
Purpose 
Authorization was requested to award proposals for the procurement of thermal energy 
plant chillers for the Pecan, Mid Valley, Nursing and Allied Health, and Starr County 
Campuses for the 2013 Bond Construction program.  
 
Justification 
In addition to the standardization of having one chiller manufacturer, the consolidation of 
all required chillers would provide South Texas College considerable savings as part of 
volume procurement.  This procurement would allow the College to identify the best value 
respondent based on criteria established within the Request for Proposals.  The selection 
would be based on: 1.) Cost, 2.) Energy Efficiency, 3.) Service Commitment, 4.) Delivery 
Capability, 5.) Warranty, 6.) Refrigerant Life Cycle, and 7.) References. 
 
Background 
On October 27, 2015, the Board authorized to solicit Request for Proposals for Owner 
Procurement of Thermal Energy Plant Chillers for the 2013 Bond Construction program. 
It was determined that each campus required the number of chillers as listed below: 

 Pecan Campus – 2 chillers 
 Mid Valley Campus – 3 chillers 
 Nursing and Allied Health Campus – 2 chillers 
 Starr County Campus – 3 chillers 

 
Solicitation for Request for Proposals for these services began on November 30, 2015. A 
total of four (4) firms received a copy of the RFP and a total of three (3) firms submitted 
their responses on January 5, 2016.  
 

Timeline for Solicitation for Request for Proposals 

November 30, 2015 Solicitation for Request for Proposals began. 

January 5, 2016 Three (3) proposals were received.  
(Two (2) proposals were evaluated – see attached) 

211



Facilities Committee Minutes 
January 12, 2016 
Page 14, 1/20/2016 @ 4:00 PM 
 

Facilities Committee Minutes 01‐12‐2016 

Based on the evaluations, the highest ranked firm was Johnson Controls, Inc. in the 
amount of $2,209,711.01. 
 
Funding Source 
Funds for these expenditures were budgeted in the bond construction budget for FY 2015-
2016. 
 
Reviewers 
The proposals were reviewed by staff from Broaddus and Associates, Halff Associates, 
Sigma HN Engineers, DBR Engineering, Facilities Planning and Construction, Operations 
and Maintenance, and Purchasing departments. 
 
Enclosed Documents 
The packet included the summaries of scoring and ranking for review by the Facilities 
Committee. 
 
Broaddus & Associates noted that the vendor might be amenable to further negotiation of 
its price based upon the College’s ability and willingness to agree to payment terms.  The 
Committee instructed Broaddus & Associates to negotiate any savings possible based on 
payment terms. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Mrs. Graciela Farias, the Facilities 
Committee recommended Board approval to award the proposal for owner procurement 
of thermal energy plant chillers for the 2013 Bond Construction program to Johnson 
Controls, Inc. in the amount of $2,209,711.01 as presented, subject to Broaddus & 
Associates being able to negotiate an adjustment to the payment terms to allow the 
College some discount on that total.  The motion carried. 
 
 

Review and Recommend Action on Contracting Insurance Agent Services to 
establish an Owner-Controlled Insurance Program for the 2013 Bond 

Construction Program 
 
Approval to award proposals for insurance agent services to establish an Owner-Controlled 
insurance program for the 2013 Bond Construction program would be requested at the 
January 26, 2016 Board meeting. 
 
Purpose 
Authorization was requested to award proposals for the procurement of insurance agent 
services to establish an Owner-Controlled insurance program for the 2013 Bond 
Construction program. 
 
Justification 
At the December 15, 2015 Board meeting, the benefits of using an Owner-Controlled 
insurance program for the 2013 Bond Construction program were presented and the use 
of this program was approved.  
 

212



Facilities Committee Minutes 
January 12, 2016 
Page 15, 1/20/2016 @ 4:00 PM 
 

Facilities Committee Minutes 01‐12‐2016 

 
Background 
Solicitation for Request for Proposals for these services began on December 21, 2015. A 
total of eleven (11) firms received a copy of the RFP and a total of two (2) firms submitted 
their responses on January 5, 2016.  
 

Timeline for Solicitation for Request for Proposals 

December 21, 2015. Solicitation for Request for Proposals began. 

January 5, 2016 Two (2) proposals were received. 

 
Based on the evaluations, the highest ranked firm was Carlisle Insurance Agency, Inc. The 
exact cost would be determined once all Guaranteed Maximum Prices (GMP’s) were 
received from the Construction Manager-at-Risk firms. The cost range provided by the 
insurance agent was within the range of $67,500 to $97,500 which was covered by the 
insurance carriers. 
 
Funding Source 
Funds for these expenditures were budgeted in the bond construction budget for FY 2015-
2016. 
 
Reviewers 
The proposals were reviewed by Broaddus and Associates, Risk Management Consultant, 
and staff from the Facilities Planning and Construction, Operations and Maintenance, and 
Purchasing departments. 
 
Enclosed Documents 
The evaluation team including college staff and Broaddus and Associates provided a 
summary of scoring and ranking for review by the Facilities Committee. 
 
During the meeting, it was pointed out that the documentation stated that the top-ranked 
firm would not provide all of the coverages requested by the College, and Mr. Raul Cabaza 
reported that this documentation was incorrect.   
 
The Committee instructed staff to correct the documentation prior to presentation to the 
Board of Trustees. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Ms. Rose Benavidez, the Facilities 
Committee recommended Board approval to award proposals for insurance agent 
services to Carlisle Insurance Agency, Inc. to establish an Owner-Controlled insurance 
program for the 2013 Bond Construction as presented.  The motion carried. 

213



Facilities Committee Minutes 
January 12, 2016 
Page 16, 1/20/2016 @ 4:00 PM 
 

Facilities Committee Minutes 01‐12‐2016 

Review and Update of Exterior Lighting at South Texas College Campuses 
 

As a response to an incident reported by a student, that occurred at the Pecan Campus 
on December 2, 2015, the College staff conducted a physical walk-through of each South 
Texas College campus to assess exterior lighting to strengthen procedures in place, as 
applicable. An update regarding associated actions and proposed future measures was 
presented at the January 12, 2016 Facilities Committee meeting. 
 
The students’ safety is of the utmost importance and a top priority for the College.  Proper 
outdoor lighting contributes to safety in parking lots and around buildings and enhances 
the surveillance camera video quality that assists the Department of Public Safety 
(formerly Police Department) in day-to-day monitoring of activities and in conducting 
investigations of specific incidents.   
 
Staff from the Department of Public Safety, Facilities Operations and Maintenance 
Department, and the Facilities Planning and Construction Department, conducted a 
physical walk-through of each South Texas College campus, assessed the exterior 
lighting conditions, and took the following actions: 

 Replaced burned out light bulbs.   
 Ordered additional building wall packs primarily to place on portable buildings 
 Ensured all exterior light systems are programmed considering the seasoned time 

of the year. 
 Ensured that monthly preventive maintenance inspections be continued by the 

Facilities Operations and Maintenance Department at all campuses. 
 Identified areas requiring continuous or periodic attention and prepared an action 

plan to address each area identified. 
 Identified areas where exterior lighting may be negatively affected during the bond 

program construction and identified possible measures such as temporary lights, 
to mitigate impact.  These areas will be fenced off as construction sites once 
construction commences.  
 

In addition, staff proposed the following future measures: 
 Continue the upgrade to energy efficient light-emitting diode (LED) bulbs at all 

campuses.  LED bulbs use less power (watts) relative to the amount of light 
generated (lumens) and also help to reduce greenhouse gas emissions by saving 
energy.  The College would experience cost savings and maintenance costs would 
be lowered due to the LEDs longer expected life.  LED lighting was installed at the 
following locations: 

 Starr Campus Parking Lot 1 
 Starr Campus East and South Loop 
 Pecan Plaza Parking Lot 

 Secure an engineer to conduct a new exterior light study.  This study would 
implement the foot candle standard.  Foot-candle was the United States unit of 
measurement on how much light is emitted from a light source.  A limited exterior 
lighting study was last conducted in December 2007. 

214



Facilities Committee Minutes 
January 12, 2016 
Page 17, 1/20/2016 @ 4:00 PM 
 

Facilities Committee Minutes 01‐12‐2016 

Mary Elizondo, Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services, presented this 
information and responded to questions and address concerns of the committee. 
 
No action was required from the committee.  This item was presented for information 
and feedback to staff. 
 
 

Review and Recommend Action on Substantial or Final Completion for the 
Following Non-Bond Construction Projects 

 
Approval of substantial or final completion for the following non-bond construction 
projects would be requested at the January 26, 2016 Board Meeting: 
 

Projects 
Substantial 
Completion 

Final 
Completion 

Documents Attached

1. Technology Campus West 
Academic Building Re-Roofing 
 
Architect: Amtech Building 
Sciences, Inc. 
Contractor: Rio Roofing, Inc. 

Recommended Estimated 
February 2016

Substantial Completion

2. Pecan Campus Relocation of 
Electrical Power Lines 
 
Engineer: Sigma HN Engineers 
Contractor: Metro Electric 

Recommended Estimated 
February 2016

Substantial Completion

3. Pecan Campus Sports Field 
Lighting 
 
Engineer: DBR Engineering 
Contractor: Zitro Electric, LLC 

Recommended Estimated 
February 2016

Substantial Completion

4. Pecan Plaza Asphalt Resurfacing 
along Alley Side of Building B 
 
Engineer: Halff Associates 
Contractor: 5 Star Construction 

Approved 
December 

2015 

Recommended Final Completion Letter

 
1. Technology Campus West Academic Building Re-Roofing 
 
It was recommended that substantial completion for this project with Rio Roofing, Inc. be 
approved. 
 
Amtech Building Sciences, Inc. and college staff visited the site and developed a 
construction punch list.  As a result of this site visit and observation of the completed 
work, a Certificate of Substantial Completion for the project was certified on December 
14, 2015. Substantial Completion was accomplished within the time allowed in the 

215



Facilities Committee Minutes 
January 12, 2016 
Page 18, 1/20/2016 @ 4:00 PM 
 

Facilities Committee Minutes 01‐12‐2016 

Owner/Contractor agreement for this project.  A copy of the Substantial Completion 
Certificate was included in the packet. 
 
Contractor Rio Roofing, Inc. would continue working on the punch list items identified and 
would have thirty (30) days to complete before final completion can be recommended for 
approval.  It was anticipated that final acceptance of this project would be recommended 
for approval at the February 2016 Board meeting. 
 
2. Pecan Campus Relocation of Electrical Power Lines 
 
It was recommended that substantial completion for this project with Metro Electric be 
approved. 
 
Sigma HN Engineers and college staff visited the site and developed a construction punch 
list.  As a result of this site visit and observation of the completed work, a Certificate of 
Substantial Completion for the project was certified on January 4, 2016. Substantial 
Completion was accomplished within the time allowed in the Owner/Contractor 
agreement for this project.  A copy of the Substantial Completion Certificate was included 
in the packet. 
 
Contractor Metro Electric would continue working on the punch list items identified and 
would have thirty (30) days to complete before final completion can be recommended for 
approval.  It was anticipated that final acceptance of this project would be recommended 
for approval at the February 2016 Board meeting. 
 
3. Pecan Campus Sports Field Lighting 
 
It was recommended that substantial completion for this project with Zitro Electric, LLC 
be approved. 
 
DBR Engineering and college staff visited the site and developed a construction punch 
list.  As a result of this site visit and observation of the completed work, a Certificate of 
Substantial Completion for the project was certified on December 9, 2015. Substantial 
Completion was accomplished within the time allowed in the Owner/Contractor 
agreement for this project.  A copy of the Substantial Completion Certificate was included 
in the packet. 
 
Contractor Zitro Electric, LLC would continue working on the punch list items identified 
and would have thirty (30) days to complete before final completion can be recommended 
for approval.  It was anticipated that final acceptance of this project would be 
recommended for approval at the February 2016 Board meeting. 
 
4. Pecan Plaza Asphalt Resurfacing along Alley Side of Building B 
 
It was recommended that final completion and release of final payment for this project 
with 5 Star Construction be approved. 
 

216



Facilities Committee Minutes 
January 12, 2016 
Page 19, 1/20/2016 @ 4:00 PM 
 

Facilities Committee Minutes 01‐12‐2016 

Final Completion including punch list items were accomplished as required in the 
Owner/Contractor agreement for this project. It was recommended that final completion 
and release of final payment for this project with 5 Star Construction be approved.  The 
original cost approved for this project was in the amount of $115,000. 
 
The following chart summarizes the above information:  
 

Construction 
Budget 

Approved 
Proposal 
Amount 

Net Total 
Change 
Orders 

Final Project 
Cost 

Previous 
Amount Paid 

Remaining 
Balance 

$75,000 $115,000 $3,140 $118,140 $112,233 $5,907 

 
On January 4, 2016, STC Planning & Construction Department staff along with Halff 
Associates inspected the site to confirm that all punch list items were completed.   The 
packet included a certificate of construction completion from Halff Associates 
acknowledging all work was complete and recommending release of final payment to 5 
Star Construction in the amount of $5,907. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez and a second by Mrs. Graciela Farias, the 
Facilities Committee recommended Board approval of the substantial or final completion 
of the projects as presented.  The motion carried. 

Update on Status of Non-Bond Construction Projects 
 

The Facilities Planning and Construction staff prepared a design and construction update. 
This update summarized the status of each capital improvement project currently in 
progress. Mary Elizondo and Rick de la Garza attended the meeting to respond to 
questions and address concerns of the committee. 
 
 

Adjournment 
 

There being no further business to discuss, the Facilities Committee Meeting of the South 
Texas College Board of Trustees adjourned at 5:40 p.m. 
 
I certify that the foregoing are the true and correct minutes of the January 12, 2016 
Facilities Committee Meeting of the South Texas College Board of Trustees. 
 
 
_______________________ 
Mr. Gary Gurwitz, Chair 
 
 

217



 

 
 
 
 
 

Finance & Human 
Resources Committee 

Minutes 
January 12th, 2016 

  

218



Finance and Human Resources  
Minutes – January 12, 2016 
Page 1, Revised 1/18/2016 @ 4:19:24 PM    

 

Finance and Human Resources 
Committee Minutes 01-12-2016 

South Texas College 
Board of Trustees 

Finance and Human Resources Committee 
Ann Richards Administration Building Board Room 

Pecan Campus 
Tuesday, January 12, 2016 

@ 5:30 p.m. 
McAllen, Texas  

 
Minutes 

           
The Finance and Human Resources Committee Meeting was held on Tuesday, January 12, 
2016 in the Ann Richards Administration Building Board Room at the Pecan Campus in 
McAllen, Texas.  The meeting commenced at 5:54 p.m. with Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., 
Committee Chair, presiding. 
 
Members present: Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez, and Ms. Rose Benavidez 
  
Other Trustees Present: Mrs. Graciela Farias and Mr. Gary Gurwitz 
 
Members absent: Mr. Roy de León  
 
Also present: Dr. Shirley A. Reed, Mrs. Mary Elizondo, Dr. David Plummer, Dr. Anahid 
Petrosian, Mrs. Becky Cavazos, Dr. Brett Millan, Mrs. Myriam Lopez, Ms. Alicia Gomez, 
Mrs. Brenda Balderaz, Ms. Karina Garza, Mr. Paul Varville, and Mr. Andrew Fish 

 
 

Approval of December 8, 2015 Finance and 
Human Resources Committee Minutes 

 
Upon a motion by Ms. Rose Benavidez and a second by Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., the Minutes 
for the Finance and Human Resources Committee Meeting of December 8, 2015 were 
approved as written.  The motion carried. 
 
 

Review and Recommend Action on Award of Proposals, Reject Proposal,  
Purchases, and Renewals 

 
The Finance and Human Resources Committee was asked to recommend Board approval 
of the following proposal awards, reject a proposal, purchases, and renewals:    

A. Awards 
B. Non-Instructional Items 

 C. Technology Items 

 
 
 

A. Awards 

219



Finance and Human Resources  
Minutes – January 12, 2016 
Page 2, Revised 1/18/2016 @ 4:19:24 PM    

 

Finance and Human Resources 
Committee Minutes 01-12-2016 

1) Firefighter Equipment (Award):  award the proposal for firefighter equipment to 
Municipal Emergency Services, Inc. (Houston, TX), at a total cost of $19,658.00; 

2) Purchase and Installation of Digital Readout Units (Award):  award the proposal 
for purchase and installation of digital readout units to MSC Industrial Supply, Co. 
(Harlingen, TX), at a total cost of $11,030.60; 

3) Signs, Banners, and Related Products (Award):  award the proposal for signs, 
banners, and related products for the period beginning January 30, 2016 through 
January 29, 2017 with two one-year options to renew, at an estimated cost of 
$35,000.00.  The vendors are as follows: 

 AGAS, Mfg. (Philadelphia, PA) 
 Fast Signs (McAllen, TX) 
 Gateway Printing & Office Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX) 
 The Sign Depot (McAllen, TX) 

4) Higher Education Strategic Market Assessment (Reject):  reject the two (2) 
proposals for the higher education strategic market assessment project because they 
were over the available budget. 

 
B. Non – Instructional Items 
5) Furniture (Purchase):  purchase furniture from the State of Texas Multiple Award 

Schedule (TXMAS) approved vendors, at a total amount of $16,508.70; 
 

# Vendor Amount 
A Allsteel, Inc./Gateway Printing and Office Supply, Inc. 

(Edinburg, TX) 
$4,173.12

B Exemplis Corporation/Gateway Printing and Office 
Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX) 

$754.48

C The Hon Company/Gateway Printing and Office Supply, 
Inc. (Edinburg, TX) 

$6,158.38

D Krueger International, Inc./Gateway Printing and Office 
Supply, Inc. (Edinburg, TX) 

$5,422.72

 Total $16,508.70
 

6) Institutional Membership (Renewal):  renew the institutional membership with 
Hispanic Association of Colleges and Universities (HACU) (San Antonio, TX), a 
sole source vendor, for the period beginning January 1, 2016 through December 31, 
2016, at a total amount of $10,825.00; 

 
C. Technology 
7) Computers, Laptop, Tablets, and Printers (Purchase):  purchase of computers, 

laptop, tablets, and printers from the State of Texas Department of Information 
Resources (DIR) approved vendor Dell Marketing, LP. (Dallas, TX) and from the 
National Joint Powers Alliance approved vendor CDW Government (Vernon Hills, IL), 
in the total amount of $22,490.48; 

8) Network Equipment and Phones (Purchase):  purchase network equipment and 
phones from Insight Public Sector (Tempe, AZ/McAllen, TX), a State of Texas 
Department of Information Resources (DIR) approved vendor, at a total cost of 
$111,557.62; 

220



Finance and Human Resources  
Minutes – January 12, 2016 
Page 3, Revised 1/18/2016 @ 4:19:24 PM    

 

Finance and Human Resources 
Committee Minutes 01-12-2016 

9) Network Switches and Connectors  (Purchase):  purchase network switches and 
connectors from Insight Public Sector (Tempe, AZ/McAllen, TX), a State of Texas 
Department of Information Resources (DIR) approved vendor, at a total cost of 
$10,231.75; 

10) Servers, Installation, and Configuration (Purchase):  purchase servers, installation 
and configuration from Logical Front (The Woodlands, TX), a State of Texas 
Department of Information Resources (DIR) approved vendor, at a total cost of 
$192,200.53; 

11) Timekeeping System (Purchase):  purchase a timekeeping system from TimeClock 
Plus by Data Management, Inc. (San Angelo, TX), a Texas Cooperative Purchasing 
Network (TCPN) approved vendor, at a total cost of $210,401.98; 

12) Virtual Desktop Licenses Phase I (Purchase):  purchase virtual desktop licenses 
phase I from Dell Marketing, LP. (Dallas, TX), a State of Texas Department of 
Information Resources (DIR) approved vendor, at a total cost of $46,168.83. 

 
SUMMARY TOTAL: 
The total for all proposal awards, reject a proposal, purchases, and renewals was 
$686,073.49. 
 
Upon a motion by Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr. and a second by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez, the Finance 
and Human Resources Committee recommended Board of proposal awards, purchases, 
rejection of a proposal, purchases, and renewals as presented.  The motion carried. 
 
 

Review and Recommend Action on Revision of Adjunct & Overload Pay Rate Scale 
and Elimination of Summer Faculty Pay Rate Scale 

 
Approval of revision of Adjunct & Overload Pay Rate Scale and elimination of Summer 
Faculty Pay Rate Scale would be requested at the January 26, 2016 Board meeting.   
 
Purpose – The proposed revision of Adjunct & Overload Pay Rate Scale and Elimination of 
Summer Faculty Pay Rate Scale was presented for the Committee’s review and 
consideration. These scales had not been adjusted since FY 2007-2008. 
 
Justification – Adjunct faculty (part-time) were essential to the delivery of instruction at South 
Texas College.  In addition, the use of full-time faculty for teaching overloads at the adjunct 
faculty rate of pay allowed the College to offer additional courses in a more cost effective 
manner.   
 
This revision would provide South Texas College with more competitive rates to attract and 
retain adjunct faculty and full time faculty who teach overloads for the College. In addition, 
the revised adjunct/overload rate would be equal or higher than the current Summer Full 
Time Faculty Pay Scale; therefore, it was proposed to eliminate the summer Pay Rate Scale 
and utilize the Adjunct /Overload Pay Scale for all semesters and/or sessions effective Fall 
2016. 
 

221



Finance and Human Resources  
Minutes – January 12, 2016 
Page 4, Revised 1/18/2016 @ 4:19:24 PM    

 

Finance and Human Resources 
Committee Minutes 01-12-2016 

The definition of adjunct faculty and an overload assignment is as follows: 
 

 Adjunct Faculty - faculty members, not on the Board approved staffing plan, employed 
on a part-time basis with no benefits, and limited to teaching no more than ten Lecture 
Hour Equivalent (LHE) per semester.  

 Overload Assignment - compensation for full-time regular faculty is paid at the adjunct 
rate for all LHEs beyond 15 per semester or 30 per academic year.  

 
Background – At the time of the proposed revisions, South Texas College used two pay 
scales to compensate faculty overloads and adjunct salaries:  
 

1. Adjunct & Overload Pay Rate Scale 
2. Summer Faculty Pay Rate Scale 

 
These pay rates had not changed since FY 2007-2008. While the pay rates were adequate 
in the past, departments were finding it exceedingly more difficult to recruit adjunct faculty 
and full time faculty to teach overloads. 
 
The following information, labeled A through E below, was provided to demonstrate the 
current and proposed pay rates. 
 
A. Comparison with Very Large Colleges in Texas 
B. Comparison with Local Area Institutions 
C. Comparison of Current Pay Rate between South Texas College and UT-RGV 
D. Proposal: Adjunct and Overload Rate of Pay 
E. Funding Implications 

 
A. Comparison with Very Large Colleges in Texas 
 
The chart below reflects the results of a survey of the adjunct (part-time) pay rate for faculty 
teaching at Very Large Colleges in Texas.  South Texas College ranked 7th out of 10 Very 
Large Colleges in Texas (1= highest and 10= lowest).  
 

Comparison of Part-time Faculty Pay for One Course (3 LHE) * 
Very Large Colleges in Texas 

Source: TCCTA Institutional Questionnaire 
 

Very Large Colleges in Texas 
Classification per Texas Higher Education 

Coordinating Board 

Academic 
Year 

2013-2014 

Academic 
Year 

2014-2015 

Rank 
Highest Pay to 

Lowest Pay 

 Austin Community College $ 2,781 $ 2,844 1 

 El Paso Community College $ 2,619 $ 2,670 2 

 Tarrant County College District $ 2,388 $ 2,444 3 

 Collin County Community College $ 2,244 $ 2,379 4 

 Alamo Community College District $ 2,366 $ 2,366 5 

 Dallas County Community College District $ 2,164 $ 2,274 6 

222



Finance and Human Resources  
Minutes – January 12, 2016 
Page 5, Revised 1/18/2016 @ 4:19:24 PM    

 

Finance and Human Resources 
Committee Minutes 01-12-2016 

 South Texas College $ 1,950 $ 1,950 7 

 Houston Community College $ 1,800 $ 1,910 8 

 Lone Star College System $ 1,908 $ 1,908 9 

 San Jacinto College  $ 1,824 $ 1,824 10 
 

*LHE = Lecture Hour Equivalents 

Furthermore, a comparison between the South Texas College service area and the service 
areas of the same Very Large Colleges’ service area, shows the deep South Texas region 
with the lowest percentage (4.5%) of the population with a graduate degree (US Census 
Bureau and US Department of Commerce, 2014 American Community Survey). 

This combination of factors indicated two things: the available supply of adjunct faculty was 
limited by our geographic location and the current pay rate was not as competitive as other 
areas with larger pools of graduate degree holders. 

 
B. Comparison with Local Area Institutions 

 
In effect, South Texas College departments were competing with the University of Texas at 
Rio Grande Valley (UT-RGV), Texas State Technical College (TSTC), and Texas Southmost 
College (TSC) for a limited resource. The adjunct pay for these institutions was listed in the 
chart below which reflected adjunct pay for a faculty member with a Master’s Degree 
teaching one 3 LHE course for the 2014-2015 Academic Year.  
 

Comparison of Adjunct Faculty Pay for One Course (3 LHE)  
Local Area Institutions 

Faculty with Master’s Degree  
2014-2015 Academic  

Source: TCCTA- PT Instructors Compensation 
Texas State Technical College $1,390 
Texas Southmost College $ 1,920 
South Texas College $1,950 
The University of Texas at Rio Grande Valley  $2,400 

 
UT-RGV’s proximity made it the default competitor for adjuncts (part-time), and their part-
time faculty pay rates, which were adopted in Fall 2015.  At UT-RGV, the pay was dependent 
not only on highest degree earned, but also on teaching experience.  In addition, their adjunct 
faculty rates were substantially higher than the current rate at South Texas College.   
 
Adjunct faculty were essential to the delivery of instruction at South Texas College.  In 
addition, the use of full-time faculty for teaching overloads, at the adjunct faculty rate of pay, 
allowed the College to offer additional courses in a more cost effective manner.    
C. Comparison of Current Pay Rate between South Texas College and UT-RGV 
 

223



Finance and Human Resources  
Minutes – January 12, 2016 
Page 6, Revised 1/18/2016 @ 4:19:24 PM    

 

Finance and Human Resources 
Committee Minutes 01-12-2016 

As a method of comparison, the table below shows South Texas College adjunct/overload 
pay rates and summer pay rates for full-time faculty, compared to UT-RGV adjunct pay for 
both the Masters and Doctoral Levels.  
 
 
 

Comparison of Current Pay Rate for Adjunct Rates  
between South Texas College and UT-RGV  
and South Texas College Proposed Rates 

Per LHE (Lecture Hour Equivalent) 
 Current Rates 

STC and UT-RGV 
Proposed Rates  

Degree South Texas College UT-RGV* South Texas College 

 Adjunct / 
Overload  

Summer  
Full-Time Faculty 

Adjunct  
Faculty 

Adjunct/Overload/ 
Summer 

Associate $480 $575 Not Applicable $575 
Bachelor $525 $625 Not Applicable $625 
Master $650 $750 $800  - $1,100 $750 
Doctorate $750 $750 $900 – $1,800 $850 

  *UTRGV institutional Pay Ranges for Part Time Faculty (7/3/2015).   
http://www.utrgv.edu/_files/documents/provost/faculty-resources/utrgv-institutional-pay-ranges-
for%20part-time-faculty.pdf 
 
D. Proposal: Adjunct and Overload Rate of Pay 
 
At the request of Interim Vice President for Academic Affairs, Dr. Anahid Petrosian, the 
Academic Affairs leadership team reviewed recommendations from faculty leaders to arrive 
at a recommendation that will allow the institution to remain competitive in recruiting and 
retaining adjunct faculty. Administrative staff and faculty recommended that to remain 
competitive and to operate more efficiently through the use of adjuncts and overloads, the 
following proposal be accepted. 
 
To keep South Texas College competitive in recruiting and maintaining adjunct faculty 
members, and to close the gap between South Texas College and UT-RGV at the Master 
and Doctorate level, it was proposed that the Adjunct/Overload Pay scale be revised as 
shown in the table below and eliminate the Summer Faculty Pay Rate scale.  
 

Proposed Rate Changes 
Adjunct/Overload Pay Scale 

Per LHE (Lecture Hour Equivalent) 
Degree Current 

 Rate per LHE 
Proposed  

Rate per LHE 
Proposed  

Increase per LHE 
Associate $480 $575 $95 
Bachelor $525 $625 $100 
Master $650 $750 $100 

Doctorate $750 $850 $100 
E. Funding Implications 
 

224



Finance and Human Resources  
Minutes – January 12, 2016 
Page 7, Revised 1/18/2016 @ 4:19:24 PM    

 

Finance and Human Resources 
Committee Minutes 01-12-2016 

The chart below reflects the additional cost of the proposed increases in the adjunct faculty 
and faculty overload rate of pay for the two semesters (Fall and Spring) was approximately 
$886,000.  The estimate was based on 4,543.3 LHEs. Furthermore, the additional cost of 
the proposed increase for Summer Pay (including all Full Time Faculty Assignments and 
Adjunct Faculty) was approximately $288,000. This change would impact over 135 adjunct 
faculty and over 450 full-time faculty who teach overload or summer courses.  In addition, 
the use of adjunct faculty and full time faculty to teach overloads helped reduce the need for 
additional full time faculty, while being able to provide an adequate number of courses. 
 

Funding Implications for the Proposed Change 
Proposed Adjustment for Adjunct/Overload Rate Scale 

Semester Current Plan Proposed Plan Increase 

Fall & Spring $ 5,705,500 $ 6,591,902 $886,402
Summer $ 3,123,068 $ 3,411,065 $287,997
Total $1,174,399

 
Furthermore, the Committee was later asked to review a proposal to amend Policy #3803: 
Conditions of Employment of Full-Time Faculty Teaching during Summer Terms to reflect 
this change. 
 
Reviewers – Dr. Anahid Petrosian, Interim Vice President for Academic Affairs, and Mrs. 
Mary Elizondo, Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services, have reviewed the 
documentation with staff and requested the Finance and Human Resources Committee to 
recommend approval as presented. 
 
Dr. Anahid Petrosian, Interim Vice President for Academic Affairs, attended the January 12, 
2016 Finance and Human Resources Committee meeting to address any questions by the 
committee. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez and a second by Ms. Rose Benavidez, the Finance 
and Human Resources Committee recommended Board of the revision of Adjunct & 
Overload Pay Rate Scale and elimination of Summer Faculty Pay Rate Scale as presented.  
The motion carried. 
 
 

Review and Recommend Action on Revised Policies 
 
Approval of revised policies wouldl be requested at the January 26, 2016 Board meeting.   

 
a. Revise Policy #3803: Conditions of Employment of Full-Time Faculty Teaching during 

Summer Terms 
 
Request for the revision to the policy was necessary for the following reasons: 

 

 If the proposal for the Revision of Adjunct & Overload Pay Rate Scale and 
Elimination of Summer Faculty Pay Rate Scale was approved it would be 
necessary to amend the Policy to comply with the new changes.  

225



Finance and Human Resources  
Minutes – January 12, 2016 
Page 8, Revised 1/18/2016 @ 4:19:24 PM    

 

Finance and Human Resources 
Committee Minutes 01-12-2016 

 The revised Adjunct & Overload Pay Rate Scale would be equal or higher than the 
current summer Full Time Faculty Pay Rate Scale, so it was recommended to 
eliminate the Summer Pay Rate Scale, effective Fall 2016 to utilize the Adjunct & 
Overload Pay Rate Scale.   

 
b. Revise Policy #6322:  Smoke/Tobacco/E-Cigarette Free Environment 
 

Request for the revision to the policy was necessary for the following reasons: 
 

 To include E-Cigarettes under the provisions of the policy. 
 The City of McAllen passed ordinance revisions that included E-Cigarettes within 

their current Smoke and Tobacco Free Ordinance provisions. 
 

The revised policies were included in the packet for the Committee’s information and review.  
The additions to the policy were highlighted in yellow and the deletions were designated with 
a red strikeout.   
 
The revised policies were reviewed by staff, the President’s Cabinet, President’s 
Administrative Staff, Planning and Development Council (PDC) staff, and by South Texas 
College’s Legal Counsel.   
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez and a second by Ms. Rose Benavidez, the Finance 
and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of the revised policies as 
presented and which supersedes any previously adopted Board policy.  The motion carried. 
 
 

Presentation on Operations and Services of the South Texas College 
 Department of Public Safety (Formerly Police Department) 

 
Mr. Paul Varville, Chief Administrator, presented on the Operations and Services of the 
South Texas College Department of Public Safety, formerly Police Department. 
 
The Operations and Services of South Texas College Department of Public Safety 
PowerPoint presentation was also included in the packet for the Committee’s review and 
information. 
 
No action was required from the Committee. This item was presented for information and 
feedback to staff. 
 
 

Review and Discussion of Position Vacancy Report for FY 2015-2016 
 
The Staffing Plan Position Vacancy Report for FY 2015-2016 was included in the packet for 
the Committee’s information and review. Information was current as of January 8, 2016. 
 
Dr. Shirley A. Reed and Mrs. Mary Elizondo were available to respond to questions from the 
Committee.   
 

226



Finance and Human Resources  
Minutes – January 12, 2016 
Page 9, Revised 1/18/2016 @ 4:19:24 PM    

 

Finance and Human Resources 
Committee Minutes 01-12-2016 

The Position Vacancy Report for FY 2015-2016 was based on the following: 
 

 Positions Filled in FY 2015-2016: 
 

 Sixty two (62) positions were filled between September 1, 2015 and January 8, 
2016.  Of these 62 positions, 27 New positions for FY 2015-2016 were filled and 
35 Continuing positions continued from FY 2014-2015 were filled. 

 
 Positions Vacated in FY 2015-2016: 

 

 Twenty three (23) resignations, terminations, and/or retirement notices were 
submitted between September 1, 2015 and January 8, 2016. 

 
 Vacant Full Time Regular Positions - New - Board Approved Positions for FY 

2015-2016: 
 

 Twenty seven (27) new positions ere filled in FY 2016. 
 

 The staffing plan for FY 2015-2016 began with 73 new Board approved 
positions. Of these new positions, 55 were fully funded and 18 were partially 
funded.  
 

 Approximately 90% or 35 of the 39 fully funded vacant positions were currently 
advertised or had a requisition in progress. Five (5) or 14% of the 35 advertised 
positions had recommendations currently in progress.     

 
 Vacant Full Time Regular Positions – Continuing – CONTINUED from FY 2014-

2015: 
 

 Thirty five (35) continuing positions were filled in FY 2016. 
 

 A list of ninety three (93) vacant positions due to employee resignations, 
terminations, and retirement was included and designated as Continuing. These 
positions were advertised until filled. Approximately 98% or 91 of these positions 
were currently advertised or in progress for final approval. Eleven (11) or 12% of 
the 91 advertised positions had recommendations currently in progress. 

 
The Position Vacancy Report for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 and Positions Filled and Vacated 
Report were presented for information and review by the Committee.  No action was required 
from the Committee. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Adjournment 
 

227



Finance and Human Resources  
Minutes – January 12, 2016 
Page 10, Revised 1/18/2016 @ 4:19:24 PM    

 

Finance and Human Resources 
Committee Minutes 01-12-2016 

There being no further business to discuss, the Finance and Human Resources Committee 
Meeting of the South Texas College Board of Trustees adjourned at 6:45 p.m. 
 
I certify that the foregoing are the true and correct Minutes of the January 12, 2016 Finance 
and Human Resources Committee Meeting of the South Texas College Board of Trustees. 
 
______________________ 
Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr. 
Chair 
 

228



January 26, 2016 Regular Board Meeting Motions 
Revised 1/22/2016 10:18:44 AM 
Page 49 

Announcements 
 

A. Next Meetings: 

 Tuesday, February 9, 2016 

 4:30 p.m. – Facilities Committee 

 5:30 p.m. – Finance & HR Committee meeting 

 

 Thursday, February 18, 2016 

 4:00 p.m. – Education and Workforce Development Committee 

 

 Tuesday, February 23, 2016 

 5:30 p.m. – Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees 

 

B. Other Announcements: 

 The Launch of the Texas Regional STEM Degree Accelerator Initiative will 
be held Wednesday, February 10, 2016 at the South Texas College Cooper 
Center. 

 The College will be closed for regular business to hold its College-Wide 
Professional and Organizational Development Day on Friday, February 12, 
2016. 

 

229


	X B President's Report December 16 2015 to January 26 2016.pdf
	The office of Human Resources held a January United at Work webinar on the flu and common cold.  This Preventing Colds and the Flu, was held on Tuesday, January 19th from 11:30 a.m. – 12: 15p.m.  All interested employees were encouraged to join attend...




